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UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549
FORMC

UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933

(Mark one.)

Form C: Offering Statement

[0 Form C-U: Progress Update

(0 Form C/A: Amendment to Offering Statement.

O Check box if Amendment is material and investors nust reconfirm within five business
days.

[0 Form C-AR: Annual Report

(1 Form C-AR/A: Amendment to Annual Report

0 Form C-TR: Temmination of Reporting

Name of issuer
Roboair, Inc.

Legal staliss of issuer

Fam
Corporation

Jurisdiction of I o/ Orcanizeti

Delaware

Date of aganization
February 6, 2018
Physical address of issuer
530 Lytton Ave 2nd Floor, Palo Alto, CA 94301
Welsite of issuer
https://roboair.com

DealMaker Securities, LL.C

CIK mumber of intermmediary
0001872856
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SEC file munber of infermmediary
00870756

CRD mmmber; if applicable of infermmediary

315324

Ao of conpensalian o be paid ip the infammediary; whelher as a dollar armoumt or a
of the Offering anount, ar a good faith estinale if the exad anount is not available

at the time of the filing for conduding the Offaring induding the anount of refaral and any

other fees assodated with the Offering

DealMaker Securities LL.C will receive a 4% commission based on the dollar amount of the
securities sold. The Company paid a one-time $15,000 service fee, a $2,000 monthly maintenance
fee, and must reimburse certain expenses related to the Offering.

Any other dired ar indiredt infexest in the issuer held by the infermmediary; or any arrangerment
for the infermediary to aoquire such an itderest

None

Namne of qalified third party “Escaow Agent” which the Offering will ulilize
Enterprise Bank & Trust

Type of seanily offered
Series B Non-Voting Common Stock

Targelt mmber of Seaurities o be offered
16,667

Price (or method for detesyrining price)
$1.20

Target offaing anoumt
$20,000.40

Ovasubsaiptions acoepled:
Yes
O No

0 Pro-ratabasis
O Hrst-come, first-served basis
Other: at the Company’s discretion

$4,999,903.14

Deadline io reach the larget offering armoumnt



April 30, 2024
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NOTE: If the ssam of the investiment conmmitments does not equial or exceed the target
offaring amount at the Offering deadline, no Seaurities will be sold in the Offering

Curreni munber of enployees
0
Most recent fiscal year-end Prior fiscal year-end
Total Assels $40,584.00 $39,222.00
Cash & Cash Equivalents $20,197.00 $12,662.00
Aocommis Receivable $0.00 $3,165.00
Short-term Debt $469,024.00 $31,451.00
Long-term Debt $0.00 $259,000.00
Revenues/Sales $4,224.00 $3,475.00
Cost of Goods Sold $0.00 $0.00
Taxes Paid $0.00 $0.00
Net Income -$177,211.00 -$406,090.00

The jurisdidians in which the issuer inlends to offer the Seaunities:

Alabama, Alaska, Arizona, Arkansas, Califomia, Colorado, Connecticut, Delaware, District Of
Columhia, Florida, Georgia, Guam, Hawaii, Idaho, Illinois, Indiana, Iowa, Kansas, Kentucky,
Louisiana, Maine, Maryland, Massachusetts, Michigan, Minnesota, Mississippi, Missour,
Montana, Nebraska, Nevada, New Hampshire, New Jersey, New Mexico, New Y ork, North
Carolina, North Dakota, Ohio, Oklahoma, Oregon, Permsylvania, Puerto Rico, Rhode Island,
South Carolina, South Dakota, Tennessee, Texas, Utah, Vermont, Virgin Islands, U.S., Virginia,
Washington, West Virginia, Wisconsin, Wyoming, American Samoa, and Northem Mariana
Islands
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August 16, 2023

FORMC

Up to $4,999,903.14
Raobaoair, Inc.

roboair

Up t0 4,025,718 shares of Series B Non-Voting Conmmon Stodk

This Form C (including the cover page and all exhibits attached hereto, the "Form C") is
being fumished by Roboair Inc, a Delaware Corporation (“Roboair” or the "Company,", or
“Issuer” as well as references to "we," "us," or"our"), to prospective investors forthe sole purpose
of providing certain information about a potential investiment in shares of the Company’s Series B
Non-Voting Common Stock (the “Shares” or “Securities”).

Investors in Securities are sometimes refernred to herein as "Purchasers” or “Investors” (or
sometimes “you”). The Issuer intends to raise at least $20,000.40 (the “Target Offering Amount”)
and up to $4,999,903.14 (the “Maximum Offering Amount”) from Investors in the offering as
described in this Form C (the “Offering”). The mininum amount of Securities that can be
purchased is $500.40 per Investor (which may be waived by the Company in its sole and absolute
discretion). No fractional shares will be issued in the Offering. The offer made hereby is subject
to modification, prior to sale and withdrawal at any time.

The Company must raise an amount equal to or greater than the Target Offering Amount.
by April 30, 2024 (the “Offering Deadline”). Unless the Comperny raises &t least the Target
Offering Amount by the Offering Deadline, no Securities will be sold in this Offering, all
investment commitments will be cancelled, and all committed fimds will be rebumed. The
Company has the right to extend the Offering Deadline at the Company’s discretion.

Investors in this offering will be required to pay a fee to the Company (“Investor
Transaction Fee”) to help offset transaction costs equal to three and one half percent (3.5%) up to
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a maxinum fee of $350.80, perinvestiment. This fee is counted towards the amount the Comparty
is seeking to raise under Regulation Crowdfunding and the limit each investor may invest pursuant
to Regulation Crowdiunding as described herein and is in addition to the $500.40 mininum
amount per investor. The Broker and its affiliates will receive cash commiission on this fee.

All committed funds will be held in escrow with Enterprise Bank & Trust, a Missouri
chartered trust company with banking powers (the “Escrow Agent”) until the Target Offering
Amount has been met or exceeded and one or more closings occur. Investors may cancel an
investment commitment up to 48 hours prior to the Offering Deadline, or such eadier time as the
Company designates pursuant to Regulation CF, using the cancellation mechanism provided by
the Intermediary. The Intermediary has the ahility to reject any investment commitment and may
cancel orrescind the Company’s offerto sell the Securities at any time forany reason. Once within
48 hours Investors will not be able to cancel for any reason, even if they make a commitment
curing this period.

The rights and obligations of the holders of Securities of the Issuer are set forth below in
the section entitled " The Offering and the Securities-- The Securities'. In order to purchase Shares,
a prospective investormust complete the subscription process through the Intermediary’ s platfonm,
which may be accepted or rejected by the Issuerin its sole and absolute discretion. The Issuer has
the rnght to cancel or rescind its offer to sell the Securities at any time and for any reason.

The Offering is being made through DealMaker Securities, LLC (the "Intermediary”). The
Intenmediary will be entitled to receive a 4% commission based on the dollar amount of the
securities sold. The Company paid a one-time $15,000 service fee, a $2,000 monthly maintenance
fee, and must reimburse certain expenses related to the Offering. It paid $2,500 to DealMaker
Transfer Agent, L.LC forits services afterthe offering. See “The Offering - Commission and Fees”
below for more information.

A aowdiunding invesiment involves risk. You should not invest any funds in this Offering
unless you can afford to lose your entire invesiment. In making an investment dedsion,
investors nmust rely on their own examination of the Issuer and the termns of the Offering
induding the merits and risks involved. These Seamrities have not been reconamended or
approved by any federal or shate seamities commmission or regulatory authority.
Furthamore, these authorities have not passed upon the accracy ar adequacy of this
doament. The U.S. Seamrities and Exchange Conmmmission does not pass upon the merits of
any Seaurities offered or the terms of the Offering nor does it pass upon the acamacy or
ocopleteness of any Offering document or other materials. These Seamities are offered
under an exemption from registration; however, neither the U.S. Seamities and Exchange
Caommission nor any state seaurities authority has made an independent determination that
these Seaurities are exenpt from registration. The Issuer filing this Form C for an offering
in reliance on Sedion 4(@)(6) of the Seamrities Ad and pursuant to Regulation CF § 227.100
el seq.) must file a report with the Conmmission anmually and post the repart on their shared
ar respedive websites at hiips://roboair.com no later than 120 days after the end of the
Campany’s fiscal year. The Company may terminate its reporting obligations in the fuhre
in accordance with Rule 202(b) of Regulation CF (§ 227.202(b)) by 1) being required to file
reports under Sedlion 13(a) ar Section 15(d) of the Exchange Adt of 1934, as amended, 2)
filing at least one anmuial report pursuant to Regulation CF and having fewer than 300
holders of record, 3) filing anmual reports far three years pursuant to Regulation CF and
having assets equial to or less than $10,000,000, 4) the repurchase of all the Searrities sold in
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this Offering by the Conpany or another party, or 5) the liquidation or dissolution of the
Canpany. Neither of the Conpany nor any of its predecessors (if any) previously failed to
comply with the congoing reporting requirement of Regulation CF.

The date of this Form C is August 16, 2023.

The Issuer has certified that all of the following statements are TRUE for each of the Company in
connection with this Offering:

1) Is organized under, and subject to, the laws of a State or tenritory of the United States or
the District of Columbia;

2) Is not sulyject to the requirement to file reports pursuant to section 13 or section 15(d) of
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C. 78m or 780(d));

3) Is not an investiment company, as defined in section 3 of the Investment Company Act of
1940 (15 U.S.C. 80a-3), orexcluded from the definition of investiment compeany by section
3(b) orsection 3(c) of that Act (15 U.S.C. 80a-3(b) or 80a-3(c));

4) Isnotineligible to offerorsell securities in reliance on section 4(a)(6) of the Securities Act
(15 U.S.C. 77d(a)(6)) as aresult of a disqualification as specified in § 227.503(a);

5) Has filed with the Commission and provided to investors, to the extent required, any
ongoing annual reports required by law during the two years immediately preceding the
filing of this Form C; and

6) Has a specific business plan, which is not to engage in a merger or acquisition with an
unidentified company or companies.

THERE ARE SIGNIFICANI RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES ASSOCIATED WITH AN
INVESTMENT IN THE COMPANY AND THE SECURITIES. THE SECURITIES OFFERED
HEREBY ARE NOT PUBLICLY-TRADED AND ARE SUBJECT TO TRANSFER
RESTRICTIONS. THERE IS NO PUBLIC MARKET FOR THE SECURITIES AND ONE MAY
NEVER DEVELOP. AN INVESTMENT IN THE COMPANY IS HIGHLY SPECULATIVE.
THE SECURITIES SHOULD NOT BE PURCHASED BY ANY ONE WHO CANNOT BEAR
THE FINANCIAL RISK OF THIS INVESTMENT FOR AN INDEFINITE PERIOD OF TIME
AND WHO CANNOT AFFORD THE LOSS OF THEIR ENTIRE INVESTMENI. SEE THE
SECTION OF THIS FORM C ENITILED "RISK FACTORS."

THESE SECURITIES INVOLVE A HIGH DEGREE OF RISK THAT MAY NOT BE
APPROPRIATE FOR ALL INVESTORS.

THIS FORM C DOES NOT CONSTTIUTE AN OFFER IN ANY JURISDICTION IN
WHICH AN OFFER IS NOT PERMITTED.

PRIOR TO CONSUMMATION OF THE PURCHASE AND SALE OF ANY SECURITY
THE ISSUER WILL AFFORD PROSPECTIVE INVESTORS AN OPPORTUNITY TO ASK
QUESTIONS OF AND RECEIVE ANSWERS FROM THE COMPANY, AND ITS
MANAGEMENI TEAM CONCERNING THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THIS
OFFERING, THE COMPANY. NO SOURCE OTHER THAN THE INTERMEDIARY HAS
BEEN AUTHORIZED TO GIVE ANY INFORMATION OR MAKE ANY
REPRESENTATIONS OTHER THAN THOSE CONTAINED IN THIS FORM C, AND IF
GIVEN OR MADE BY ANY OTHER SUCH PERSON OR ENTITY, SUCH INFORMATION
MUST NOT BE RELIED ON AS HAVING BEEN AUTHORIZED BY THE COMPANY .
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PROSPECTIVE INVESTORS ARE NOT TO CONSTRUE THE CONTENT'S OF THIS
FORM C AS LEGAL, ACCOUNTING OR TAX ADVICE OR AS INFORMATION
NECESSARILY APPLICABLE TO EACH PROSPECTIVE INVESTOR'S PARTICULAR
FINANCIAL SITUATION. EACH INVESTOR SHOULD CONSULT HIS OR HER OWN
FINANCIAL ADVISER, COUNSEL. AND ACCOUNTANTI AS TO LEGAL, TAX AND
RELATED MATTERS CONCERNING HIS OR HER INVESTMENT.

THE SECURITIES OFFERED HEREBY WILL HAVE TRANSFER RESTRICTIONS.
NO SECURITIES MAY BE PLEDGED, TRANSFERRED, RESOLD OR OTHERWISE
DISPOSED OF BY ANY INVESTOR EXCEPT PURSUANT TO RULE 501 OF REGULATION
CFE. INVESTORS SHOULD BE AWARE THAT THEY WILL BE REQUIRED TO BEAR THE
FINANCIAL RISKS OF THIS INVESTMENT FOR AN INDEFINITE PERIOD OF TIME.

NASAA UNIFORM LEGEND

IN MAKING AN INVESTMENT DECISION INVESTORS MUST RELY ON THEIR
OWN EXAMINATION OF THE PERSON OR ENITIY ISSUING THE SECURITIES AND
THE TERMS OF THE OFFERING, INCLUDING THE MERITS AND RISKS INVOLVED.

THESE SECURITIES HAVE NOT BEEN RECOMMENDED BY ANY FEDERAL OR
STATE SECURITIES COMMISSION OR REGULATORY AUTHORITY. FURTHERMORE,
THE FOREGOING AUTHORITIES HAVE NOT CONFIRMED THE ACCURACY OR
DETERMINED THE ADEQUACY OF THIS DOCUMENT. ANY REPRESENTATIONTO THE
CONTRARY IS A CRIMINAL OFFENSE.

SPECIAL NOTICE TO FOREIGN INVESTORS

IFTHE INVESTOR LIVES OUTSIDE THE UNITED STATES, IT ISTHE INVESTOR'S
RESPONSIBILITY TO FULLY OBSERVE THE LAWS OF ANY RELEVANT TERRITORY
OR JURISDICTION OUTSIDE THE UNITED STATES IN CONNECTION WITH ANY
PURCHASE OF THE SECURITIES, INCLUDING OBTAINING REQUIRED
GOVERNMENTAL OR OTHER CONSENTS OR OBSERVING ANY OTHER REQUIRED
LEGAL OR OTHER FORMALITIES. THE ISSUER RESERVES THE RIGHT TO DENY THE
PURCHASE OF THE SECURITIES BY ANY FOREIGN INVESTOR.

SPECIAL NOTICE TO CANADIAN INVESTORS

IF THE INVESTOR LIVES WITHIN CANADA, IT IS THE INVESIOR'S
RESPONSIBILITY TO FULLY OBSERVE THE LAWS OF A CANADA, SPECIFICALLY
WITH REGARD TO THE TRANSFER AND RESALE OF ANY SECURITIES ACQUIRED IN
THIS OFFERING.

NOTICE REGARDING ESCROW AGENT

ENTERPRISE BANK & TRUST, A MISSOURI CHARTERED TRUST COMPANY
WITH BANKING POWERS, THE ESCROW AGENT SERVICING THE OFFERING, HAS NOT
INVESTIGATED THE DESIRABILITY ORADVISABILITY OF AN INVESTMENT IN THIS
OFFERING OR THE SECURITIES OFFERED HEREIN. THE ESCROW AGENT MAKES NO
REPRESENTATIONS, WARRANIIES, ENDORSEMENTS, OR JUDGEMENI" ON THE
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MERITS OF THE OFFERING OR THE SECURITIES OFFERED HEREIN. THE ESCROW
AGENT’S CONNECTION TO THE OFFERING IS SOLELY FOR THE LIMITED PURPOSES
OF ACTING AS A SERVICE PROVIDER.

Foarward Looking Staterment Disdosure

This Form C and any documents incorporated by reference herein or therein contain
forward-looking staterments and are subject to risks and uncertainfies. All staterments other than
staterments of historical fact or relating to present facts or current conditions included in this Form
C are forward-looking statemments. Forward-looking statements give the Issuer’s current
reasonable expectations and projections relating to its financial condition, results of operatiors,
plans, objectives, future performmance and business. You can identify forward-looking staterments
by the fact that they do not relate strictly to historical or current facts. These statements may
include words such as "anticipate, " "estinmte, " "expect, " "project” "plan, " "intend " "believe,”
"may; " "should " "can have," "likely" and other words and termrs of similar meaning in connection
with any discussion of the tining or nature of future operating or financial perfornance or other
events.

The forward-looking staterments contained in this Form C and any docurments incorporated
by reference herein or therein are based on reasonable assunpiions the Issuer has made in light
of its indusiry experience, perceptions of historical trends, current conditions, expected future
developmenis and other factors it believes are appropriate under the circunstances. As you read
and consider this Form C, you should understand that these statements are not guarantees of
performance or results. They involve risks, uncertainiies (many of wihich are beyond the Issuer’s
oonirol) and assunptions. Although the Issuer believes that these forward-looking statements are
based on reasonahle assumpiions, you should be aware that many factors could affect its actual
operating and financial perforimance and cause its performance o differ naterially from the
performance anticipated in the forward-looking statements. Should one or nore of these risks or
uncertainties materialize, or should any of these assunptions prove incorrect or change, the
Issuar’s actual operaling and finandial performance nay vary in nmterial respects from the
performance projected in these forward-looking statements.

Investors are cautioned not to place undue reliance on these forward-looking staterments.
Any forward-looking staterment nade by the Issuer in this Form C or any documents incorporated
by reference herein or therein speaks only as of the date of this Form C. Factors or evenis that
oould cause our actual operating and financial performance to differ nay emerge from tine to
time, and it is not possible for the Issuer to predict all of them The Issuer undertakes no obligation
fo update any forward-looking statement, whether as a result of new informmation, future
developments or otherwise, except as may be required by law:

Disdaimer of Television Preseniation

The Company’s officers may participate in the filming of a television series and in the course of
the filming, may present certain business infonmation to the investor panel appearing on the show
(the “Presentation”). The Compary will not pass upon the merits of, certify, approve, or otherwise
authorize the statements made in the Presentation. The Presentation commentary being made
should not be viewed as superior or a substitute for the disclosures made in this Form-C.
Accordingly, the staterments made in the Presentation, unless reiterated in the offering materials
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provided herein, should not be applied to the Compeny’ s business and operations as of the date of
this offering. Moreover, the Presentation may involve several stalements constituting puffery, that
is, exaggerations not to be taken literally or otherwise as indication of factual data or historical or
fubure performance.

ONGOING REPORTING

The Issuerwill file a report electronically with the Securities & Exchange Commission annually
and post the report on its website, no later than 120 days after the end of the its fiscal year.

Once posted, the annual report may be found on the Issuer's website at: hitps://roboair.com.

The Company must continue to comply with the ongoing reporting requirements umtil:

1) are required to file reports under Section 13(a) or Section 15(d) of the Exchange Act;

2) have filed at least three annual reports pursuant to Regulation CF and has total assets that
do not exceed $10,000,000;

3) have filed at least one annual report pursuant to Regulation CF and has fewer than 300
holders of record:

4) repurchase or another party repurchases all of the Securities issued in reliance on Section
4(a)(6) of the Secumties Act, including any payment in full of debt securities or any
complete redemption of redeemable securities; or

o) liquidate or dissolve their business in accordance with state law.

Abaout this Foroom C

Y ou should rely only on the information contained in this Form C. We have not authorized anyone
to provide you with information different from that contained in this Form C. No source other than
the Infermediary has been authorized to host this Form C and the Offering. If anyone provides you
with different or inconsistent information, you should not rely on it. We are offering to sell, and
seeking offers to buy the Securities only in jurisdictions where offers and sales are permitted. Y ou
should assume that the information contained in this Form C is accurate only as of the date of this
Form C, regardless of the time of delivery of this Form C or of any sale of Securities. Ourbusiness,
financial condition, results of operations, and prospects may have changed since that date.

Statements contained herein as to the content of any agreements or other document are sunimaries
and, therefore, are necessarily selective and incomplete and are qualified in their entirety by the
actual agreements or other documents.

Please review the following exhibits attached to this Form C and incorporated herein by reference:

Exhibit A: Consolidated Audited Financial Statements of the Compeny

Exhibit B: Roboair Opportumity Site (located at hitps://invest. Roboair.com)

Exhibit C: form of Subscription Agreement to be executed by Investors with Company
(the “Subsaription Agreesment”’)

Exhibit D: Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the Company (the
“Ceatificate of Incorporation” or “Restated Charter”) and Amended and Restated Bylaws of
the Company (the “Bylaws")

Exhibit E: Video Transcripts
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Prior to the consummation of the purchase and sale of the Securities, the Issuer will provide the
opportunity to ask questions of and receive answers from its management team conceming the
terms and conditions of the Offering, the Issuer or any other relevant matters and any additional
reasonable information to any prospective Investor prior to the consummation of the sale of the
Securities.

In making an investiment decision, you nmust rely on your own examination of the Issuer and the
tenms of the Offering, including the merits and risks irwvolved. This Form C does not purport to
contain all of the information that may be required to evaluate the Offering and any recipient hereof
should conduct its own independent analysis. The statements of the Issuer contained herein are
based on infonmation believed to be reliable. No warranty can be made as to the accuracy of such
information or that circumstances have not changed since the date of this Form C. The Issuer does
not expect to update or otherwise revise this Fornm C or other materials supplied herewith. The
delivery of this Form C at any time does not imply that the information contained herein is cornrect
as of any time subsequent to the date of this Form C. This Form C is submitted in connection with
the Offering described herein and may not be reproduced or used for any other purpose.

SUMMARY

The following summary is qualified in its entirety by more detailed information that may appear
elsewhere in this Form C and the Exhibits hereto. Each prospective Investor is urged to read this
Form C and the Exhibits hereto in their entirety.

Roboair, Inc. (the "Company") is a Delaware Corporation, fonrmed on February 6, 2018. The
Company has a wholly-owned subsidiary in Gemmany, Roboair Deutchland GmbH, which itis in
the process of selling. The Company has not otherwise operated under any other name.

The Company is located at 530 Lytton Ave 2nd Floor, Palo Alto, CA 94301.
The Company’s website is https://roboair.com.

The information available on or through our website is not a part of this Form C. In making an
investment decision with respect to our Securities, you should only consider the infonmation
contained in this Form C.

A description of the Compary’s business, products, services and business plan can be found on the
Company's website located at htips://invest. Roboair.com and is attached as Exhibit B (the
"Roboair Opportumity Site'') to this Form C.

The Business

Robosiris an online booking agency. Roboair's strategy includes offering a system that searches
all aifdine, hotel and car rental service companies through the Saber GDS for the lowest rate
booking offered. Roboair's consolidated audited financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with U.S. Generally Accepted A ccounting Principles (“U.S. GAAP”) and are attached
to this Form C as Exhibit A.
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The Offering

The purpose of this Offering is to raise capital to grow our business by increasing marketing,
hiring employees to develop more products and repay debt to our Co-Founder. See "Use of
Proceeds" for more infonmation.

Target Offering Amount of Series B Non-

Voiing Conmmon Stodk being offered 16,667
Total Series B Non-Voling Conmmmon Stodk
outstanding after Offering Gf Target 16,667
Offering Amount reached)
Maxinum Offering Amount of Series B 4005718
Non-Veoting Conmmon Stodk e
Total Series B Non-Voling Conmmon Stodk
outstanding after Offering (if Maxinamm 4,025,718
Offering Amount reached)
Purchase price per Seaurity $1.20
Mininam investiment amount: per investor $500.40
Offering deadline April 30, 2024
Useof Seetlnd&scﬂ[ﬂiokrg)fﬂlemofmceeds
R OW.
. . The Shares are non-voting. See “The
e Offering and the Securities - The Securities”.

Series B Non-Voting Common Stock will
automatically convert into (1) voting shares of
common stock of the Company upon (1) the
approval by the Board and a vote of the
holders of a majority of the shares voting
common stock, or (2) development of a
Autonmtic Conversion Trading Market (as such term is defined in the
certificate of incorporation of the Compery)
for the voting shares of common stock of the
Conparty. The Subscription Agreement also
includes a right to convert Shares into a
Crowdfunding SPV if determined by the

Board.

In addition to the transfer restrictions imposed

under the Securities Act for securities issued

under Regulation CF, the Shares are subject to
repurchase upon events described in the
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Subscription Agreement. The Subscription
Agreement also contains a market stand-off
agreement.

The price of the Securities has been determined by the Issuer and does not necessarily bear any
relationship to the assets, book value, or potential eamings of the Issuer or any other recognized
criteria or value.

The Company reserves the right, in its sole discretion, to amend the Minimum Individual Purchase
Amount.

RISK FACTORS
Risks Related to the Company’ s Business and Indusiry

The anumit of capiital the Canpany is attenpiing o raise in this Offaring nay not be enough
lo susiain the Conpany’s aarand Inisiness plan,

In order to achieve the Compeny’s near and long-term goals, the Company may need to procure
funds in addition to the amount raised in the Offering. There is no guarantee the Compeany will be
able to raise such funds on acceptable tenns or at all. If we are not able to raise sufficient capital
in the future, we will not be able to execute our business plan, our continued operations will be in
Jeopardy and we may be forced to cease operations and sell or otherwise transferall orsubstantially
all of our remaining assets, which could cause an Inwvestor to lose all or a portion of his or her
investment.

In arder for the Canpany to conpele and grow; it nust athrad, rearuil, relain and develop the
necessary persormne who have the needed experience.

Recruiting and retaining highly cualified personnel is critical to our success. These demands may
require us to hire additional personnel and will require our existing management. personnel to
develop additional expertise. We face intense competition for personnel. The failure to atiract and
refain personnel or to develop such expertise could delay or halt the development and
commertialization of our product candidates. If we experience difficulties in hiring and retaining
personnel in key positions, we could suffer from delays in product development, loss of customers
and sales and diversion of management resources, which could adversely affect operating results.
Our consultants and advisors may be employed by third parties and may have conmmitments under
consulting or advisory contracts with third parties that may limit their availability to us.

We face competition with respect to any products that we may seek to develop or commercialize
in the future. Our competitors include major compeanies worddwide. Many of our competitors have
significantly greater financial, technical and human resources than we have and superior expertise
in research and development and marketing approved products and featiures and thus mey be better
equipped than us to develop and commertialize products and features. These competitors also
compete with us in recruiting and retaining qualified personnel and acquiring technologies.
Smaller orearly stage companies may also prove to be significant competitors, particularty through
collaborative arrangements with large and established companies. Accordingly, our competitors
may commertialize products more rapidly or effectively than we are able to, which would
adversely affect ourcompetitive position, the likelihood that our products and feahures will achieve
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mitial market acceptance and our ability to generate meaningful additional revenues from our
prochcts.

We depend on third-parly sarvice providers and oufsource providers for a variely of sexvices and
we outsource a mamber of our non-core findions and operations.

In certain instances, we rely on limited service providers and outsourcing vendors around the world
because the relationship is advantageous due to quality, price, or lack of altemative sources. If
production or service was intermupted and we were not able to find altemate third-party providers,
we could experience disruptions in product shortages. If outsourcing services are intermupted or
not performed or the performance is poor, this could impact our ability to process, record and
report transactions with our customers and other constituents. Such intermuptions in the provision
of supplies and/or services could result in our inahility to meet customer demand, damage our
reputation and customer relationships and adversely affect our business.

We depend an third party providars, suppliers and licensars o supply some of the hardware
saftware and ogperatianal suppart necessary o provide sonme of o services,

We obtain these materials from a limited mumber of vendors, some of which do not have a long
operating history, or which may not be able to continue to supply the equipment and services we
desire. Some of our hardware, software and operational support vendors represent our sole source
of supply or have, either through coniract or as a result of intellectual property rights, a position of
some exclusivity. If demand exceeds these vendors' capacity or if these vendors experience
operating or financial difficulties or are otherwise unable to provide the equipment or services we
need in a timely manner; at our specifications and at reasonable prices, our ability to provide some
services might be materially adversely affected, or the need to procure or develop altemative
sources of the affected materials or services might delay our ability to serve our customers. These
events could materially and adversely affect our ability to retain and attract customers, and have a
material negative impact on our operations, business, financial results and financial condition.

As a distribvitor of airline tidets holel bookings and car renials , our Iusiness depesxds on
We depend on our vendors to sell us quality products at favorable prices. Many factors outside our
control, including, without limitation, weather conditions, could adversely affect our vendors’
ability to deliver to us quality products at favorable prices in a timely manner. Furthermore,
financial oroperational difficulties with a particularvendor could cause that vendor to increase the
cost of the products we purchase from it. Vendor consolidation could also limit the mmber of
suppliers from which we may purchase products and could matenially affect the prices we pay for
these products. We would suffer an adverse impact if our vendors limit or cancel the retum
privileges that curnrently protect us from inventory obsolescence.

oonditions.

A substantial portion of our revenue is derived from discretionary spending by individuals, which
typically falls during times of economic instability. Declines in economic conditions in the U.S.
orin other countries in which we operate may adversely impact our consolidated financial results.
Because such declines in demand are difficult to predict, we or the industry may have increased
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excess capacity as aresult. An increase in excess capacity may result in declines in prices for our
products and services.

The failures of certain regional banks in the U.S. have highlighted risks for depositors. The
Company did not have banking relationships with First Republic, Silicon Valley Bank or Signahinre
Bank. The Company is exposed to credit risk on its cash and cash equivalents in the event of
default by the financial institutions with whom it banks to the extent account balances exceed the
amount insured by the FDIC, which is $250,000. The federal govemment agreed to protect
deposits above this amount held at Silicon Valley Bank and Signahure Bank, but there can be no
assurance that it would do the same should another banking institution fail. At December 31, 2022
and December 31, 2021, respectively, the Company did not have any cash deposits with any
financial institution in excess of the insured FDIC limit. It is anticipated that balances in the
Comparny’s bank account and the escrow account for this Offering may exceed FDIC limits at
times. In the event that any of Company's banks should fail, the Company may not be able to
recover all amounts deposited in these bank accounts. Disnuption in the availability of cash
deposits or access to credit that could arise as a result of these uncertainties in the banking system
could also have a material adverse effect on our ability to operate our business.

parties is requlaled af the siate, federal and infernafional levels

Costs associated with information security - such as investment in technology, the costs of
compliance with consumer protection laws and costs resulting from consumer fraud - could cause
our business and results of operations to suffer materially. Additionally, the success of our online
operations depends upon the secure transmission of confidential information over public networks,
including the use of cashless payments. The intentional ornegligent actions of employees, business
associates or third parties may undermine our security measures. As a result, unauthorized parties
may obtain access to our data systems and misappropriate confidential data. There can be no
assurance that advances in computer capahilities, new discoveries in the field of cryptography or
other developments will prevent the compromise of our customer transaction processing
capabilities and personal data. If any such compromise of our security or the security of
information residing with our business associates or third parties were to occur, it could have a
material adverse effect on our reputation, operafing results and financial condition. Any
compromise of our data security may materially increase the costs we incur to protect against such
breaches and could subject us to additional legal risk.

ovide io purchase prodids or savices, anoll in pronoiional prograns, regisier on ourweb
We may share information about such persons with vendors that assist with certain aspects of our
business. Security could be compromised and confidential customer or business information
misappropriated. Loss of customer or business information could disrupt our operations, damage
our reputation, and expose us to daims from customers, financial institutions, payment card
associalions and other persons, any of which could have an adverse effect on our business,
financial condition and results of operations. In addition, compliance with tougher privacy and
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information security laws and standards may result in significant expense due to increased
investment in technology and the development of new operational processes.

Seanily lreaches and other disruplions could conmpramise our infammtion and expose us o
We collect and store sensitive data, including intellectual property, our proprietary business
information and that of our customers, suppliers and business partners, and personally identifiable
information of our customers and employees, in our data centers and on our networks. The secure
processing, maintenance and transmission of this infonmation is critical to our operations and
business strategy. Despite our security measures, our information technology and infrastruchure
may be vulnerable to attacks by hackers or breached due to employee enror, malfeasance or other
disnuptions. Any such breach could compromise our networks and the information stored there
could be accessed, publicly disclosed, lost or stolen. Any such access, disclosure or other loss of
information could result inlegal claims or proceedings, liability underlaws that protect the privacy
of personal information, and regulatory penalties, disrupt our operations and the services we
provide to customers, and damage our reputation, and cause a loss of confidence in our products
and services, which could adversely affect our business/operating margins, reverues and
competitive position.

The secure processing, maintenance and transmission of this information is critical to our
operations and business strategy, and we devote significant resources to protecting our information
by operating on one of the world's leading cloud platfonms such as Google Cloud. The expenses
associated with protecting our informatiory these steps could reduce our operating margins.

Such an event might be caused by computer hacking, computer viruses, worms and other
destructive or disnuptive software, "cyber attacks" and other malicious activity, as well as nahiral
disasters, power outages, terronist attacks and similar events. Such events could have an adverse
impact on us and our customers, including degradation of service, service disruption, equipment:
and dafa. In addition, our fuhure results could be adversely affected due to the theft, destruction,
loss, misappropriation orrelease of confidential customer data orintellectual property. Operational
or business delays may result from the disruption of network or information systems and the
subsequent remediation activities. Moreover, these events may create negative publicity resulting
in reputation or brand damage to customers.

Our sexvice is availalle o ommiries around the world

Our operations are subject to the effects of global competition and geopolitical risks. They are also
affected by local economic environments, including inflation, recession, currency volatility and
actual oranticipated default on sovereign debt. Political changes, some of which may be disnuptive,
can interfere with our supply chain, our customers and all of our activities in a particular location.
While some of these global economic and political risks can be hedged using derivatives or other
financial instruments and some are insurable, such attempts to mitigate these risks are costly and
not always successful, and our ahility to engage in such mitigation may decrease or become even
more costly as a result of more volatile market conditions.
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approval, produdion, pricng and narketing of, reimixrsarent far and access o our prodids,
as well as by pdlitical unresi, unsiable goverrarenis and legal systens and infer-governmenial
dispuiles.

Any of these changes could adversely affect our business. Many emerging markets have
experienced growth rates in excess of the word's lamgest markets, leading to an increased
contribution to the industry’s global performance. There is no assurance that these countries will
continue to sustain these growth rates. In addition, some emerging market countries may be
particuladly vulnerable to periods of financial instahility or significant currency fluctuations or
may have limited resources for healthcare spending, which can adversely affect our results.

Weé rely an various intelleciual properiy righis, induding tradararks and licenses in arder o
opaate our business.

Such intellectual property rights, however, may not be sufficiently broad or otherwise may not
provide us a significant competitive advantage. In addition, the steps that we have taken to
mainiain and protect our intellectual property may not prevent it from being challenged,
invalidated, circunmventied or designed-around, particularly in countries where intellectual property
nghis are not highly developed or protected. In some circumstances, enforcement may not be
available to us because an infringer has a dominant intellechual property position or for other
business reasons, or countries may require conipulsory licensing of our intellectual property. Our
failure to obtain or maintain intellectual property rights that convey competitive advantage,
adequately protect ourintellectual property or detect or prevent circunmvention or unauthorized use
of such property, could adversely impact our competitive position and results of operations. We
also rely on nondisclosure and noncompetition agreements with employees, consultants and other
parties to protect, in part, trade secrets and other proprietary rights. There can be no assurance that.
these agreements will adequately protect our trade secrets and other proprietary rights and will not
be breached, that we will have adequate remedies forany breach, that others will not independently
develop substantially equivalent proprietary information or that third parties will not otherwise
gain access to our trade secrets or other proprietary rights.

As we expand our business, protecting our intellectual property will become increasingly
important. The protective steps we have taken may be inadequate to deter our competitors from
using our proprietary infonmation. In order to protect or enforce our patent rights, we may be
required to initiate litigation against third parties, such as infringement lawsuits. Also, these third
parties may assert claims against us with or without provocation. These lawsuits could be
expensive, take significant time and could divert management’s attention from other business
concems. The law relating to the scope and validity of claims in the technology field in which we
operate is still evolving and, consequently, intellectual property positions in our industry are
generally uncertain. We cannot assure you that we will prevail in any of these potential suits or
that the damages or other remedies awarded, if any, would be commercially valuable.
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Fromtime o time. third parties nay daimihat ane or nore ol our produd's ar services infringe
Any dispute or litigation regarding patents or other intellectual property could be costly and time-
consuming due to the complexity of our technology and the uncertainty of intellectual property
litigation and could divert. our management and key personnel from our business operations. A
claim of intellectual property infringement could force us to enterinio a costly orrestrictive license
agreement, which might not be available under acceptable terms or at all, could require us to
redesign our products, which would be costly and time-consuming, and/or could subject us to an
Injunction ageinst development and sale of certain of our products or services. We may have to
pay substantial damages, including damages for past infringement if it is ultimately determined
that our products infringe on a third party’s proprietary rights. Even if these claims are without
merit, defending a lawsuit takes significant time, may be expensive and may divert management's
attention from other business concems. Any public announcements related to litigation or
interference proceedings initiated or threatened against us could cause our business to be harmed.
Our intellectual property portfolio may not be useful in asserting a counterclaim, or negotiating a
license, in response to a claim of intellectual property infringement. In certain of our businesses
we rely on third party intellectual property licenses and we cannot ensure that these licenses will
be available to us in the future on favorable terms or at all.

Although dependent an cafain key pasamd, the Campany does nol have any key nan life
The Compeny is dependent on certain members of its management team, including Fatih Akol, in
order to conduct its operations and execute its business plan, however, the Compeny has not
purchased any insurance policies with respect to those individuals in the event of their death or
disability. Therefore, if any of these individuals die or become disabled, the Comparty will not
receive any compensation to assist with such person’s absence. The loss of such person could
negatively affect the Company and its operations. We have not entered into employment
agreements with any of our key employees.

We are suljedt o inoone laxes as well as narrinoome based laxes such as payrall, sales use
value-added, net worth, property and goods and services laxes, in the ULS.

Significant judgment is required in determining our provision for income taxes and other tax
liabilities. In the ordinary course of our business, there are many transactions and calculations
where the ultimate tax determination is uncertain. Although we believe that our tax estimates are
reasonahle: (i) there is no assurance that the final determination of tax audits or tax disputes will
not be different from what is reflected in our income tax provisions, expense amounts for non-
income based taxes and accruals and (ii) any matenial differences could have an adverse effect on
our financial position and results of operations in the period or periods for which detenmination is
made.

We are nol sulyed to Sarbanes-Oxdey requilations and ladk the finandal conirols and safequards
ired of bl "

We do not have the intemal infrastructure necessary, and are not required, to complete an

attestation about our financial controls that would be required under Section 404 of the Sarbanes-

Oxley Act of 2002. There can be no assurance that there are no significant deficiencies or material

weaknesses in the quality of our financial confrols. We expect to incur additional expenses and
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diversion of management’s time if and when it becomes necessary to perform the system and
process evaluation, testing and remediation required in order to comply with the menmagement
certificalion and auditor attestation requirements.

The Conpany has indicaied that it has engaged in oariain transadtions with related peasons
We have primarily relied on Faith Akol, our Co- Founder, Chainman and CEQ, to provide ourshort-
term financing for operations. We may need to continue to reply on Mr: Akol's financial support,
however, we cannot guarantee that such financial support will be made available or on terms
acceptable to the Company or its stockholders. These transactions have a potential conflict of
interest. We anticipate using a portion of the proceeds from this Offering to repay our debt to Mr.
Akol, which may be considered an imregular use of proceeds. Please see the section of this
Memorandim entitled "Transactions with Related Persons and Conflicts of Interest" for further
details.

We face risls related io health epidamics and other ouitrealks, which could significanily disupt
the Canmpany’s opexations and could have a naiarial adverse impadt an us.

The outbreak of pandemics and epidemics could materially and adversely affect the Company’'s
business, financial condition, and resulis of operations. If a pandemic occurs in areas in which we
have material operations or sales, the Company’s business activities originating from affected
areas, including sales, matenals, and supply chain related activities, could be adversely affected.
Disnuptive activities could include the temporary closure of facilities used in the Company’s
supply chain processes, resirictions on the export or shipment of products necessary to nn the
Company’s business, business closures in impacted areas, and resirictions on the Compeny’s
employees’ or consultants’ ahility to travel and to meet with customers, vendors or other business
relationships. The extent to which a pandemic or other health outhreak impacts the Compary’s
results will depend on future developments, which are highly unocertain and cannot be predicted,
including new information which may emerge conceming the severity of a virus and the actions
to contain it or treat its impact, among others. Pandemics can also result in social, economniic, and
labor instahility which may adversely impact the Company’s business.

If the Company’s employees or employees of any of the Conipany’s vendors, suppliers or
customers become ill or are quarantined and in either or both events are therefore unable to work,

the Company’ s operations could be subject to disruption. The extent to which a pandeniic affects
the Company’ s results will depend on future devel opments that are highly uncertain and cannot be
predicted.

Cydical and seasonal fluchmations in the econony; in inlernel usage and in iradilional reiail
shopping nay have an effect an our usiness. Both cydlical and seasonal fluctuations in infemet
usage and traditional retail seasonality may affect our business. Intemet usage generally slows
during the summer months, and queries typically increase significantly in the fourth quarter of
each year. These seasonal trends may cause fluctuations in our quarterly results, including
fluctuations in revenues.
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Mainiaining extending and expanding our repuiation and Irand inage are essential o our
Inrsiness suooess,

We seek to maintain, extend, and expand our brand image through marketing investments,

including advertising and consumer promotions, and product innovation. Increasing attention on
marketing could adversely affect our brand image. It could also lead to siricter regulations and
greater scrutiny of marketing practices. Existing orincreased legal orregulatory restrictions on our
advertising, consumer promotions and marketing, or our response to those restrictions, could limit
our efforts to maintain, extend and expand our brands. Moreover, adverse publicity about
regulatory orlegal action against us could damage our reputation and brand image, undermine our
customers’ confidence and reduce long-term demand for our products, even if the regulatory or
legal action is unfounded or not material to our operations.

In addition, our success in maintaining, extending, and expanding our brand image depends on our
ability to adapt to a rapidly changing media erwvironment. We increasingly rely on social media
and online dissemination of advertising canpaigns. The growing use of social and digital media
increases the speed and extent that information or misinformation and opinions can be shared.
Negative posts or comments about us, our brands or our products on social or digital media,
whether or not valid, could seriously damage our brands and reputation. If we do not establish,
maintain, extend and expand our brand image, then our product sales, financial condition and
results of operations could be adversely affected.

affer new produdis o meet those changes, and respond o conpeditive innovation

Consumer preferences our products change continually. Our success depends on our ability to
predict, identify, and interpret the habits of consumers and to offer products that appeal to
consumer preferences. If we do not offer products that appeal to consumers, our sales and market
share will decrease. We must distinguish between short-term fads, mid-term trends, and long-term
changes in consumer preferences. If we do not accurately predict which shifts in consumer
preferences will be long-term, orif we fail to introduce new and improved products to satisfy those
preferences, our sales could decline. In addition, because of our varied customer base, we must
offer an anay of products that satisfy the broad spectrum of consumer preferences. If we fail to
expand our product offerings successfully across product categories, or if we do not rapidly
develop products in faster growing and more profitable categories, demand for our products could
decrease, which could materially and adversely affect our product sales, financial condition, and
results of operations.

In addition, achieving growth depends on oursuccessiul development, introduction, and marketing
of ilmmovative new products and line extensions. Successful innovation depends on our ability to
correctly anticipate customer and consumer acceptance, to obtain, protect and maintain necessary
intellectual property rights, and to avoid infringing the intellectual property rights of others and
failure to do so could compromise our competitive position and adversely impact our business.

We spend substantial resources ensuring that we comply with govermmental safety regulations,

mohile and stationary source emissions regulations, and other standards. Compliance with

govemmental standards, however, does not necessarily prevent individual or class actions, which

can entail significant cost and risk. In certain circumstances, courts may penmit tort claims even
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where our vehicles comply with federal and/or other applicable law. Litigation also is inherently
expensive and umcertain, and we could experience significant adverse results, including negative
public opinion.

We are dependent on infelleciual properly righis, induding licenses that are aitical o our
respedive Ixssinesses and conpeditive positions.

Notwithstanding our intellectual property portfolio, our competitors may develop similar or
superior proprietary technologies. Further, as we expand into regions where the protection of
intellectual property rights is less robust, the risk of others replicating our proprietary technologies
increases, which could result in a deterioration of our competitive position. We may assert claims
against third perties who are taking actions that we believe are infringing on our intellectual
property rights ormay have such claims asserted against us. Claims are costly to prosecute, defend
or settle and divert the efforts and attention of our management and employees. Claims of this sort
also could harm our relationships with our customers and might deter fubure customers from doing
business with us. If any such claim were to result in an adverse outcome, we may have to develop
or license non-infringing products; pay damages to third parties, or cease the mamuifacture, use or
sale of the infringing products. Any of the foregoing results could have a material adverse effect
on our business, financial condition, results of operations or our competitive position.

Many of our supply agreements require us to indemnify our customers and distributors from third-
party infringement claims, and require that we defend those claims and might require that we pay
damages in the case of adverse rulings. Claims are costly to prosecute, defend or settle and divert
the efforts and attention of our management and employees. Claims of this sort also could hamm
our relationships with our customers and might deter future customers from doing business with
Us.

As a provider of glabal logidlics services we deperxd on a variely of asset-based third party
The quality and profitability of our services depend upon effective selection, management and
discipline of third party suppliers. In recent years, many of our third party service providers have
incurred significant operaling losses and are highly leveraged with debt. Changes in the financial
stahility, operating capabilities and capacity of assef-based camriers and space allotment made
available to us by asset-based camiers could affect us in unpredictable ways, including volatility
of pricing, and challenge our ahility to achieve profitahility.

Denand for and pricing of our produdis are suljed io econamic conditions and other fadors
resant in the various narlets where the produds are sold

Demand for our products is subject to the level of consumer demands for airline tickets, hotel
bookings and car rental bookings. The level of new purchases is cyclical, affected by such factors
as general economic conditions. Consumer preferences also impact the demand fornew purchases.
A decrease in demand due to any of these factors would have a negative effect on our business and
operations.
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Intemational conflicts such as the war in the Middle Fast, political turmoil in the Middle and Far
East and the possihility of fubure terrorist attacks cause significant uncertainty with respect to U.S.
and other business and financial markets and may adversely affect our business. These
intermational conflicts also affect the price of oil, which has a significant impact on the financial
health of our commmercial customers. Although our online travel agency business may experience
greater demand for its products as a result of increased govemment. defense spending, factors
arising (directly orindirectly) from intemational conflicts or terrorism which may adversely affect
our commertial business include reduced aircraft build rates, upgrades, maintenance and spending
on discretionary products such as airline tickets, hotel bookings and car rental bookings, as well
as increases in the cost of property and aviation products insurance and increased restrictions
placed on our insurance policies.

Changes in Enployment Laws ar Requilation Could Harm Parfarmmance.

Varous federal and state labor laws (both in the U.S. and in locations where we have enployees)
govem the Compary's relationship with its employees, consultants and affect operating costs. These
laws include mininmum wage requirements, overtime pay, healthcare reform and the implementation
of the Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act, unemployment tax rates, workers' compensation
rates, citizenship requirements, union membership and sales taxes. Non-US regulations also impact
our operations. A mumber of factors could adversely affect the Company's operating results,
including our mischaracterization of consultants under applicable employment laws and
regulations, additional government-imposed increases in mininum wages, overtime pay, paid
leaves of absence and mandated health benefits, mandated training for employees, increased tax
reporting and tax payment, chanmging regulations from the National Labor Relations Board and
increased employee litigation including claims relating to the Fair Labor Standards Act, as well as
requirements imposed in countries outside of the United States where we have employees and
consultants.

We have significant foumder delit that becomnes die at the end of this year.

We have a $600,000 line of credit with our founder which has a mahurity date of December 31,
2023. As of June 30, 2023, there was approximately $556,500 in principal amount outstanding
(excluding accrued interest). The Company expects to take out additional advances under this
arrangement to cover offering expenses and to cover working capital. The Company plans to use
a portion of the proceeds from this Offering to repay this loan once we raise $500,000 in this
Offering. We cannot predict whether the company will need to draw additional advances under
this loan prior to termination of this Offering. Repayment of this loan would remove cash from
the Company to fund operations and would be considered inregular uses of proceeds if we use
proceeds from the Offering to repay the debt.

The Canpany's Business Plan Is Speailative.
The Company's present business and plarmed business are speculative and subject to mumnerous
risks and uncertainties. There is no assurance that the Compary will generate significant revenues
or profits. An investiment in the Compeny's Securities is speculative and there is no assurance that
investors will obtain any retiim on their investment. Investors will be subject to substantial risks
involved in an investment in the Company, including the risk of losing their entire investiment.
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The Conpany's Enployees Exeadive Officas Diredors and Affiliate  Sioddholdeas
Bendfidally Own ar Canirol a Subsiantial Partion of Tts Ouisianding Seamnifies.

The Company's employees, executive officers, directors and/or affiliates beneficially own or
control a significant portion of the Company's outstanding shares of stock before the Offering and
will continue to maintain control over the voting shares after the Offering. This concentration of
ownership will limit your ability and the ability of the Company's other stockholders, whether
acting alone ortogether, to propose or direct the management or overall direction of the Compeany.
Additionally, this concentration of ownership could discourage or prevent a potential merger or
aoquisition of the Compeny that might otherwise result in an investor receiving a premium over the
market price for his or her Securities. Fatih Akol, ourfounder, CEO, Chainman and sole director; will
maintain control over the Comparny. Accordingly, Mr. Akol is expected continue to have the power
to control the election of the Compary's directors and the approval of actions for which the approval
of the Company's stockholders is required. The Shares being issued in the Offering are non-voting.
If you acquire the Securities, you will have no effective voice in the management of the Compary.
Such concentrated control of the Compearny may adversely affect the value of the Company's securities
and could also limit the price that investors might be willing to pay in the fubure for the Conpany.

The Canpany's Enployees May Engage in Misoondid ar Inpropar Adivilies

The Company, like any business, is exposed to the nisk of employee or confractor fraud or other
misconduct. Misconduct by employees or coniractors could include infentional failures to comply
with laws or regulations, provide accurate information to regulators, comply with applicable
standards, report financial information or data accurately or disclose unauthorized activities to the
Compeny. In particular, sales, marketing and business arrangements are subject to extensive laws and
requlations intended to prevent frand, misconduct, Kkickbacks, self-dedling and other abusive
practices. These laws and regulations may resirict or prohihit a wide range of pricing, discounting,
marketing and promotion, sales commission, customer incentive programs and other business
arrangements. Employee misconduct could also involve improper or illegal activities which could
result in regulatory sanctions and harm to the Compeany's reputation.

The Company may provide for the indenmnification of directors, officers and others to the fullest
extent permitted by law and, to the extent permitied by such law, eliminate or limit the personal
liability of managers, officers and others to the Company and its stockholders for monetary
damages for certain breaches of fiduciary duty. Such indemmification may be available for
liabilities arising in connection with this Offering. Insofar as indenmification for liahilities arising
under the Securities Act may be permitted to directors, officers or others controlling or working
with the Company pursuant to the foregoing provisions, the Company has been informed that in
the opinion of the Securities and Exchange Commiission such indemmnification is against public
policy as expressed in the Securities Act and is therefore unenforceable. Despite this, should the
Company provide such indemmification, it could have a material adverse effect on the Compary.

Use af Prooeeds io Repay Delit:
As detailed in the “Uses of Proceeds” section of this document, the Company intends to use
proceeds from this Offering to repay the line of credit entered into with Mr. Akol. These payments
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would be made directly to Mr. Akol and consequently would be considered to be “inregular uses
of proceeds.” The Company does not intend to begin repaying any of this debt until it has raised
$500,000 in the Offering. Please see “Uses of Proceeds” below.

Siale and fedaral seanilies laws are conplex, and the Campany oould poienitially be foumd o
have not conplied with all rdlevant slale and fedaral seamities law in mior offaings of
iti

The Company has conducted previous offerings of securities and may not have complied with all
relevant state and federal securities laws. If a court orregulatory body with the required jurisdiction
ever concluded that the Company may have violated state or federal securities laws, any such
violation could result in the Company being required to offer rescission rights to investors in such
offering. If such investors exercised their rescission rights, the Company would have to pay to
such investors an amount of funds equal to the purchase price paid by such investors plus interest
from the date of any such purchase. No assurances can be given the Company will, if it is required
to offer such investors a rescission right, have sufficient funds to pay the prior investors the
amounts required or that proceeds from this Offering would not be used to pay such amounts. In
addition, if the Company violated federal or state securities laws in connection with a prior offering
and/or sale of its securities, federal or state regulators could bring an enforoement, regulatory
and/or other legal action against the Company which, among other things, could result in the
Company having to pay substantial fines and be prohibited from selling securities in the fubure.

Our Target Offaring Anoumit Is Setf at a Low Threshold

Our Target Offering Amount. has been set at a threshold that will allow us to close on funds quickly.
Except as set forth in the discussion of the Use of Proceeds, we are not expecting to accomplish
any significant business goals with the funds we accept if it is limited to the Target Offering
Amount. We anticipate the need to raise at least $500,000 in the Offering to be able to obtain the
following mininmim business goals. development of new features for our web-app and mohile app
to organically scale the business. Y our investment could be at risk if we do not raise additional
funds above the Target Offering Amount.

Risks Related to the Seanrities

The Sexies B Non-Voling Cannon Stodk will not be fredly tradable umtil one year from the
Y ou should be aware of the long-term nahure of this investment. There is not now and likely will
not be a public market for the Securities. Because the Securities have not been registered under
the Securities Act or under the securities laws of any state or non-United States junisdiction, the
Securities have transfer restrictions and carmot be resold in the United States except pursuant to
Rule 501 of Regulation CF. It is not currently contemplated that registration under the Securities
Act or other securities laws will be effected. Limitations on the transfer of the Securities may also
adversely affect the price that you might be able to obtain for the Securities in a private sale.
Purchasers should be aware of the long-term nature of their investiment in the Company. Each
Purchaser in this Offering will be required to represent that it is purchasing the Secunities forits
own account, for investment purposes and not with a view to resale or distribution thereof.
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The U.S. Seaunities and Exchange Cammmission does not pass upon the mmexits of any seauwilies
dalfered ar the tams of the Offaing nor does it pass upon the acamracy ar conpleleness of any
Offering document or literaiure.

Y ou should not rely on the fact that the Company’s Form C is accessible through the U.S.
Securities and Exchange Commission’s EDGAR filing system as an approval, endorsement. or
guarantee of compliance as it relates to this Offering.

Iaws, leading to an absence of ceriain requilation applicahle to the Canmpary.

No govemmental agency has reviewed or passed upon this Offering, the Company or any
Securities of the Company. The Conipany also has relied on exemptions from securities
registration requirements under applicable state securities laws. Inwvestors in the Compeny,
therefore, will not receive any of the benefits that such registration would otherwise provide.
Prospective investors must therefore assess the adequacy of disclosure and the faimess of the terms
of this Offering on their own or in conjunction with their personal advisors.

No Guarantee of Refirn on Investiment

There is no assurance that a Purchaser will realize a retum on its investment or that it will not lose
its entire investment. For this reason, each Purchaser should read the Form C and all Exhibits
carefully and should consult with its own attomey and business advisor prior to making any
investment decision.

Since the Issuer is the Securities on a "best efforts" basis, there is no assurance that it will sell
enough Securities to meet the Comipany’ s capital needs. If you purchase Securities in this Offering,
you will do so without any assurance that the Conparty will raise enough money to satisfy the full
Use of Proceeds which the Company has outlined in this Form C orto meet the Compary's working
capital needs.

A nnjorily of the Canpany is onned by a soall mmmber of owners.

Priorto the Offering the Conpany’ s current owners of 20% or more beneficially own up to 74.8%
of the Company. Subject to any fiduciary duties owed to our other owners or investors under
Delaware law, these owners meay be able to exercise significant. influence over matters requining
owner approval, including the election of directors or managers and approval of significant
Comparny transactions, and will have significant control over the Company’s management and
policies. Some of these persons may have interests that are different from yours. For example,
these owners may support proposals and actions with which you may disagree. The concentration
of ownership could delay or prevent a change in control of the Comparty or otherwise discourage
a potential acquirer from attempting to obtain control of the Company, which in tum could reduce
the price potential investors are willing to pay for the Company. In addition, these owners could
use their voting influence to maintain the Company’s existing management, delay or prevent
changes in control of the Company, or support or reject other management and board proposals
that are subject to owner approval.
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The Compeny has significant discretion over the net proceeds of this Offering. Asis the case with
any business, particularly one without a proven business model, it should be expected that certain
expenses unforeseeable to management at this juncture will arise in the fubure. There can be no
assurance that management’s use of proceeds generated through this Offering will prove optimal
or translate into revenue or profitability for the Company. Y ou are urged to review the Use of
Proceeds in this Offering Staterment. but to umderstand that the actual use of the net proceeds of this
Offering may vary significantly. In all cases, Investors should consult with their attomeys,
accountants and personal investment advisors prior to making any decision to invest in the
Company.

There is no present narket far the Seamnities and we have arlitrarily set the price.

We have arhitrarily set the price of the Seaurities with reference to the general status of the
securities market and other relevant factors. The Offering price for the Securities should not be
considered an indication of the actual value of the Securities and is not based on the Company’s
net worth or prior eamings. We cannot assure you that the Securities could be resold by you at the
price you paid for the Securities or at any other price. The company has set the price of its Series
B Non-voting Common Stock at $1.20 per share, plus a three and one half percent (3.5%), upto a
maxinum of $350.80, Investor Transaction Fee, see “The Offering and The Securities” for further
details on this fee. This fee is intended to offset transaction costs and though this fee is counted
towards the amount the company is seeking to raise under Regulation Crowdfunding and the limit
each investor may invest pursuant to Regulation Crowdfunding, we did not value it in determining
our valuation. Including this fee will increase our valuation for which you are paying for shares
in our company accordingly. Valuations for companies at this stage are generally purely
speculative. Ourvaluation has not been validated by any independent third party and may decrease
precipitously in the future. It is a question of whetheryou, the investor, are willing to pay this price
for a perventage ownership of a start-up compeny.

The Investor Transadlian Fee may not count toward your cost basis for tax purposes. The IRS
and/or another relevant tax authority may consider the price of the share before including the
Investor Transaction Fee as the cost basis for determining any gain or loss at a realization event.
Y ou should discuss with your tax advisor the appropriate way to determine the relevant tax
obligation.

Your onnaship of the Shares will be sulyed o dilufion

Owners of the Shares do not have preemptive rights. If the Company conducts subsequent
offerings of or securities convertible into, issues shares pursuant to a compensation or distribution
reinvestment plan or otherwise issues additional shares, investors who purchase Securities in this
Offering who do not participate in those other stock issuances will experience dilution in their
percentage ownership of the Comparny’s oulstanding shares. Furthermore, stockholders may
experience a dilution in the value of their shares depending on the terms and pricing of any future
share issuances (including the shares being sold in this Offering) and the value of the Company’s
assets at the time of issuance.

Your onnarship nay be significantly diliited as a consequience of subsequient finanaings.

The Company’s equity securities will be subject to dilution. The Company intends to issue

additional equity to employees and third-party financing sources in amounts that are uncertain at

this time and, as a consequence, holders of the Securities will be subject to dilufion in an
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unpredictable amount. Y ou may be subject to further dilution if we issue awards under our equity
compensation plan. Such dilution may reduce the Investor’s economic interest in the Compeany.
The amount of additional financing needed by the Company will depend upon several
contingencies not foreseen at the time of this Offering. Generally, additional finencing (whether
in the form of loans or the issuance of other securities) will be infended to provide the Conpany
with enough capital to reach the next major corporate milestone. If the funds received in this
Offering orany additional financing are not sufficient to meet the Company’ s needs, the Company
may have to raise additional capital at a price unfavorable to the Company’s existing investors,
including the holders of the Securities. The availability of capital is at least partially a function of
capital market conditions that are beyond the control of the Compeany. There can be no assurance
that the Company will be able to accurately predict the fuhure capital requirements necessary for
success or that additional funds will be available from any source. Failure to obtain financing on
favorable terms could dilute or otherwise severely impair the value of the Securities.

Fulure fimdraising nay affed the righis of Investors,

In order to expand, the Company is likely to raise fumds again in the fuhure, either by offerings of
securities or through borrowing from banks or other sources. The terms of fuiure capital raising,
such as loan agreements, may include covenants that give creditors greater ights over the finencial
resources of the Company than the rights of the Investors.

The Seaurities will ramk junior to all existing and fuiure indebtedness and other non-equity claims
on the Company with respect to assets available to satisfy claims on the Company, including in a
liquidation of the Compeny. Additionally, unlike indebtedness, for which principal and interest
would customarily be payable on specified due dates, there will be no specified payments of
dividends with respect to the Securities and dividends are payable only if, when and as authorized
and declared by the Company and depend on, among other matters, the Conpany’s historical and
projected results of operations, liquidity, cash flows, capital levels, financial condition, debt
service requirements and other cash needs, financing covenants, applicable state law, federal and
stafte regulatory prohibitions and other restrictions and any other factors the Compeany’s board of
directors deems relevant at the time. In addition, the terms of the Securities will not limit the
amount of debt or other obligations the Company may incur in the fuhmre. Accordingly, the
Company may incur substantial amounts of additional debt and other obligations that will rank
senior to the Securities.

There can be no assurance that we will ever provide liquidily io Purchasars through dther a
sale af the Conpanty ar a registration of the Seanitfies.

There can be no assurance that any form of merger, combination, or sale of the Company will take
place, or that any merger, combination, or sale would provide liquidity for Purchasers.
Futhermore, we may be unable to register the Securities for resale by Purchasers for legal,
commertial, regulatory, market-related or other reasons. In the event that we are unable to effect
a registration, Purchasers could be unable to sell their Securities unless an exemption from
registration is available.

by law;

Investors will not have the right to inspect the books and records of the Compeny or to receive
financial or other information from the Company, other than as required by law. Other security
holders of the Company may have such rights. Regulation CF requires only the provision of an
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annual report on Form C and no additional information. Additionally, there are muumerous methods
by which the Company can terminate annual report obligations, resulting in limited to no
information rights, contractual, statutory or otherwise, owed to Investors. This lack of information
could put Investors at a disadvantage in general and with respect to other security holders,
including certain security holders who have rights to periodic financial statements and updates
from the Company such as quarterly unaudited financials, annual projections and budgets, and
monthly progress reports, among other things. In addition, the Company is not cunrently subjject
to the reporting requirements of the Exchange Act. Therefore, Investors may not have acocess to
information to which they would have access if the invesiment were made in a publicly held
company whose offering was issued under the Exchange Act, and who is subject to the reporting
regulations provided by the Exchange Act.

The Shares in This Offering are Non-Voling and Have No Proleclive Provisians,

The Shares in this Offering are non-voting and have no protective provisions. As such, you will
not be afforded protection, by any provision of the Shares or as a Stockholder, in the event of a
transaction that may adversely affect you, including a reorganization, restruchuring, merger or
other similar transaction involving the Company. If there is a "liquidation event," or "change of
control" for the Company, the Shares being offered do not provide you with any protection and
those transactions may trigger the drag-along provisions applicable to the Shares. In addition, there
are no provisions attached to the Securities in the Offering that would permit you to require the
Company to repurchase the Securities in the event of a takeover, recapitalization or similar
transaction involving the Company.

You Will Need To Keep Recards Of Your Invesiiment Far Tax Prrposes.

Aswith all investments in securities, if you sell the Securities, you will probably need to pay tax
on the long-term or short-term capital gains that you realize if sold at a profit orset any loss against
other income. If you do not have a regular brokerage account, or your regular broker will not hold
the Securities foryou, there will be nobody keeping records for you for tax purposes, and you will
have to keep your own records and calculate the gain on any sales of any securities you sell.

You Should Be Aware of The Long-Termn Nahwe of This Irvestien.

There is not now, and may never be, a public market for the Securities. Because the Securities are
being sold under exemptions to registration, and therefore have not been registered under the
Securities Act or under the securities laws of any state or non-United States jurisdiction, the
Securities may have certain transfer restrictions. It is not currently contemplated that registration
under the Securities Act or other securities laws will occur for the Secunities. Limitations on the
transfer of the Securities may also adversely affect the price that you might be able to obtain for
the Secunities in a sale in the future. Investors in the Company, therefore, will not receive ary of
the benefits that such registration would otherwise provide. You must assess the adequacy of
disclosure and the faimess of the terms of this Offering on your own or in conjunction with your
personal advisors. You should be aware of the long-term nahmre of your investment in the
Company.

The Conpary does not anfidpate paying any cash dividends for the foreseeable fulure.

The Company currently intends to retain future eamings, if any, for the foreseeable fuire, to repay
indebtedness and to support its business. The Company does not intend in the foreseeable fuhure
to pay any dividends.
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Tax Issues The federal and state tax implications of an investment in the Securities are
complicated and the Compeany is not providing any advice to investors regarding such
implications. You are urged to seek tax advice from your attormey or other advisors prior o
investing in the Securities.

The Subsription Agrearrent has a farumsdledion provision that requiires dispuies be resolved in
slale ar fedaral omuts in the Slale of Delamare regardless of canenience ar aosl o you, the

Imvesion:

In orderto invest in this offering, investors agree to resolve disputes ansing under the Subscription
Agreement in state or federal courts located in the State of Delaware, for the purpose of any suit,
action or other proceeding arising out of or based upon the agreement, including those related
federal securities laws. Section 22 of the Securities Act creates concurrent jurisdiction for federal
and state courts over all suits brought to enforce any duty or liahility created by the Securities Act
or the rules and regulations thereunder. We believe that the exclusive forum provision applies to
claims arising underthe Securities Act, but there is uncertainty as to whether a court would enforce
such a provision in this context. Investors will not be deemed to have waived the Comparny's
compliance with the federal securities laws and the rules and regulations thereunder. This forum
selection provision mey limit your ability to obtain a favorable judicial forum for disputes with us.
Altematively, if a court were to find the provision inapplicable to, or unenforceable in an action,
we may incur additional costs associated with resolving such matiers in other junsdictions, which
could adversely affect our business, financial condition or results of operations.

Invesiors in this Offering may not be entitled 1o a jury trial with respect o dains arising under
the Subsaription Agreement, which could result in less favarable outoomes o the plaintiffs) in
any adion under the agreermeni.

Investors in this Offering will be bound by the Subscription A greement, which includes a provision
under which investors waive the right to a jury frial of any claim they may heve against the
Company arising out of or relating to the agreement, including any claims made under the federal
securities laws. By signing the agreement, the investor warrants that the investor has reviewed this
waiverwith his or her legal counsel, and knowingly and voluntarily waives the investor's jury trial
rights following consultation with the investor's legal counsel.

If we opposed a jury trial demand based on the waiver, a court would determine whether the waiver
was enforveable based on the facts and circumstances of that case in acoordance with the applicable
state and federal law. To our knowledge, the enforceability of a contractual pre-dispute jury trial
waiver in cormection with claims ansing under the federal seaurities laws has not been formally
adjudicated by a federal court. However, we believe that a contrachual pre-dispute jury trial waiver
provision is generally enforceable, including under the laws of the State of Delaware, which goverms
the agreement. In defermining whether to enforce a contractual pre-dispute jury tral weaiver
provision, courts will generally consider whether the visihility of the jury trial waiver provision
within the agreement is sufficienily prominent such that a party knowingly, intelligently and
voluntarily waived the right to a jury irial. We believe that this is the case with respect to the
Subscription Agreement. You should consult legal counsel regarding the jury waiver provision
before entering into the Subscription Agreement.

If you bring a claim against the Compeny in cormection with matiers arising under the agreement,

including claims under the federal securities laws, you may not be entitled to a jury trial with

respect to those claims, which may have the effect of limiting and discouraging lawsuits against

the Company. If a lawsuit is brought against the Company under the agreement, it may be heard
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only by a judge or justice of the applicable trial court, which would be conducted according to
different civil procedures and may result in different outcomes than a trial by jury would have had,
including results that could be less favorable to the plaintiff(s) in such an action.

Nevertheless, if the jury trial waiver provision is not permitted by applicable law, an action could
proceed under the terms the agreement with a jury trial. No condition, stipulation or provision of
the Subscription Agreement. serves as a waiver by any holder of the Compeny's securities, or by
the Company, of compliance with any substantive provision of the federal securities laws and the
rules and regulations promulgated under those laws.

delermmination of an Invesior’s sophisiication.

The Issuer may prevent any [nvestor from committing more than a certain amount. in this Offering
based on its determination of the Investor’s sophistication and ability to assume the risk of the
investiment. This means that your desired investment amount may be limited or lowered based
solely on the Issuer’s determination and not in line with relevant. investment limits set forth by the
Regulation Crowdifunding rules. This also meens that other Investors may receive larger
allocations of the Offering based solely on the Issuer’ s determination.

The Conpany has the right. io extend the Offering Deadline. The Carmpany has the right o end
the Offaring early.

The Compeny may exiend the Offering Deadline beyond what is cunrently stated herein, if
permitied to do so under Regulation Crowdfunding. This means that yourinvestment may continue
to be held in escrow while the Conipany attempts to raise the Target Offering Amount even after
the Offering Deadline stated herein is reached. While you have the right to cancel your investment.
in the event the Compeany extends the Offering Deadline, if you choose to reconfirm your
investment it will not be accruing interest during this time and will simply be held until such time
as the new Offering Deadline is reached without the Company receiving the Target Offering
Amount, at which time it will be refumed to you without interest or deduction, or the Conparny
receives the Target Offering Amount, at which time it will be released to the Company to be used
as set forth herein. Upon or shortly after the release of such funds to the Company, the Securities
will be issued and distributed to you.

The Compeny may also end the Offering eanly. If the Offering reaches its Target Offering Amount
after 21 calendar days, but before the Offering Deadline, the Company can end the Offering by
providing notice to the Investors 5 business days priorto the end of the Offering. This means your
failure to participate in the Offering in a timely manner may prevent you from being able to
participate - it also means the Company may limit the amount of capital it can raise during the
Offering by ending the Offering early.

The Conpany Has The Righi: To Canduct Midtiple “Rolling” Closings During The Offering

If the Company meets certain tenms and conditions an intemmediate close of the Offering can occur;
which will allow the Company to draw down on the proceeds of the Offering committed and
captured during the relevant period. The Company intends to engage in rolling closings after the
Target Offering Amount and other conditions are met. Investors should be mindful that this means
they can make nmuiltiple investment commitments in the Offering, which may be subject to different
cancellation rights. For exanple, if an intermediate close occurs and later a material change occurs
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as the Offering continues, Investors previously closed upon will not have the right to re-confirm
orwithdraw theirinvestment as it will be deemed completed.

Material Changes to the Offeringwill Cancel Pending Invesimenis Unless You Reconfirm Your
Cormmitiment.

Material changes to an offering include but are not limited to: A change in mininmmm offering
amount, change in the security price, change in management, material change to financial
information, etc. If the Company makes a material change to the offering terms or other
information disclosed, including a change to the offering deadline, investors will be given five (5)
business days to reconfinn their investiment commitment. If investors do not reconfinm, their
investment will be cancelled and the funds will be rebumed.

In addition to the risks listed above, businesses are often subject to risks not foreseen or fully
appreciated by the management. It is not possible to foresee all risks that may affect us. Moreover;
the Company cannot predict whether the Company will successfully effectuate the Compary’s
current business plan. Each prospective Purchaser is encouraged to carefully analyze the risks and
merits of an investment in the Securities and should take into consideration when making such
analysis, among other, the Risk Factors discussed above.

THE SECURITIES OFFERED INVOLVE A HIGH DEGREE OF RISK AND MAY RESULT
IN THE LOSS OF YOUR ENTIRE INVESTMENT. ANY PERSON CONSIDERING THE
PURCHASE OF THESE SECURITIES SHOULD BE AWARE OF THESE AND OTHER
FACTORS SET FORTH IN THIS FORM C AND SHOULD CONSULT WITH HIS OR HER
LEGAL, TAX AND FINANCIAL ADVISORS PRIOR TO MAKING AN INVESTMENT IN
THE SECURITIES. THE SECURITIES SHOULD ONLY BE PURCHASED BY PERSONS
WHO CANAFFORD TO LOSE ALL OF THEIR INVESTMENT.

BUSINESS

Desaription of the Business

Roboair is a travel technology company dedicated to disnupting the online travel industry.
Travelers can access flights, stays, car rentals, and travel bundles from a multitude of sources
(GDS, Direct Connections) globally through our web-app and mobile app Robo.

Business Plan - The Company

The Company plans to grow its business by offering competitive pricing, atiractive membership
benefits and by providing a superior user experience. Future business plans include:

e Expanding our supplier network and Traveler Distribution System by integrating more
airlines, hotels, car-rental companies, wholesalers and other travel service providers.

¢ Integrating blockchain infrastructure to become the first on-chain travel company globally.
Offering travel products on our platform in cryptocurrencies.

¢ Promote sustainahility efforts in the industry by fostering a community of responsible
travelers and showcasing sustainable travel options.
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¢ ReLamch RoboMarket, a markeiplace for all things travel which will feature travel
Iundles, select deals for select destinations, discount codes for travel products and various

travel products.
Long term vision of the company is to create efficiency in the travel industry by decentralizing

travel distribution. We believe decentralization will reduce intermediaries in the supply chain
reducing costs for everyone involved.

History of the Business

Roboair was founded in 2018 in Palo Alto, CA. The compeny started as a search engine for flights
and has since expanded its services to include stays, car-rentals and travel bundles.

The Campany’ s Produds and/ar Sexrvices

Produd: / Sexvice Description Current Market

The company is an Online

Airline Tickels, Hotel | Travel Agency (OTA) selling | Focus markelis USA and

. e . Europe but the website and
Bookings, Car Rental airline tickets, hotel bookings, ﬂBHEBMGaIpaIBaV il
Bookings car rental bookings and travel globll
bundles y

The Compary provides its users with a plalform where they can reach a multitude of travel
suppliers for flight bookings, hotel bookings, car rental bookings and travel bundles.

Roboair search engine queries results from GDS companies, direct integrations and other travel
suppliers in order to get the best price for each booking.

Our main distribution channels are; our mobile app “Robo and web-app “roboair.com”. Roboair
aims to make the travel booking experience superior by improving cunrent industry practices
through continous inprovement of our distribution channels.

North America is the primary focus market, however the company also aims to grow its user base
in Furope and other strategic geographical hubs.

Roboair generates revenue by acting as an intermediary between travelers and travel suppliers,

including ainlines, hotels, and car rental compenies. The Company eams a fee for each booking
made through our platform, whether it's for flights, stays, car rentals, or travel bundles.

Conpetition

The Compeny’s primary competitors are Expedia, booking.com and similar onrline booking
companies.
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In the highly competitive online travel agency sector, notable players like Booking Holdings
Group, Airbnb Group, Trip.com Group, Fxpedia Group, Skiplagged, Kiwi.com, and Travala.com
strive to caphure market share. Each company offers a range of travel services, including flight and
hotel bookings, car rentals, and packages, while implementing diverse strategies to atiract and
retain customers.

Booking Holdings Group has established itself as a leading provider, operating globally. Airbnb
Group stands out with its unique focus on short-tenm rentals and customercentric initiatives like
Airbnb Experiences. Trip.com Group emphasizes customer loyalty through programs and a user
friendly mohile app. Expedia Group offers loyalty programs and a mobile app, with room for
improvement. in Al and machine leaming integration. Skiplagged stands apart with its emphasis
on finding cheaper airfares through "hidden city" ticketing, while Kiwi.com utilizes an innovative
algorithm for a broad selection of flight options. Travala.com explores blockchainbased travel
bookings and cryptocurrency payments.

Supply Chain and Customer Base

The Company sources travel products such as flight tickets, hotel bookings, car-rentals and travel
bundles from directly integrated travel suppliers, Global Distribution Systems and travel
wholesalers.

Roboair has integrated leading airlines Norwegian Airines, British Airdines and Pegasus to its
Traveler Distribution System. This enables the Compeany to sell flight tickets from these aidines
with no intermediary. The Company aims to directly integrate more leading airlines in the near
term.

Roboairis a B2C company with +150k retuming users. The Compeny obtains customers through
advertisement, referral campaigns, competitive pricing and by providing a traveler-centric user
experience.

Intellectual Propexty

The Company is dependent on the following intellectual property:

Trademarks

Roboair (US Only) The World Wide Local (US Robo (US Only)
Only)

Governmmenital/Regulatory Approval and Conpliance

The Company is subject to laws and regulations affecting its domestic and intermational operations
in the areas of labor, advertising, digital content, consumer protection, real estate, hilling, e
commerce, promotions, quality of services, telecommumications, mobile commimications and
media, television, intellectual property ownership and infringement, tax, import and export
requirements, anfi-cormuption, foreign exchange confrols and cash repairiation restrictions, data
privacy requirements, anti-competition, environmental, health and safety. Compliance with these
laws, regulations and similar requirements may be onerous and expensive, and they may be
inconsistent. from jurisdiction to jurisdiction, further increasing the cost of compliance and doing
business.
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The Compeny is dependent on the following regulatory approvals:

Line of Business

Goveamment
Agency

Typeof
Approval

Application
Date

Grant Date

Online Travel
Agency

State of
Califomia
Department of

Seller of Travel

February 12,
2018

February 12,
2018

Justice

THC goal is to help travel ers understand encourage fair and honest commumication between travel
businesses and customers. THC is to authorize a travel agency to be in business and examine
business records.

Liticati

There are no existing legal suits pending, or to the Company’s knowledge, threatened, against the
Company.

Other

Because this Form C focuses primarily on information conceming the Company rather than the
industry in which the Company operates, potential Purchasers may wish to conduct their own
separate investigation of the Company’s industry to obtain greater insight in assessing the
Company’s prospects.

USE OF PROCEEDS

The following table lists the use of proceeds of the Offering if the Target Offering Amount and
Maximum Offering Amount are raised.

Maximum Offering Amaunt
Target Amount Raised § 20K $500K Raised $2.5M Raised Raised ($5M)
usns %% usDs % usos * usD§ 1
Dffaring Expenses
Imtermediary Fee 5 200 1.0% 5 20,000 4.0% 5 75000 3.0% § 200,000 4.0%
Imterred ary banthly Fees S 2000 100% 4,000 0.8% 5 8,000 03% & 12,000 0.2%
Escrow ARERE Fee 5 1,000 5.0% 5 1,000 0.2% 5 1000 na% 5 1,000 0.0%
et Procee: ds - 16,200  81.0% % 475,000 85.0% $2,416,000 966% § 4,787,000 95.7%
Use of Procesds from Net Proceeds
Emplayment/Salarics/Braefits 5 n0% $ 150,000 A00% § 950,000 3B0% § 1,850,000 AT.0%
Geaeral Administrative Cosis & - o.O% 5 100,000 0.0% § 200,000 BO% § 400,000 B.0%
Parketing and Sales no% 4 1660, D0 OO0% & 700,000 FRO% & 1,700,000 24.0%
Werking Capital $ 16200 BLO% 3 25,000 5.0% 5 65.000 16% § 237,000 4.7%
Debt Repayment § Dok 104, D00 20.0% & 500,000 00% 5 pOO,000 1500
Total Proceeds L 20,000 100.0% § 500,000 1000% 52,500,000 100.0% & 5,000,000 100.0%

The Use of Proceeds chart is not inclusive of fees paid for use of the Form C generation system,
payments to financial and legal service providers, and, except as described above, additional
escrow related fees, all of which were incurred in preparation of the campaign and are due in
advance of the closing of the campaign. Such fees are the responsibility of and will ultimately be
bome by the Company.

The Company does have discretion to alter the use of proceeds as set forth above.
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The Compeny may change the intended use of proceeds if its officers believe it is in the best
interests of the company. This disclosure is not intended to be binding on the Company.

Intermediary Fees: In addition to 4% commission on the amount sold in this Offering, we pay a
$2,000 monthly service fee to the Intermediary. The table above assumes we close on the Target
Offering Amount within 1 month, $500,000 within 2 months, $2,500,00 within 4 months and the
Maximum Offering Amount within 6 months. We will pay more in fees the longer it takes us to
close on the amounis outlined above. The most we would need to allocate towards this expense is
$24,000.

Escrow Fee: One-time fee of $1,000 Escrow acoount setup will come out of the proceeds raised.

Marketing and Sales: These proceeds will be used to acquire clients and market products.

Product Development: These proceeds will be used to devel op new products such as new feahures
forwebpage and mobile application, blockchain based payments infrastructure and other software
development.

Employment/Salaries/Benefits: A portion of these proceeds will be used for paying salaries of our
founders and core team members. We anticipate bringing in at least 5 new hires once we raise at
least $500,000. Once the Company raises $2,500,000, it anticipates paying founders (including
Mr. Akol) and the cunrent management team (which include two of Mr. Akol’s adult children) an
annual salary of average $75,000 each. We also expect to incur additional related costs associated
with employee benefits if we bring in full-time employees. Payment of salaries and other benefits
to our founder and management. team could be viewed to be inregular uses of proceeds. Salaries
may also be paid or increased above these amounts from successful sales and other non-offering
revenue.

Debt Servicing. We do not intend to use proceeds from the Offering to repay our debt to our
founderuntil we raise at least $500,000. Then we plan to stagger our payments as outlined above.
We will repay all of our outstanding founder debt if we raise the Maximum Offering Amount. The
amounis set forth are inclusive of interest accrued under the line of credit, but actual amounts
repaid could be more due to accrued interest. Repayment of such debt would be considered related

party transactions and inregular uses of proceeds.

Working Capital: These proceeds will be used for the company’s day-to-day operations.

Following the Offering, assuming we raise at least $500,000 we anticipate we will have enough
liquidity to execute our business plan until 2025.

The Comparny does not expect to achieve profitahility in the next 12 months, but assuming we
raise at least $600,000 in the Offering or are able to secure such funds from other resources and
are able to meet our business objectives, we anticipate becoming profitable by the beginning of
2025. However, we anticipate we will need to raise additional funds in the fuhure to support our
growth plans, even if we raise the entire $5 million in this Offering.

DIRECTORS, OFFICERS AND EMPLOYEES
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Officers and Directors of the Conpany
The officers, directors and key employees of the Compeny are listed below along with all positions

and offices held at the Company and their principal occupation and employment responsihilities
for the past three (3) years and their educational background and qualifications.

Name Poaition sl Raboair & " Past 3 yuirs Educatian

Ureversty of Mnneseds - Cartson Schocl of Meragame n Fendamerais of Marketeg {2000 - 2000

-~ Hanvard Busneas School {sading Product Devsiopment - (3060 - 30600)
- Pro f . Data Pre 1
Dr. Evren Eryurske.  Advmory Boar Srce 2022 ngl“gr:w:‘?::":: Fweaming AvstyScs & Date Integratie, Dts Procesting) | oraty of Mrinesots - Garhion Schos of Maragament Mrnesols Masagessen! inawas (1995 - 1958)
. L Uréverndy of Tenmessos-Kacorvibe MS § Po0l, Engrawing (1567 - 1854)
Hucastign (ivarsizsi Bacheior of Scierce (85, Physics {1580 . 1985}

Bl Myers Sl - sinon DR006 Caitormea Instham of Trchakagy Masiir o Boignos. Electiica: Engrendsg

Willam B. Banson Aoy Bourd Seee 2027 Contract Comgsance Oficer, Erlerpme Senioe Provder (42037 - Present] Capstone Projecs. Mars rover desgn promct. Worked with Jei Propulsion Lt |JPL) natrecor as parl
vl of Sl Apgicailion Devalopment (B0 - 172025} Uriversity of Yirgeren Bashekot of Science: Bieclrical Exgineanng
" 3 Chasirriae Do Partiiy Middle East Technacal Unnersiy. Askasa. Turkey
m
Othan Goksat Ay Fomd Roe R CED, Intrligent Papars LLC. Paio Allo, Calilornay B degroa n Managsmeny, Majorin Managerneei informatian Sysiema
Hurrbakdt Uriversiy of Bedin Dociorsl Btudent. Cognifive Neunmeciencs
Maniber o4 Draer Vardiure Hotwork since Decerber 107 Startord Untenuey Graduists Schol ol Buiness Exscuive [olucation, Advanced Nagossteirs Program
ry Boan i finet ot Endamvor st Endevor Hartup an B snon ApH 20 arvan 5 Ewecutive Eruzvon. Bu Verturee | 1
Anmat Yalcin Aaymery B Sroe 2012 Limimd Pa E i & Endeawer & Sawctan B Mo Aot 2607 W Buninems: Schoel E E B Haw 2004 - 2004
Slanioe Blockchast Cull iisce 2018 INSEAD Exndutivg Educaton, Managenesl r (Gobdl (Horation and Teecbrimurealions Ihduilies
Dortmund Univnrsity of Appisd Sciences (Compsis Sciancs] Dipl Irdorm . Cormpuier Sosacs
Higud Co-Founde Flamfissd LTD. London, UK - Oaneral Monsgar 2020 -« Prassnd] Bigy Lrsvarsty imerraional Frants WMasters
Qrur Akg 3 Db 160, Zon istantid - Saies & Mamsteg Drscey (20172022 Iskantid Urivarilty BA of Econcmics May 2004

Drop-out aft

Founder § Chasmvan st | e, Ratase
Fath Akol aar SO0 s aphon . it Wartwert inaliute of Techrocgy Computer Engirestrng | 1383 - 1006)

Biographical Infarmation
Fatih Akol

Founder, CEO Sole Director and (Non-Executive) Chairmean, Inception- Present

with start and ending dales

Roboair, CEO and Founder; Director and (Non-Executive) Chainman, Inception-Present

Mr. Akol’s broad range of responsibilities include establishing the Company vision and strategy,
fundraising, recruiting/managing the Company’'s core talent, overseeing the
development/management of the Company's products and its salesymarketing, as well as managing
all aspects of the business to drive growth and success.

Education

Mr. AKOL is an experienced entrepreneur who has been responsible for formation of several
successful companies. Prior to his first venture, he briefly attended to Boston Wentworth Institute
of Technology for undergraduate studies.

Mr. AKOL's talent is in developing and leading acquisitions and new venhures. Within these
venhures, he initially contributes his skills and experiences to the venhare in assembling the
management team, business modeling and business strategies. These skills include: capital
formation, executive recruitment, banking, mergers and aoquisitions, corporate strategy,
organizational leadership, regulatory issues and cultural development.
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To date, he has developed businesses in commodity trading, media, real estate, manufacturing,
aviation, intemet, financial leasing, telecommmmications and logistics sectors.

Nane

Fvren Eryurek
Roboair, Advisory Board Member

Pusitions held over the past three years

Director of Product Management at Google Cloud Mountain View, Califomia, United States

Sunymary

Has the leadership role at Google Cloud for one of the most exciting parts of the GCP portfolio:
Streaming Analytics, Dataflow, Beam, Messaging (Puby/Sub & Confluent Kafka) as the Director
of Product Management. Has been the executive sponsor of Data Govermance & Data Management.
technology partners. Author of a recently published book titled "Data Govemance: The Definitive
Guide." Evrenjoined Google as the 1st external member to take the leadership role as a T'echnical
Director within the CTO Office of Google Cloud Platform. Google Cloud established the CT'O
Office and is building a team of the world’s foremost experts on cloud computing, enalytics, Al
and machine leaming to work with global companies as trusted advisors and partners.

Priorto joining Google, he was the SVP & Software Chief Technology Officer for GE Healthcare,
near $20 hillion segment of GE. GE Healthcare is a global leader in delivering healthcare clinical,
business, and operational solutions with its medical equipment, information technologies, life
sciences and service technologies covering setiings from physician offices to integrated delivery
networks. Evren began his GE career at GE Transportation, where he served as General Manager
of the Software and Solutions business. He led the development of GE's Movement Planner
system, which helps railroads solve capacity issues by better managing the movement of trains.
Before joining GE in 2005, he was with Emerson Process Management. group for over 11 years,
where he held several leadership positions as a member of PlantWeb Technology leadership team.
Evren enjoys being an active Board member;, Investor and Advisor of a number of global

companies.

Education

A graduate of the University of Tennessee, Evren holds a master’ s and doctorate degree in Nuclear
Engineering. He holds over 60 US patents, and lives in the San Francisco Bay Area with his wife
and two children.

Name

Ahmet Yalcin
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Roboair Advisory Board Member
Puositions Held over the Iast three years

Draper Venhure Network
Member of Draper Venhure Network December 2022 - Present (3 months)
101010 Venhures is a Co-investiment syndicate https:/fwww.101010.ve/ Endeavor

Limited Partner at Endeavor Venture Fund & Endeavor StartUp Selection Board Member
April 2007 - Present (15 years 11 months)

Sunmuary

Seasoned venture capitalist; Computer Scientist, PhD candidate for Computational & Cognitive
Neuroscience - Humboldt University (drop out)

Member of Draper Venture Network with 101010 venhures - a co-investment sydicate endeavor.
Member of Stanford Blockchain club.

Education
Humboldt University of Berlin Doctoral Student, Cognitive NeuroscienceStanford University
Graduate School of Business Executive Education, Advanced Negotiations Program - 2005

Harvard Business School Executive Education, Building New Ventures - (2004 - 2004)
INSEAD

Executive Education, Management in Global Information and Telecommumications Industries

Progranme - (1995 - 1995)
Dortnmund University of Applied Sciences (Conmiputer Science)
Dipl. Inform., Computer Science - (1979 - 1984)

Nane
William J. Benson

Roboair Advisory Board Member

Puositions Held over the Iast three year

Bristol Myers Squibb
08/2004 - Present

Contract Compliance Officer, Enterprise Service Provider Princeton, NJ « 04/2022 - Present
Provided oversight and enforced compliance of $4B coniract with global I'T outsourced service
provider.

Mr. Benson is an experienced innovator responsible for creating many transfonmational software

solutions. His talent is the identification of opportunities and development of technical strategies
for complex business problems. In developing these solutions, he analyzes processes and applies
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proven and emerging techniques in unique ways. Mr. Benson's primary skills are process re-
engineering, talent acquisition, organizational leadership, and project execution. He has developed
solutions in the telecommumications, phammaceutical, transportation, and consumer industries. His
experience includes web and mobile, testing, cloud, DevOps, finance, outsourting, and
contracting.

Fducation

Califomia Institute of Technology, Pasadena CA
Master of Science: Flectrical Engineering

Capstone Project: Mars rover design project. Worked with Jet Propulsion Labs (JPL) instructor as
part of team designing the wheels for the NASA rovers that would become Spirit and Opportunity
that landed on Mars in 2004.

University of Virginia, Charottesville VA
Bachelor of Science: Electrical Engineering
Minor in Computer Science

Name

Orhan Goksal
Roboair Advisory Board Member

Puasitions Held over the past three years

Chairman, Deniz Portféy, Istanbul, Turkey

Advisory Board, Intertech Banking Software Company, Istanbul, Turkey CEO, Intelligent Papers
LLC, Palo Alto, Califormia

Chairman, Ritmus Bilisim AS, Salesforce Distributor Istanbul, Turkey. Chairman, Ritmus LLC,
Salesforce Consultancy Co, Palo Alto, Califomia Advisory Board Member;, Vibons Inc., Palo Alto,
Califormia

Sunmary

Orhan has over 30 years of leadership, experience and entrepreneurial skills. He has held various
toplevel executive positions and served on mumerous boards of various domestic and multinational

companies.

Education

1980 - 1985 Middle East Technical University. Ankara, Turkey

BA degree in Management, Major in Management Information Systems

Indenmiificat
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Indemmification is authorized by the Company to directors, officers or controlling persons acting
in their professional capacity pursuant to Delaware law. Indemmification includes expenses such
as attomey’ s fees and, in certain circumstances, judgments, fines and settlement amounts actually
paid or incurred in connection with actual or threatened actions, suits or proceedings involving
such person, except in certain circumstances where a person is adjudged to be guilty of gross
negligence or willful misconduct, unless a court of competent jurisdiction determines that such
indemnification is fair and reasonable under the circumstances.

Enployees of the Campany
The Company has no employees.

CAPITALIZATION AND OWNERSHIP

Capitalization of the Conpany

Unless otherwise disclosed, all percentages of ownership reported in this Form C before the
Offering treat as outstanding 38, 752,220 shares of Series A Voting Common Stock and 2,900,000
shares of Series A Voting Conmmon Stock that are reserved for issuance under the Compary’'s
equity incentive plan.

The Company has issued the following outstanding Securities:

Type of seaurity Common Stock
Amount outstanding 38,752,220
Voiing Rights 1 vote per share
Anti-Dilution Rights None
}ml.ﬂ'sﬁ'ihsmmsf by ey l““t'l ‘m“"l ™ | Any additional shares issued will dilute the
Regulation CF indirect ownership of Investors.
Percentage ownership of the Company by
the holders of such Seamrities (assuming 9B%
coaversion prior to the Offering of 0

Outstanding Options, Safes, Conwvertible Notes, Warranis

As of the date of this Form C, the Company has no additional securities convertible into shares of
capital stock outstanding; however, the Comparny has reserved an additional 2,900,000 shares of
Series A Voting Common Stock for issuance to employees, officers, directors and service
providers underits 2023 Stock Incentive Plan (the “Plan”). The shares reserved forissuance under
the Plan account for approximately 7% ownership interest in the Company before the Offering.
The Stock Incentive Plan permits issuance of options and stock awards. No securities have been
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issued under the Plan. If awards are issued under the Plan or the mumber of shares reserved for
issuance under the Plan is increased, it would dilute the Shares issued in this Offering.

Outstanding Debt
The Compeany has the following debt outstanding:
Type Revolving Note and Line of Credit
Maxinamm Prindipal Amount Up to $600,000
Prindipal Amount Outstanding as of June $556,500
30,
Original Issuance Date February 2, 2023
Mahmrity Date December 31, 2023 (subject to extension by
mutual agreement)
Interest Rate Interest accrues from the date of each
Advance until such principal amount is paid
in full at the rate of (i) four percent (4%) per
anmum or (ii) the applicable federal rate in
Pplace at the time of the Advance (if greater).
Such interest shall be computed on the basis
of a 360-day year of twelve 30-day month
Voting Righis None
Anti-Dilution Rights None
Material Tas May be prepaid
Shares will rank junior this debt and other
How this seamity may limit, dilute or non-equity claims on the Company with
qualify the Seamrity issued pursuant to respect to assets available to satisfy claims on
Regulation CF the Company, including in a liquidation of the
Comparny
Percentage ownership of the Capany by N/A
the holdexs of such seaurity.
Credit Card
Type Credit Card
Total Principal Amount as of June 30, 2023 $7,809
Interest Rale 31,99%
Shares will rank junior this debt and other
How this seamity may limit, dilute or non-equity claims on the Company with
qualify the Seamrity issued pursuant to respect to assets available to satisfy claims on
Regulation CF the Company, including in a liquidation of the
Compary
Percenitage ownership of the Canpany by N/A
the holders of such seamrity.
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The Compeany has conducted the following prior Securities offerings in the past three years:

Exenplion
from
Security Number Money Use of Offaing | Registration

Type Sold Raised Proceeds Date Used or
Public

Offering

Revolving $600,000 Upto Working February 2, Section
Note ’ $600,000 Capital 2023 4(a)(2)

Vahafion

The valuation of the Company will detenmine the amount by which the Investor's stake is diluted
in the future. An early-stage conpany typically sells the Company’s shares (or grants options over
the Company’s shares) to the Company’s founders and early employees at a very low cash oost
because they are, in effect, putting their “sweat equity” into the conpany. When the company
seeks cash investments from outside investors, like you, the new investors typically pay a much
larger sum for their shares than the founders or eardier investors, which means that the cash value
of your stake is immediately diluted because each share of the same type is worth the same amount,
and you paid more for your shares than eardier investors did for theirs.

There are several ways to value a company, none of them is perfect and all of them involve a
certain amount of guesswork. The same method can produce a different valuation if used by a
different person.

The Company has set the pre-money valuation at $50,000,000, or $1.20 per share (the Investor
Transaction Feeis not included in this analysis). The initial valuation and resulting purchase prices
were not established in a competitive market. Valuations for companies at this stage are generally
purely speculative. The Comparny has generated limited revenues so far. The Company’s pre-
money valuation has not been validated by any independent third party. Irrespective of the price
you pay, the Company’s actual valuation may decrease precipitously in the fubhure. The issuance
of additional shares of commmon stock, cornvertible securities or additional option grants in the
fuhire may dilute the value of your holdings. Y ou should not invest if you disagree with any
valuation or pricing terms we offer.

Before making an investment decision, you should carefully consider this valuation and the factors
used to reach such valuation. Such valuation may not be accurate and you are encouraged to
determine your own independent value of the Compeny prior to investing.
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Ownership of the Conpany
A majority of the Compeny is owned by a few people and entities.

Below the beneficial owners of 20% percent or more of the Compeny”s outstanding voting equity
securities, calculated on the basis of voting power, are listed along with the amount they own.

Number of Shares of Percentage Voting Percentage Ownership
Name Series A Voting Conmmon Caonirol Prior to Prior to Offering*
Stock Offering
Fatih Akol 21,000,000 54.2% 50.4%
Netsafe Teknolojik 19.2%
Y atirimlar Anomin 7,992,000 20.6%
Sirketi

Following the Offering, the Purchasers will own approximately 0.04% of the Company if the
Target Offering Amount is raised and approximately 8.8% if the Maximum Offering Amount is
raised. *Assuming all shares under the Plan have been issued and are outstanding. No options or
shares are currently outstanding under the Plan.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Please see the finandial information listed on the cover page of this Foom C and attached
hereto in addition to the following information. Finandal statements for the Company are
attached hereto as Exhibit A.

Operations

Roboair, Inc. (the "Company") is a Delaware Corporation, formed on February 6, 2018.

The Company has a wholly-owned subsidiary in Gemmary, Roboair Deutchland GmbH, which it
is in the proocess of selling.

Following the Offering, assuming we raise at least $500,000 we anticipate we will have enough
liquidity to execute our business plan until 2025.

The Comparny does not expect to achieve profitahility in the next 12 months, but assuming we
raise at least $600,000 in the Offering or are able to secure such funds from other resources and
are able to meet our business ohjectives, we anticipate becoming profitable by the beginning of
2025. However, we anticipate we will need to raise additional funds in the fuhure to support our
growth plans, even if we raise the entire $5 million in this Offering.

Revenue; Net 1.oss
For the period ending December 31, 2022, the Company had revenues of $4,224 compared to the
year ended December 31, 2021, when the Company had revenue of $3,475. The Compeny had net
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losses of $177,211 for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2022 and net losses of $406,090 for the
fiscal year ended December 31, 2021. This change was due primarily to cutting costs and reducing
operational expenses.

Liabilities Debt

The Compeny’ s total short term liabilities totaled $469,024 for the fiscal year ended December 31,
2022 and $31,451 for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2021. This change is primarily due to
the increase in short-term debt is due to mahmring loan from founder. The Company’s total long
term debt totaled $0 for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2022 and $259,000 for the fiscal year
ended December 31, 2021. This change is primarily due to long term debt undertaken to continue

product development and operations during the pandemic coming to mahurity.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

As of June 30, 2023, 2023 the Company had an aggregate of $1895 in cash and cash equivalents,
combined with the available borrowings from our founder line of credit leaving the Comperty with
approximately 6 months of nmway (through the end of December 2023).

The Offering proceeds are important to our operations. While not dependent on the Offering
proceeds, the influx of capital will assist in the achievement of our next milestones and expedite
the realization of our business plan. See “Uses of Proceeds”.

The Comparny has the following sourves of capital in addition to the proceeds from the Offering:
$600,000 line of credit with Mr. Akol, less than $40,000 remains available for advances.

Capital Expenditimres and Other Obligations
The Company does not intend to make any material capital expenditires in the future.
Material Changes and Other Information

The attached financial statements have been prepared assuming that the Compeny will continue as
a going concem. As discussed in Note 2 to the financial statements, the Compary has incurred net
losses in recent years and has accumulated a deficit of $3,133,545 as of December 31, 2022. These
conditions raise substantial doubt about the Compeny’ s ability to continue as a going concem. The
financial statements do not include any adjustments that might result from the outcome of this
uncertainty.

Trends and Uncertainties

After reviewing the above discussion of the steps the Company intends to take, potential
Purchasers should consider whether achievement of each step within the estimated time frame is
realistic in their judgment. Potential Purchasers should also assess the consequences to the
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Comparny of any delays in taking these steps and whether the Compeany will need additional
financing to accomplish them.

The financial statements are an important part of this Form C and should be reviewed in their
entirety. The financial statements of the Company are attached hereto as Exhibit A.

THE OFFERING AND THE SECURITIES
The Offering

The Company is seeking to raise the Target Offering Amount ($20,00040) and up to
$4,999,903. 14 through the offer and sale of by the Company of its shares of Series B Non-Voting
Common Stock. The Offering will be conducted on a best efforts basis under Regulation CF as
described in this Form C. The Issuer must raise an amount equal to or greater than the Target
Offering Amount by the Offering Deadline. The Issuer has the right to extend the Offering
Deadline at its discretion.

Investment commitiments may be accepted or rejected by the Issuer, in its sole and absolute
discretion. The Issuer has the right to cancel or rescind the offer to sell the Securities at any time
and for any reason. In order to purchase the Securities, you must complete the purchase process
through Intermediary. Y ou will be required to execute and deliver a subscription agreement with
the Issuer.

The Compeny has set the purchase price of the Shares at $1.20 per share based off of a $50M pre-
money valuation. INo fractional shares will be issued in the Offering.

To reward investment, the Company will provide a 10% lifetime discount to bookings made
through the Company. This lifetime discount is subject to the following conditions:

1. The discount can be used 3 times per month.
2. Investors can only use the discount on themselves.
3. No other discount. or promo can be combined with this discount.

Investiment Confirmation Proocess

In order to purchase the Securities, you must make a commitment to purchase by conmpleting the
subscription process hosted by the Intermediary, including complying with the Intermediary’s
know your customer (KY C) and anti-money laundering (AML) policies. If an Investor makes an
investment conmmitment under a name that is not their legal name, they may be unable to
redeem their Seamity indefinitely, and neither the Intermediary nor the Conpany is
required to corredt any errors or omissions made by the Investor.

To purchase Securities, Investors must enter into a Subscription Agreement.  Subscription
Agreements are not binding on the Company until accepted by the Comparny, which reserves the
right to rgject, in whole or in part, in its sole and absolute discretion, any subscription. If the
Company should reject all or a portion of any subscription, the applicable prospective Purchaser's
funds will be retumed without interest or deduction.
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Investor funds will be held in escrow with the Escrow Agent until the Target Offering Amount has
been met or exceeded and one or more closings occaur. Investors may cancel an inveshment
commitment until up to 48 hours priorto the Offering Deadline, or such eadier time the Compary
designates pursuant to Regulation CF, using the cancellation mechanism provided by the
Intermediary. If an investor does not cancel an investment commitment before the 48-hour period
prior to the Offering Deadline, the funds will be released to the issuer upon closing of the offering
and the investor will receive securities in exchange for his or her investiment.

The Company will notify Investors when the Target Offering Amount has been reached. If the
Comparny reaches the Target Offering Amount prior to the Offering Deadline, it may close the
Offering early provided (i) the expedited Offering Deadline must be twenty-one (21) days from
the time the Offering opened, (ii) the Company nust provide at least five (5) business days’ notice
prior to the expedited Offering Deadline to the Investors and (iii) the Company continues to meet
or exceed the Target Offering amount on the date of the expedited Offering Deadline.

Material Changes & Reoconfinmation

If any material change ocaurs related to the Offering priorto the cunrent Offering Deadline the Issuer
will provide notice to Investors and receive reconfimmations from Investors who have already made
commitments. If an Investor does not reconfirm theirinvestment commitment after a material change
is made to the terms of the Offering within five (5) business days of receiving notice, the Investor's
investment commitment will be cancelled and the commitied funds will be retumed without interest
or deductions. If an Investor does not cancel an investment commitment before the Target Offering
Amount is reached, the funds will be released to the Company upon the closing of the Offering and
the Investorwill receive the Securities in exchange for their investment.

Rolling and Early Closings

The Company may elect to undertake rolling closings, or an early closing after it has received
investiment interests for its target offering amount. During a rolling closing, those investors that
have commitied funds will be provided five days” notice priorto acceptance of their subscriptions,
release of funds to the company, and issuance of securities to the investors. During this time, the
company may continue soliciting investors and receiving additional investiment conmmitments.
Investors should note that if investors have already received their securities, they will not be
required to reconfirm upon the filing of a material amendment to the Form C. In an early closing,
the offering will terminate upon the new target date, which must be at least five days from the
date of the notice.

Cancellations

Investors may cancel an investiment. conimitment until 48 hours prior to the deadline identified in
these offering materials.

The Intermediary will notify investors when the Target Offering Amount has been met. If the Issuer
reaches the target offering amount prior to the deadline identified in the offering materials, it may
close the offering early if it provides notice about the new offering deadline at least five business
days prior to such new offering deadline (absent a material change that would require an extension
of the offering and reconfirmation of the investment commitment). If an [nvestor does not cancel
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an investment commitment before the 48-hour period priorto the offering deadline, the funds will
be released to the issuer upon closing of the offering and the investor will receive securities in
exchange for his or her investiment. If an investor does not reconfirm his or her investment
commitment aftera material change is made to the offering, the investor's investment conmmiitment
will be cancelled and the commitiied funds will be relumed.

Oversubscrinti

The Target Offering Amount is $20,000.40, but investiments in excess of the Tamget Offering
Amount will be accepted. Oversubscriptions will be allocated at the discretion of the Compary.

Updates
Updates on the status of this Offering may be found at hitps://invest. Roboair.com.

ENT'ERPRISE BANK & TRUST, THE ESCROW AGENTI SERVICING THE OFFERING,
HAS NOT INVESIIGATED THE DESIRABILITY OR ADVISABILITY OF AN
INVESTMENT IN THIS OFFERING OR THE SECURITIES OFFERED HEREIN. THE
ESCROW AGENI' MAKES NO REPRESENTATIONS, WARRANIIES,
ENDORSEMENTS, OR JUDGMENT ON THE MERITS OF THE OFFERING OR THE
SECURITIES OFFERED HEREIN. THE ESCROW AGENI’S CONNECTION TO THE
OFFERING IS SOLELY FOR THE LIMITED PURPOSES OF ACTING AS A SERVICE
PROVIDER.

Commission and Fees

The Intermediary for the Offering is DealMaker Securities LL.C, a Delaware limited liability
company formed on May 5, 2021. The SEC registration mumber of the Intermediary is 870756
and the Central Registration Depository (CRD) mumberis 315324.

As compensation for the services provided by DealMaker Securities LLC, the issueris required to
pay to DealMaker Securities LLL.C a fee consisting of 4% (four percent) cash commiission based on
the dollar amount of the Securities sold in the Offering and paid upon disbursement of funds from
escrow at the time of a closing. The commission is paid in cash. Additionally, the issuer must
reimburse certain expenses related to the Offering. No Securities will be issued to the Intermediary
as fees in the Offering.

Priceto Service Fees and
Commissions Net Proceeds
Investors
(1)(2)
Amoumt (9 $30040
Investor Transadtion Fee(3) $17.51
$517.91 $20.72 $497.19
Target Offering Amnount $20,000.40 $800.02 $19,200.38
Maxinmum Offering Amount $4.999,903.14 $238,996.13 $4.760,907.01
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(1) This excludes accounting fees, legal expenses, payment processing fees, transfer agent
fees, expenses of marketing the offering or escrow agent fees.

(2) In addition to the four percent (4%) of cash proceeds received in the Offering, including
the Investor Transaction Fee, the Intenmediary will receive a onetime $15,000
administrative and compliance fee, and a $2,000 monthly maintenance fee, not to exceed
$24,000. This total does not include certain payment processing or fransaction fees
comected with the technology used. There is also a $2,500 payment to Deal Maker
Transfer Agent, LL.C forits post-offering service fee.

(3) Each Investor will be required to pay an Investor Transaction Fee, of three and one-half
percent (3.5%), up to a maxinumm fee of $350.80 per transaction in order to submit a
subscription in this Offering. This fee will be used to offset certain payment processing or
transaction fees connected with the use of the technology.

(4) Subject to any other inveshment amount limitations applicable to the Investor under
Regulation CF.

The Seaurities

The following descriptions sunmmarize inportant terms of the Conpany’s capital stock which
oonsists of shares of Voting and Non-Voiing Conmon Siock  The prinary documents goverting
voling and rights of Investors holding the Securities are (1) the Restated Charter of the Conpany,
attached hereto as Exhihit D, (2) the Bylaws of the Conpany, attached hereto as Exhilit D, and
(3) the Subscripltion Agreement, attached herefo as Exhibit C (collectively, the ”Goverring
Doamenis”). All staterments in this Form C regarding voting and control of the Secunities being
sold in this Offering are qualified in their entirety with reference to the Governing Docurrenis and
the applicable provisions of Delaware law.

On March 9, 2023, the Company filed the Restated Charter with the Delaware Secretary of State.
Pursuant to this Restated Charter, the Company implemented a 1 to 4 forward stock split and
redesignation of its outstanding shares of common stock. All disclosures in this Form C give effect
to those transactions. The Company’s authorized capital stock consists of 50,200,000 shares of
common stock, parvalue $0.000025, of which 46,000,000 are Series A Voting Common Stock and
4,200,000 are Series B Non-Voting Common Stock.  As of the date of this Form C, there were
38,752,220 shares of Series A Voting Common Stock outstanding, 2,900,000 shares of Series A
Voting Common Stock reserved for issuance under the Plan and no shares of Series B Non-Voting
Common Stock outstanding. For this offering, the Company is issuing shares of Series B Nor
Voting Common Stock.

Series A Vating Conamon Stodk and Series B Non-Voting Common Stodk
Voting Righis

Series A Voting Common Stock.  Each holder of our Series A Voting Conmmmon Stock is entitled
to one vote for each share on all matters submitted to a vote of the stockholders, including the
election of directors. Directors are elected by a plurality of the votes cast by the shares entitled to
vote; stockholders do not have a right to cunmilate their votes for directors.

The mumber of authorized shares of Series A Voting Common Stock may be increased or decreased
(but not below the mmmber of shares thereof then outstanding) by the affirmative vote of the holders
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of shares of capital stock of the Corporation representing a majority of the votes represented by all
outstanding shares of capital stock of the Corporation entitled to vote, irrespective of the provisions
of Section 242(b)(2) of the General Corporation Law.

Series B Non-Voting Common Stock. Series B Non-Voting Common Stock is not entitled to vote
on any matter that is submitted to a vote of our stockholders, except as required by Delaware law.
When required to vote under applicable law, the Series B NonVoting Common Stock are entitled
to one vote for each share of Series B Non-Voting Common Stock held.

The number of authorized shares of Series B Non-Voting Common Stock may be increased or
decreased (but not below the mumber of shares thereof then outstanding) by the affinmative vote
of the holders of shares of capital stock of the Corporation representing a mgjority of the votes
represented by all outstanding shares of capital stock of the Corporation entitled to vote,
inespective of the provisions of Section 2422(b)(2) of the General Corporation Law.

Distribution Richi

The holders of the Series A Voting Comimon Stock and Series B Non-Voting Common Stock are
entitled to receive, on a pan passu basis, when and as declared by the Board of Directors, out of any
asseis of the Company legally available therefore, such dividends as may be declared from time to
time by the Board of Directors.

Rigiht to Reveive Liguichation Distribui

In the event of the company’ s liquidation, orwinding up, whethervoluntary orinvoluntary, subject
to the rights of any preferred stock that may then be outstanding, the assets of the company legally
available for distribution to stockholders shall be distributed on an equal priority, pro-rata basis to
the holders of Series A Voting Common Stock and Series B Non-Voting Common Stock, treated
as asingle class.

Aulonmtic Canversion of Series B Non-Voling Conmon Siodk

The Series B Non-Voting Common Stock will automatically conwert info (1) voting shares of
common stock of the Comparty upon (1) the approval by the Board and a vote of the holders of a
majority of the shares voting common stock, or(2) development of a Trading Market (as such term
is defined in the certificate of incorporation of the Company) for the voting shares of common
stock of the Compeany.

Other Righis

Mr. Akol and our other co- Founder cunrently have a contractual right of first refusal to purchase
shares held by stockholders who own Series A Voting Common Stock. The Company may
exercise that right in the event the Founders do not.

Holders of our Series A Voting Common Stock and Series B Non-Voting Common Stock have no
preenptive, subscription, or other rights, and (other than as described above) there are no
redeniption or sinking fund provisions applicable to the Series A Voting Common Stock or the



DaocuSign Envelope ID: DB1429D6-A90B-41D3-A43B-FB2469831689

Series B Non-Voting Common Stock. There is no price based antidilution protection associated
with the Shares. There are no preenptive or participation rights attached to the Shares.

Transferabilitv of Seauriti

The Bylaws of the Compeny provide that any holder of Common Stock of the Conmparty
(including the Shares) must first give written notice of such transfer to the Company. The Shares
are also subject to certain drag-along provisions set forth in the Subscription Agreement which
limit a minority holder from voling against or exercising appraisal rights in the event of a change
in control of the Company meeting the conditions of the drag-along provisions.

In addition, any Securities sold pursuant to Regulation CF bheing offered may not be
transferred by any Investor of such Securities during the one-year holding period beginning when
the Securities were issued, umless such Securities are transferred: (1) to the Company; (2) to an
aocredited investor, as defined by Rule 501(d) of Regulation D promulgated under the Securities
Act; (3) as part of an offering registered with the SEC; or (4) to a member of the family of the
Investor or the equivalent, to a trust controlled by the Investor, to a trust created for the benefit of
amember of the family of the Investor or the equivalent, orin connection with the death or divorce
of the Investor or other similar circumstances. “member of the family” as used herein means a
child, stepchild, grandchild, parent, stepparent, grandparent, spouse or spousal equivalent, sibling,
mother;father/daughter/sony/sister/brother-in-law, and includes adoptive relationships. Each
Investor should be aware that although the Securities may legally be able to be transferred, there
is no guarantee that another party will be willing to purchase them.

Subsaiption Agreement

In addition to the foregoing restrictions, the Subscription Agreement provides that prior to
making any transfer of the Securities, such transfenring Investor must either make such transfer
pursuant to an effective registration statement filed with the SEC or provide the Compeny with an
opinion of counsel reasonably satisfactory to the Company stating that a registration statement is
not necessary to effect such transfer.

Other Restrictions. Furthenmore, the Subscription Agreement provides that upon the event:
of an IPO, the Securities (and any capital stock into which the Securities are converted) will be
subject to a lock-up period and may not be lent, offered, pledged, or sold for up to 180 days
following such IPO.

In addition, your Subscription Agreement provides that, notwithstanding anything
contained in the Certificate of Incorporation or Bylaws of the Company to the contrary, if the
Board of Directors determines in good faith that issuance or delivery of shares of capital stock or
other securities (the "Fuhure Seamities') to any investor in connection with any recapitalization
or change in control of the Company, inrespective of whether it is related to the exercise of any
dragralong provisions set forth in the Organizational Documents or otherwise, would violate
applicable law, rnule or regulation (including without limitation applicable state law or the
Securities Act), then your right to receive the Future Securities (orto make a choice about the form
of consideration to be received in such transaction) may be limited and you may be required to
accept a cash payment equal to the fair market value of such Future Securities, as determined in
good faith by the Board of Directors.
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Your Subscription Agreement provides us the right to repurchase the Securities you
purchase in this Offering (at a price equal to fair market value of the shares as determined in good
faith by the Board of Directors of the Company) (1) in the event you or certain of your related
parties become subject to certain bad-actor “disqualificaion events” described in Rule 503 of
Regulation Crowdfunding or (2) in the event we determine it is likely that we may be required to
register a class of equity securities due to Section 12(g) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act.
We also have the right to corvert your shares into interests in a crowdfunding SPV. Please review
the Subscription Agreement you will sign in connection with this Offering and the Organizational
Documents for more information.

Transfer Agent

The Company has selected Deal Maker Transfer Agent, an SEC-registered securities transfer agent,
to act as the Company’s transfer agent for the Securities. They will be responsible for keeping
track of who owns the Securities.

The Securities will be issued in book-eniry, uncertificated form.
‘What it Means to be a Minority Holder

As an investor in shares of Series B Non-Voting Common Stock of the Company, you will not
have any rights with respect to the corporate actions of the Company, including additional
issuances of securities, Company repurchases of securities, a sale of the Company orits significant.
assets, or Company transactions with related parties. 'Y ou will not be entitled to elect members of
the Company’s Board of Directors.

DILUTION

Investors should understand the potential fordilution. The Investor’ s indirect stake in the Company
could be diluted due to the Company issuing additional shares. In otherwords, when the Company
issues more shares, the percentage of the Company that you indirectly own will go down, even
though the value of the Compeany may go up. Y ou will indirectly own a smaller piece of a larger
Comparny. This increase in mmmber of shares outstanding could result from a stock offering (such
as an initial public offering, another crowdiunding round, a venture capital round, or angel
investment), employees receiving equity awards or exercising stock options, or by cornversion of
certain instruments (e.q., convertible bonds, preferred shares or warrants) into stock.

If the Compary decides to issue more shares, an Investor could experience value dilution, with
each share being worth less than before, and conirol dilution, with the total percentage an investor
owns being less than before. There may also be eamings dilution, with a reduction in the amount
eamed per share (though this typically occurs only if the Company offers dividends, and most
eany-stage companies are unlikely to offer dividends, preferring to invest any eamings into the
Compary).

The type of dilution that hurts early-stage investors most occurs when a compary sells more shares

in a “down round,” meaning at a lower valuation than in earlier offerings. An example of how this
might occuris as follows (mumbers are for illustrative purposes only):
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. In June 2023 Jane invests $20,000 for shares that represent 2% of a company valued at $1
Million.

. In December the compary is doing very well and sells $5 Million in shares to venture
capitalists on a valuation (before the new investiment) of $10 Million. Jane now owns only 1.3%
of the company but her stake is worth $200,000.

. In June 2024 the company has run into serious problems and in order to stay afloat it raises
$1 Miillion at a valuation of only $2 Million (the “down round”). Jane now owns only 0.89% of
the comparny and her stake is worth only $26,660.

This type of dilution might happen upon conversion of convertible notes into shares. Typically,
the terms of convertible notes issued by early-stage companies provide that in the event of another
round of financing, the holders of the convertible notes get to convert their notes into equity at a
“discount” to the price paid by the new investors, i.e., they get more shares than the new investors
would forthe same price. Additionally, convertible notes may have a “price cap” on the conversion
price, which effectively acts as a share price ceiling. Either way, the holders of the convertible
notes get more shares for their money than new investors. In the event that the financing is a
“down round” the holders of the Convertible Notes will dilute existing equity holders, and even
more than the new investors do, because they get more shares for their money. The Company
cunrently has not issued any convertible debt, but it may do so in the fubure.

If you are making an invesiment expediing to indirectly own a cartain percentage of the
Campany ar expeding each share to hold a certain amount of value, it’s important to realize
how the value of those shares can deaease by adiions taken by the Conypany. Dilution can
make drastic changes to the value of each share, ownership percentage, voting control, and
eamings per share.

TAX MATTERS

EACHPROSPECTIVE INVESTOR SHOULD CONSULT WITH HISOR HER OWNTAX
AND ERISA ADVISOR AS TO THE PARTICULAR CONSEQUENCES TO THE
INVESTOR OF THE PURCHASE, OWNERSHIP AND SALE OF THE INVESTOR’'S
SECURITIES, ASWELL AS POSSIBLE CHANGES INTHE TAX LAWS.

TO INSURE COMPLIANCE WITH THE REQUIREMENIS IMPOSED BY THE
INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE, WE INFORM YOU THAT ANY TAX STATEMENT
IN THIS FORM C CONCERNING UNITED STATES FEDERAL TAXES IS NOT
INTENDED OR WRITTEN TO BE USED, AND CANNOT BE USED, BY ANY
TAXPAYER FOR THE PURPOSE OF AVOIDING ANY TAX-RELATED PENALTIES
UNDER THE UNITED STATESINTERNAL REVENUE CODE. ANY TAX STATEMENT
HEREIN CONCERNING UNITED STATES FEDERAL TAXES WAS WRITTEN IN
CONNECTION WITH THE MARKETING OR PROMOTION OF THE
TRANSACTIONS OR MATTERS TO WHICH THE STATEMENT RELATES. EACH
TAXPAYER SHOULD SEEK ADVICE BASED ON THE TAXPAYER'S PARTICULAR
CIRCUMSTANCES FROM AN INDEPENDENT TAX ADVISOR.

POTENITAL INVESITORS WHO ARE NOT UNITED STATES RESIDENIS ARE
URGED TO CONSULT THEIR TAX ADVISORS REGARDING THE UNITED STATES
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FEDERAL INCOME TAX IMPLICATIONS OF ANY INVESTMENT IN THE ISSUER,
AS WELL AS THE TAXATION OF SUCH INVESTMENTI BY THEIR COUNTRY OF
RESIDENCE. FURTHERMORE, IT' SHOULD BE ANIICIPATED THAT
DISTRIBUTIONS FROM THE ISSUER TO SUCH FOREIGN INVESTORS MAY BE
SUBJECT TO UNITED STATES WITHHOLDING TAX.

FACH POTENIIAL INVESTOR SHOULD CONSULT HIS OR HER OWN TAX
ADVISOR CONCERNING THE POSSIBLE IMPACT OF STATE TAXES.

TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PERSONS AND CONFLICTS OF INTEREST
Related Person Transadlions

From time to time the Comparty may engage in transactions with related persons. Related persons
are defined as any director or officer of the Company; any person who is the beneficial owner of
twenty (20%) percent or more of the Company’s outstanding voting equity securities, calculated
on the basis of voting power; any promoter of the Compary; ary immediate family member of any
of the foregoing persons or an entity controlled by any such person or persons.

Additionally, the Compeny will disclose here any transaction, whether historical or contemplated,
where the Company was oris to be a party and the amount involved exoeeds five percent. (5%) of
the aggregate amount of capital raised by the issuer in reliance on section 4(a)(6) and the counter
party is either (i) any director or officer of the issuer: (ii) any person who is, as of the most recent
practicable date but no earlier than 120 days prior to the date the offering statement or report is
filed, the beneficial owner of twenty percent (20%) or more of the issuer's outstanding voting
equity securities, calculated on the basis of voting power; (iii) if the issuer was incorporated or
organized within the past three years, any promoter of the issuer; or (iv) any member of the family
of any of the foregoing persons, which includes a child, stepchild, grandchild, parent, stepparent,
grandparent, spouse or spousal equivalent, sibling, motherinlaw, father-inlaw, son-in-law,
daughterinrlaw, brotherrinrlaw, or sisterinlaw, and shall include adoptive relationships. The
term spousal equivalent means a cohabitant occupying a relationship generally equivalent to that
of a spouse.

The Company has the following transactions with related persons:

Fatih Akol has provided the Comparny with a $600,000 line of credit to assist with startup expenses
and initial operating costs. Theline of credit matures on December 31, 2023 (subject to adjustment.
by mutual agreement). The Compeny may take advances under the line of credit, up to $600,000.
Interest accrues from the date of each advance until such principal amount is paid in full at the rate
of (i) four percent (4%) per annum or (ii) the applicable federal rate in place at the time of the
Advance (if greater). The principal amount outstanding under the line of credit was $556,500 as
of June 30, 2023. The Conpany intends to begin repaying on its debt once it has raised $500,000
in the Offering and anticipates paying off the line of credit in full if it raises $5,000,000. See “Use
of Proceeds”.

Once the Company raises $2,500,000, it anficipates paying founders (including Mr. Akol) and the
current. management. team (which includes two of Mr. Akol’s adult children) an annual salary of
average $75,000 each. We also expect to incur additional related costs associated with employee
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benefits if we bring in full-time employees. Payment of salaries and other benefits to our founder
and management team could be viewed to be imegularuses of proceeds. Salaries may also be paid
orincreased above these amounts from successful sales and other non-offering revenue. See “Use
of Proceeds.”

None.

Canflids of Interest

To the best of our knowledge, except as described above, the Compeany has not engaged in any

transactions or relationships, which may give rise to a conflict of interest with the Company, its
operations or its security holders.

OTHER INFORMATION

Bad Adior Disdosure

The Company is not subject to any Bad Actor Disqualifications under any relevant U.S. securities
laws.
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SIGNATURE

Pursuant to the requirements of Sections 4(a)(6) and 4A of the Securities Act of 1933 and
Regulation Crowdfunding (§ 227.100 et seq.), the issuer certifies that it has reasonable grounds to
believe that it meets all of the requirements for filing on Form C and has duly caused this Form to
be signed on its behalf by the duly authorized undersigned.

Roboair, Inc. (Issuer) DocuSigned by:
Fahle Aol

By: /s/ Fatih Akol 80BSCCDBF32343C .

Fatih Akol, President, Chief Executive Officer

(PEO & PFO) and Chairman

Date: august 17, 2023

Pursuant to the requirements of Sections 4(a)(6) and 4A of the Securities Act of 1933 and

Regulation Crowdfunding (§ 227.100 et seq.), this Form C has been signed by the following
persons in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

DocuSigned by:

Fakl Aol

S9BSCCDBF3I23420

/s/ Fatih Akol

Fatih Akol, President, Chief Executive Officer
(PEO & PFO) sole director

Date: August 17, 2023
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EXHIBITS

Exhibit A: Consolidated Audited Financial Statements of the Compeny

Exhibit B: Roboair Opportunity Site (located at hitps://invest. Roboair.com)

Exhibit C: form of Subscription Agreement

Exhibit D: Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the Company (and
Amended and Restated Bylaws of the Company

Exhibit E: Video Transcripts
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EXHIBIT A TO FORMC

ROBOAIR, INC.

ANNUAL CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2022 and 2021

(Expressed in United States Dollars)
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ASSURANCEDI MENS.|

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Board of Directors and

Stockholders of Roboair, Inc,
Opinion
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Roboair, Inc., which comprise the consolidated

balance sheets as of December 31, 2022 and 2021 and the related statements of operations, changes of
shareholders’ deficit and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements
(collectively the “financials statements”).

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Roboair, Inc. as of December 31, 2022 and 2021, and the results of its operations and its cash
flows for the years then ended m accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits m accordance with auditing standards generally accepted i the Umted States of
America. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of Roboair,
Inec. and to meet our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating
to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and approprnate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

Doubt about the Company's Ability to Continue as a Going Concem

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared assumung that the Company will continue as a
going concern. As discussed m Note 2 to the financial statements, the has incurred net losses in recent years
and has accumulated a deficit of 33,133,545 as of December 31, 2022, These conditions raise substantial doubt
about the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. The financial statements do not include any
adjustments that might result from the outcome of this uncertamty. Our opinion 15 not modified with respect
to that matter.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements m accordance
with accounting puonciples generally accepted in the United States of Amenca, and for the design,
mmplementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is requred to evaluate whether there are conditions or
events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Roboair, Ine’s ability to continue as a
going concern within one year after the date that the financial statements are available to be issued.

ASSURANCE DIMENSIONS CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS & ASSOCIATES
also d/b/a McNAMARA and ASSOCIATES, PLLC
TAMPA BAY: 4920 W Cypress Street, Suite 102 | Tampa, FL 33607 | Office: 813.443.5048 | Fax: 813.443.5053
JACKSONVILLE: 4720 Salisbury Road, Suite 223 | lacksonville, FL 32256 | Office: 888.410.2323 | Fax: 813.443.5053
ORLANDO: 1800 Pembrook Drive, Suite 300 | Orlando, FL 32810 | Office: 888.410.2323 | Fax: 813.443,5053
SOUTH FLORIDA: 2000 Banks Road, Suite 218 | Margate, FL 33063 | Office: 754.800.3400 | Fax: 813.443.5053
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ASSURANCEDI MENSION

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from matenal misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards will always detect a
material misstatement when 1t exists. The nsk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, mtentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a
substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a
reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performuing an audit m accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, we:
¢ Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

e TIdentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

¢ Obtam an understanding of intemal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of Roboair, Ine.’s intemal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

¢ Evaluate the appropdateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

¢ Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that
raise substantial doubt about Roboair, Inc.’s ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable
period of tme.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain mternal control related matters
that we identified during the audit

Margate, Florida
July 21, 2023

ASSURANCE DIMENSIONS CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS & ASSOCIATES
also dfbfa McNAMARA and ASSOCIATES, PLLC
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JACKSONVILLE: 4720 Salisbury Road, Suite 223 | lacksonville, FL 32256 | Office: 888.410.2323 | Fax: 813.443.5053
ORLANDO: 1800 Pembrook Drive, Suite 300 | Orlando, FL 32810 | Office: 888.410.2323 | Fax: 813.443.5053
SOUTH FLORIDA: 2000 Banks Road, Suite 218 | Margate, FL 33063 | Office: 754.2800.3400 | Fax: 813.443 5053
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ROBOAIR, INC.

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
Expressed in United States Dollars, except number of share

As at December 31, December 31,
2022 2021
Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 20,197 % 12,662
Trade and other receivables (Note 4) - 3,165
Prepaid expenses (Note 5) 387 -
20,584 15,827
Non-current assets
Deposit (Note 6) 20,000 23,395
Total assets $ 40,584 $ 39,222
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (Note 7) $ 40,524 % 31,451
Shareholder loan (Note 9) 428,500 -
469,024 31,451

Non-current liabilities

Shareholder loan (Note 9) - 259,000
- 259,000
Total liahilities 469,024 290451

Stockholders' deficit

Common stock ($0.000025 par value, authorized shares 50,200,000:

Series A Voting Common Stock - 46,000,000 shares authorized with

38,752,220 issued and outstanding as at December 31, 2022 and 2021; and 269 969
Series B non-Voting Stock - 4,200,000 shares authorized with none

outstanding as at December 31, 2022 and 2021) (Note 8)

Additional paid-in capital 2,704,136 2,704,136
Accurmulated Deficit (3,133,545) (2,956,334)
Total stockholders' deficit (428,440) (251,229)
Total liahilities and stockholders' deficit $ 40,584 % 39,222

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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ROBOAIR, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
Expressed in United States Dollars, except number of share

For the: Year ended Year ended
December 31, December 31,
2022 2021
Net Revenue 4,224 3,475
Costs and expenses
General and administration 62,871 24,553
Salary and wages 3,230 64,786
Professional fees 100,611 286,908
Sales and marketing 14,072 32,641
Total administrative expenses 180,784 408,888
Other income
Gain on forgiveness of payables - (1,000)
Loss from operations before income taxes (176,560) (404,413)
Income tax provision - current and deferred (Note 11) - -
Loss from continuing operations (176,560) (404,413)
Loss from discontinued operations (Note 10) (651) (1,677)
Total net loss (177,211) 5 (406,000)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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ROBOAIR, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLows
Expressed in United States Dollars

For the: Year ended Year ended
December 31, December 31,
2022 2021
Operating activities
Net loss from continuing operations for the period (176,560) (404,413)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss from continuing operations to net cash used
in operating activities:
Gain on forgiveness of payable - {1,000}
Changes in operating assets and liabilities, net of effects from acquisitions and
dispositions:
Decrease in trade and other receivables 3,090 49,682
Increase in prepaid expenses (387) -
Increase in accounts payable and accrued liabilities 12,236 9,013
Net cash used in operating activities for continuing operations (161,621) (346,718)
Net cash used in operating activities for discontinued operations (344) (1,523)
Cash used in operating activities {161,965) (348,241)
Investing activities
Cash provided by investing activities - -
Financing activities
Proceeds from loan from shareholder (Note 9) 169,500 259,000
Cash from financing activities for continuing operations 169,500 259,000
Cash provided by financing activities 169,500 259,000
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 7,535 (89,241)
Cash and cash eguivalents, beginning of the year 12,662 101,903
Cash and cash equivalents, end of the year 20,197 12,662
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION
Cash paid during period of interest - -
Cash paid during period of income taxes - -
7

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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ROBOAIR, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES OF SHAREHOLDERS’ DEFICIT
Expressed in United States Dollars, except number of share

‘Common Stock 3
Mﬁ"::'“;“d"" Accunwilated Deficit Total
Series A Voting Series B Non-Voting
Shares Amount: Shares. Amount
Balance December 31, 2020 3BT % 960 - 5 - % 213 S5 {2,550,249) % 154,861
et Ioss for the yesr : - - - - 1406,090) 1406,000)
Balance December 31, 2021 BT2IN % 960 - % - % 2704136 § {2,956,334) 5 (251, 229)
et loss for the year - - - - 3 177,211} (177,211}
Balance December 31, 2022 IBT52XN § D60 - 5 - % 2704136 § {3,133,545) 5 {428,440}

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial siatements
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ROBOAIR, INC.

Notes to the Consolidated Finandal Statements

For the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021
(Expressed in United States dollars)

L

Nature of operations and Basis of Presentation
Description of the Company

Roboair Inc. and its subsidiary provide travel products and services such us air tickets and hotels to
leisure and corporate travelers in the United States and abroad. We refer to Roboair, Inc. and its
subsidiary collectively as “Raoboair,” the “Company,” “us,” “we” and “our” in these consadlidated financial
statements.

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles in the United States ("GAAP"). Preparing our consolidated financial
statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions that impact the reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, revenue, and expenses. These estimates and assumptions are affected
by management's application of accounting policies.

We believe that the assumptions underlying our consclidated financial statements are reasonable.
However, these consolidated financial statements do not present our future financial position, the
results of our future operations and cash flows.

Significant accounting policies
a) Consolidation

Our consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Roboair, Inc. and our wholly-owned
subsidiary Roboair Deutchland gmbH in Germany.

We have eliminated significant intercompany transactions and accounts in our consolidated financial
statements.

b) Revenue Recognition

We recognize revenue upon transfer of control of our promised services in an amount that reflects the
consideration we expect to be entitled to in exchange for those services.

For our primary transaction-based revenue sources, discussed below, we have determined net
presentation (that is, the amount billed to a traveler less the amount paid to a supplier) is appropriate
for all of our revenue transactions as the supplier is primarily responsible for providing the underlying
travel services and we do not control the service provided by the supplier to the traveler.

We exclude all taxes assessed by a government authority, if any, from the measurement of transaction
prices that are imposed on our travel related services or collected by the Company from custormers
(which are therefore excluded from revenue).

We offer traditional travel services on a stand-alone basis through the agency business model. Under
the agency model, we pass reservations booked by the traveler to the relevant travel supplier and the
travel supplier serves as the merchant of record for such bookings. We receive commissions or ticketing
fees from the travel supplier and/or traveler. For certain agency airline, hotel and car transactions, we
also receive fees through global distribution systems (“GDS") that provide the computer systems
through which the travel supplier inventory is made available and through which reservations are
booked.
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ROBOAIR, INC.

Notes to the Consolidated Finandal Statements

For the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021
(Expressed in United States dollars)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

We record revenue on air, car rental and hotel stay transactions when the traveler books the
transaction, as we do not provide significant post booking services to the traveler and payments due to
and from the service carriers are typically due at the time of ticketing. In certain transactions, the GDS
collects commissions from our suppliers and passes these commissions to us, net of their fees.
Therefore, we view payments through the GDS as commissions from suppliers and record these
commissions in net revenue.

c) Cash, Restricted Cash, and Cash Equivalents

Our cash and cash equivalents include cash deposit at financial institutions and reserve funds at
Electronic Merchant Systems(“EMS"). The Company is exposed to credit risk on its cash and cash
equivalents in the event of default by the financial institutions to the extent account balances exceed
the amountinsured by the FDIC, which is $250,000. At December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively, the
Company did not have any cash in excess of the insured FDIC limit for the funds deposited at the
financial institutions. The Company’s reserve funds balance at EMS is $19,503 at December 31, 2022
(December 31, 2021 - $Nil) and the entire amount is subject to the credit risk.

d) Trade and Other Receivable

Accounts receivable are recognized when the right to consideration becomes unconditional and are
recorded net of an allowance for credit losses. We record accounts receivable at the invoiced amount.
Our customer invoices are generally due 30 days from the time of invoicing. At each reporting period,
the Company also accrues and record the receivables from the payment processors, if any, netted
against the ticket purchases cost thatis settled through the payment processor within 5 business days.

Due to the short settlement period and immaterial nature of the receivable balance, no expected losses
were provided as of December 31, 2021.

e) Income taxes

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax is recognized in profit or loss except to the
extent that it relates to items recognized directly in shareholders’ equity, in which case the income tax
is also recognized directly in equity or net loss, in which case the income tax is also recognized directly
in equity or net loss.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted at
the end of the reporting period, and any adjustments to tax payable in respect of previous years. Current
tax assets and current tax liabilities are only offset if a legally enforceable right exists to offset the
amounts.

Deferred tax is recognized in respect of all qualifying temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. Deferred income
tax is determined on a non-discounted basis using the tax rates and laws that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period and are expected to apply when the deferred
tax asset or liability is settled. Deferred tax assets are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to
offsettax assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority.

10
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ROBOAIR, INC.

Notes to the Consolidated Finandal Statements

For the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021
(Expressed in United States dollars)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent future recovery is probable. At each reporting period
end, deferred tax assets are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
eamings will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

The Company’s tax year ended December 31, 2022 remains open to assessment by the US federal
and state tax authorities.

f) Foreign currency translations

Our consolidated financial statements are reported in U.S. dollars. Our subsidiary outside of the U.S.
use the U.S dollars as their functional currency. Since the parent company funds their operations in
U.S dollars and there are no material local operations, our subsidiary also engage in transactions in
currencies other than its functional currency. Transactions denominated in currencies other than the
functional currency are recorded based on foreign cumrency exchange rates at the time such
transactions arise. Subsequent changes in foreign currency exchange rates result in transaction gains
and losses which are reflected in our consolidated statements of operations as unrealized (based on
the applicable period-end exchange rate) or realized upon settlement of the transactions. See note 10
for the gains (losses) recorded for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021.

g) Use of estimates and judgments

Income taxes

Provisions for taxes are made using the best estimate of the amount expected to be paid based on a
gualitative assessment of all relevant factors. The Company reviews the adequacy of these provisions
atthe end of the reporting period. However, itis possible that at some future date an additional liability
could result from audits by taxing authorities. Where the final outcome of these tax-related matters is
different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will affect the tax provisions in
the period in which such determination is made.

Fair Value Recognition, Measurement and Disclosure

The camying amounts of cash and cash eguivalents reported on our consolidated balance sheets
approximate fair value as we maintain them with various high-quality financial institutions. The accounts
receivable are short-term in nature and are generally setiled shortly after the sale.

We disclose the fair value of our financial instruments based on the fair value hierarchy using the
following three categories:

Level 1 — Valuations based on quoted prices for identical assets and liabilities in active markets.

Level 2 — Valuations based on observable inputs other than guoted prices included in Level 1, such
as quoted prices for similar assets and liabilities in active markets, quoted prices for identical or similar
assets and liabilities in markets that are not active, or other inputs that are observable or can be
corroborated by observable market data.

Level 3 — Valuations based on uncbservable inputs reflecting the Company’s own assumptions,
consistent with reasaonably available assumptions made by other market participants. These valuations
require significant judgment.

11
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ROBOAIR, INC.

Notes to the Consolidated Finandal Statements

For the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021
(Expressed in United States dollars)

2.

Significant accounting policies (continued)

h) Recent accounting pronouncements

The Company has reviewed new and revised accounting pronouncements that have been issued but
are not yet effective and determined that there were none that would have a significantimpact on the
Company.

i) Going Concem

The Company has incurred net losses in recent years and has accumulated a deficit of $3,133,545 as
of December 31, 2022. The Company has funded operations in the past through loans from its
shareholders. The Company’s continued operations are dependent upon generating sales and the
continued financial support from officers and directors, obtaining funding from third-party sources or the
issuance of additional shares of common stock.

These financial statements have been prepared on a going concem basis, which implies that the
Company will continue to realize its assets and discharge its liabilities in the normal course of business.
The continuation of the Company as a going concemn is dependent upon the continued financial support
from its management, its ability to identify future investment opportunities, to obtain the necessary debt
or equity financing, generating profitable operations from the Company's future operations or the
success of an initial public offering. These factors raise substantial doubt regarding the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concem for a period of twelve months from the date of the financial
statements are issued. These financial statements do not include any adjustments to the recoverability
and classification of recorded asset amounts and classification of liabilities that might be necessary
should the Company be unable to continue as a going concem.

Trade and other receivables
There are no outstanding receivables as at December 31, 2022.

During the year ended December 31, 2021, no expected credit losses were recorded for trade
receivable (2021 - $Nil).

Prepaid expenses
As atDecember 31, 2022, prepaid expenses related entirely to cash sentto Billet Bank for the purchase
of aifline tickets for anticipated customer. (December 31, 2021 - $nil).

Deposits

In connection with the Company’s operations to provide travel documents to customers, Roboair has
entered into an agreement with Airline Reporting Corporation (“ARC") to facilitate the settlement of
funds between Roboair and the airlines providing such travel documents to consumers.

As part of the arrangement, the Company was required to enter into a Pay Cash Security Deposit
Agreement ("Deposit Agreement”) with ARC to maintain an instrument of financial security for the
benefit of ARC (the “Security Deposit”). The Security Deposit is held by ARC as security for any
potential unpaid liabilities that may arise during the performance of the obligations in which the
Company is deemed to be unable to pay.

As at December 31, 2022, the $20,000 balance in Deposits related entirely to funds sent to ARC in
relation to the Deposit Agreement (December 31, 2021 - $23,395).

12
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ROBOAIR, INC.

Notes to the Consolidated Finandal Statements

For the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021
(Expressed in United States dollars)

7. Accounts payable and accrued liabilities

The breakdown of accounts payable and accrued liabilities are as follows:

As at As at

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021

Accounts payable $ 4548 ¢ 6,801
Accrued expenses 32,878 23,581
Other payables 3,098 1,069
Total $ 40,524 $ 31,451

8. Capital stocks
a) Authorized
The Company is authorized to issue 50,200,000 shares of common stocks. 46,000,000 shares are

designated Series A Voting Common Stock, and 4,200,000 shares were designated Series B Non-
Voting Common Stock.

b) Issued and outstanding
As at December 31, 2022 and 2021, there were 38,752,220 and 38,752,220 shares of Series A Voting

Common Stock outstanding, respectively. There were no Series B Non-Voting Common Stock
outstanding for both years.

9. Related party balances and transactions

Mr. Akol had being advancing cash to the business to cover its operations without terms in writing but
based on a mutual understanding of the terms, for an aggregate amount of principal not exceeding
$600,000. As of December 31, 2022, Mr. Akol has advanced an aggregate amount of $428,500
(December 31, 2021 - $259,000), and the accrued interest and interest expense incurred is $Nil for
both years.

In respect to the advances provided by Mr Akol, the Company agreed to repay the principal amount by
no later than December 31, 2023, which can be extended by mutual agreement of both Mr Akol and
the Company. The Company and Mr. Akol formalized a Revolving Promissory Note and Loan
Agreement (“Loan Agreement”) in writing on February 2, 2023 based on the above terms. In addition,
the principal amount bears interest at a rate of 4% per annum calculated and compounded daily, with
interest accrual beginning starting February 2, 2023.

10.Discontinued Operations
Roboair Deutschland GrmbH

During the year ended 2022, the Company is no longer pursuing further development in the German
operations. As a result the Company began a process to assess potential opportunities to sell the
German operations.

In accordance with ASC 205-20, Discontinued Operations, the assets held for sale were assessed for
impairment based on fair value less costs to sell. The fair value was measured using the price at which
the Company expects to receive for the disposal group less estimates for the costs of the disposal. The

13
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ROBOAIR, INC.

Notes to the Consolidated Finandal Statements

For the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021
(Expressed in United States dollars)

10. Discontinued Operations (continued)

fair value less costs to sell was less than the carrying value of the Disposal Group, resulting in the
recognition of the resulting group at its fair value less costs to sell.

The Company expects to transfer the shares of the Company for a value of $Nil; therefore, no assets
or liabilittes were presented on the consolidated balance sheets, and impairment of the net asset held
for sale amounted of $397 and $651 were recorded in 2022 and 2021, respectively. This impairment is
included in the loss from discontinued operations.

A detailed disclosure of revenue, expenses, pre-tax profit and applicable income taxes of the current
and comparative period are presented below:

For the: Year ended Year ended
December 31 December 31
2022 2021
Revenue $ - % -
Costs and expenses
Administrative expenses
General and administration 300 232
Professional fees 2,342 1,248
Foreign exchange gain 41 106
Total administrative expenses 2,683 1,586
Other items
Other (income) loss (2,429) 91
Loss on impaimment of Assets Held for Sale 397 -
Loss before income taxes (651) (1,677)
Income tax provision - current and deferred - -
Net loss $ (651) $ (1,677)
11.Income taxes

Provision for income taxes consists of U.S. federal and state income taxes in certain jurisdictions in
which Roboair conducts business.

2022 2021
Current $ - $ -
Deferred - -
Income tax provision $ - $ -

14
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ROBOAIR, INC.

Notes to the Consolidated Finandal Statements

For the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021
(Expressed in United States dollars)

11.Income taxes (continued)

The income tax recovery differs from the amount that would have resulted from applying the statutory
income tax rate to income before income tax expenses as follows:

2022 2021

Loss before income taxes % (177,211) % (406,090)
Statutory income tax rate based on combined federal and state rates 27.98% 27.98%
Tax recovery at statutory rates (49,584) (113,624)
Tax depreciation for startup cost and R&D 79,211 77,413
Non-taxable PPP Income - (1,000)
Non-deductible expenses - 1,623
Change in valuation allowance (29,627) 35,588
Total 4 - % -

Deferred taxes are a result of temporary differences that arise due to the differences between the
income tax values and the carrying amount of assets and liabilities. Deferred tax assets have not been
recognized in respect of the following deductible temporary differences because it is not probable that
future taxable profit will be available against which the Company can utilize the benefits there from:

2022 2021
Net operating losses carried forward % 1,064,570 % 808,149
Startup cost and and R&D 935,566 1,014,776
Valuation allowance (2,000,136) (1,822,925)
$ - $ -

As of December 31, 2022, the Company had federal net operating loss (“NOL") carryforwards of
approximately $1,064,570 (December 31, 2021 — 808,149). The NOL balance can be carried forward
indefinitely and applied against taxable income for the future years.

As of December 31, 2022, we had a valuation allowance of $2,000,136 related to certain tax atiribute
carryforwards for which it is more likely than not the tax benefits will not be realized. The valuation
allowance increased by $177,211 from the amount recorded as of December 31, 2021 primarily due to
the increase of net operating losses. The Company’s utilization of any net operating loss carry forward
may be unlikely as a result of its intended activities. The management believes itis more likely than not
that these assets will not be realized in the future.

12.Subsequent events

On March 9, 2023, the Company effected a 1:4 forward stock split along with the increase in total
authorized shares from 9,987,995 to 50,200,000. Among the 50,200,000 shares, 46,000,000 shares
are designated Series A Voting Common Stock, and 4,200,000 shares were designated Series B Non-
Voting Common Stock. The par value of each share decreased from $0.0001 to $0.000025 as a result
of the stock split. The share count in the consolidated financial statements is presented on a post-split
basis. The Company has amended and restated the Certificate of incorporation and filed with the state
of Delaware on March 10, 2023, which included the adoption of a stock and option incentive plan (the
“Plan”) with a maximum aggregate number of 2,900,000 shares of Series A Voting Stock pursuant to
the Plan.
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the affordabiity and transparency of ravel bookings.

Non-Traveler-Centric:

= Limitations and frustrations for the needs and
preferences of modern-day ravelers. Individusls
cannot fing the most suitable option due to moosad
restrictions.

Limited Avenues for Handling Exceptions:

= Designed o wark with standard travel products with
no parsonalizaton for travalars, Slow improvamants
cannol keep pace with evolving tech.

Tech
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1

v
TRAVELER

The Trillion-Dollar Travel Industry Is Reliant on Old

Direct Distribution

The only werk-arcund to GDS for travel suppllers s
distribution through individual stpplier wabsites

Fragmented User Experience:

 Travelars are moonvenisnced with ditferent inlerfaces,
websites, and booking procassas whan navigating
miullipie platarms.

Limited Inventory:

Indlividual supplier websites rarely have the abiiity to
bunchie fights; stays or car-rentals. Travelars ara
resiricled to very limited oplions al non-competitive
prices.

Pricing Variability:

+ Supplier websites lack standardized pricing. This
results in unexpected additonal fees making it difficult
o compare options lor fravelers

Inconsistent Support:

= Significant variance in level of customer supparl from
diffgrant providers. Unforeseen circumstances can
result in & bad user expenence.

Limited Benefits:

+ Ganerally, loyalty programs or membership benefits
are limited to the supplier of choica. No umbredla

loyally program with inleschangeasle membershig
banefits
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Online Travel is Ripe for a Disruptive Solution that

GDS/Consolidators

S
-

TRAVELER
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Addresses Inefficiencies

TDS

| Teur Oparator
Entreprensurs

Consalldator

= Traveler
Car

jem

Roboair's Traveler Distribution System (TDS):
Revolutionizing the Travel Industry by Eliminating
Intermediaries and Reducing Costs

Tour Operator
Eptrapr-m:ur's

Consolidator i *

Benefits For Suppliers

Direct Relationships:

= Suppliers can build direct relatonships with travelars,
improving communication and allowing lar
personalized servica offerings

Reduced Transaction Fees:

+ Upcoming blockehain integration vl drasticasy
reduce fransachon costs and enhance security.

Lower Distribution Costs:

+ Heducing intermedianes significantly reduces the cost

of distributlon and allews travel suppliers direct
access to iravalers,

Airlines

Benefits For Travelers

Traveler-Centric:

= TDS priontzes the traveler with & seamless booking
exparience that ensures the best price and customer
SEIVICE.

Competitive Pricing:

+ Bypassing fraditionsl intermedianas will allow fravelers
to accEss mone competitive proing directly from
supgHiers.

B irad i
F Fr

= Fagiftating connactivity betwesn ravel suppliers and
travelers will empower betler custamization of proguct
offenings to cater to ndhiduals.

Transforming Travel Distribution

Streamlined Connectivity:

= Estandishing a diract bridge betwoan travelers and
suppliers banelits everyane involved, genarating
efficiencies and mmproved semnvice offenings.

Security, Efficiency & Scalability:

s TOS anhances security and sfticienay with soalable
technology that sigrificantly lowers operational costs

Innovation and Access:

s Upcoming bisckehan integration unlocks access to
DaFl markets, pionearing a new era of financial
mieracton within the travel indusiry.



Ahmet YALCIN Orhan GOKSAL Berk AKOL

Roboair Roboair Roboair
Advisory Board Member Advisory Iiu_ard Member Consultan! on web3
Draper Venture Network Emirates NBD DenizPortfoy
Member of Draper Venture Network Chalrman & Intertech Advisar

INVEST NOW

INVESTORS GET 10% OFF ALL BOOKINGS FOR LIFE

“Suitjeert 0 Condiiims.

Roboair is Making Travel Sustainable with Active Advocacy
and Environmentally Friendly Practices

Our Enviranmental Mission: Cultivating Access to Responsible Travel Oplions and Fostering a Sustainable
Travel Ecosystem for a Green Futura

%

Carbenfund.org

Dilara AKOL
Robosair
Convultont on Sustaimablity
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Empowering Travelers For a Sustainable Future

Inform

Display sustainability facts about
green travel options, highlighting
those that are better for the

Travelers will be able to calculate
the environmental effect of their
trip with our in-app calculator and
neutralize their carbon footprint
at checkout

Y

Filter

Travelers can soon filter to find
the most sustainable traved
options using our in-app carbon
footprint calculator, neutralizing
their effect on the envirenment.

Partner with influencers and
industry leaders to ralse
awareness, share fips on
sustainable travel and foster a
mindful community.

Roboair Will Match 50%
Offsets

Cars
Flights
Stays

Flights
; e
(4 WP E
T
NYC + SFO

]

Caonnect to leading, low-cost
and regional airlines to ensura
ghobal coverage

The Cheapest Alr Tickets

Access our direct inlegrations
and a multitude of sources to
get the best price

Expanding Direct Integrations

MNarweglan, Pegasus and British
Alrways are an our growing kst
of direct integrations

Products

Stays

< W Vork MEE

[
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+200.000 Stays

Varely of opions from lavish o
affordable with a seamiess

bocking experience

Seamlessly Experlence Stays
Enjey enhanced customer
sefvice and a traveler-conirc
user interface while Mobo gets
you the best deal

Double Dip Loyalty Program

Gat membarship benefits fram
Habcalr in addition 1o the loyally
program of your stay

INVEST NOW

Of Carbon

lers will be able to calculate and offset their

arbon footprint via our in-app calcula

r & donate the

rbonFund to offset their

committing to matching 50% of tr
sh-back to their Robowallet to

o green future

Initdatives,

INVEST NOW

banFund Ir
offsels In high guality environmenlal proje

INVESTORS GET 10% OFF ALL BOOKINGS FOR LIFE

Car Rental
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+30.000 Car Rental Points
Car-rental network with paints all

around the globe for
comarehensive coverage

Compare Multiple Providers

Travelars can ulilize our vast
nietwork ta find the bast value in
avery frip

Local & Reglonal Partners

Travelars can access curaled
deals and bundles via & system
thist benelits supphers too

INVESTORS GET 10% OFF ALL BOOKINGS FOR LIFE
“Sdisjee? b2 0ad Bods
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Unique Membership Program with Cash-Back Benefits

Seamlessly Earn and Mix Membership Benefits Across Flights, Cars, and Stays with
Roboair's Umbrella Loyalty Program

Cars
Flights

Stays

Ak v bwns Loz

Cash-Back Banefit
5% ot all flights

10% arv all car remals
20% an all stays

Use cash-back an any fighl,
or carrental to get the best deals

Robo.The WorldWide Local.

H
"
]
L]

Fal
1}

B Thon W 1

Doubla the Points/Miles
Double the Benefits

Gt miles from your airfline, stay
ar ravel providar of choice and
get cash-back from Roboalr

Enjoy Benefits Across Services

Members can use cash. k
aarmad from bookings across all
Haboal sarices

Ex: use cash-back earnad from
lights on your rext hoted booking

Sk
e T

e e

Refarral Codes

Special codes for influancers
unique codes for each user, 1o
Invite users and earm
RoboFriends

Uitdizer tha app fo
connecl o ofher &

s oL trip,

Roba.Tha WorldWide Local

Community of iravel enthust
from all arourd the warld

Future Access to Deals on
Robomarket

Membars anly de
spaciallzed produc:

and

Robomarket: Marketplace for All Things Travel

To be launched! Travelers will have access to discounted travel
bundles to unique destinations, weekly campaigns, and much more on
Robomarket, with an option to pay in crypto.

+3k Returning Visitors, positive feedback to weekly campaigns
Beta Trial for Rebomarkel was a success.

Weekly Contests

Mambers can aocess curatad rav
¢l deals; discount codes and much

MO GVETY WEEH

Double Dip Loyalty

Enjoy miles/paints from the airine,
stay or provicer of choice in addi-
ticn to Hobomarke: benefits.

‘Web3 Travel Marketplace
Parinerships with Web3 ecosys
tems, co-branding cpportunities
and much more, scon to come.

Traveler-Centric

Direct linkage to ravel parmers al
lows for @ more personalized. (rav-
gler-centric marketplace
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Fatih AKOL
Roboair
Founder & Chairman
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Fatih is an exparenced entrepraneur
who has been responsible for the
formation of several successful
campanies in varying indusiries, Tha
last decade of his career he has
been intensively focusing on the
growing lelecommunicallon, aviation
and tachnclogy industries.

Fatih has led countless acquisitions
through his capital formation skills,
exacutive recruitmants and corporate
strategy. Further, he specializes in
developing new ventures by
assembling veniure’s managemeant
team, building business model and
developing business stralegies. To
date, he has developad businesses
in commadity frading, madia, real
estate, manufacturing, aviation,
intarnet, linancial leasing,
telecommunications and loglstics
sactors.

Falih's specialties are; merger and
scquisition, negotistion, lobbying.
management, logistics, linancing,
campuling, aviation, media and
startups.

Building Community:
Robo.The WorldWide Local

the world

Blockehan Ambassadors

patiorm

Active on CT - Crypio Twitier -

savwy group of people

Curale contanl lor our large! audience and supzort

outregch with campaigns

&

"h"%'

<GP

Orhan GOKSAL
Roboalr

Advisory Board Member
Emirates NBD DenizPortfoy
Chairman & intertech Advison

Orhan has over 30 years of
leadership, experience and
entrepreneurial skills. He has held
various top lavel exacutive positions
and served on numeraus boards of
various domestic and multinational
companies,

A serial entrepreneur in tech
startups, Orhan has extensive
axparienos in corporate
management at a principal and
execulive level. Orhan has a long
histary of building infrastruclure and
developing systems and has workad
i a various indusiries including
finance, telecommunicalions,
technology industries, digital
banking, Internet and gaming

Orhan has served as an advisary
board member for vanous
cempanies in various industries.
Some of these are, Ritmus LLC
SafesForce Consultancy, Denizbank
Sbar Bank Mext Ganeration Diglal
Banking, TurkCell - the leading GSM
service provider in Turkey with 65%
market share, Dogan lietizim- ona of
the leading Internet sarvice &
content providers in Turkey,
Finansbank, Vesielone of the world's
largest durable goads
manufacturars. He is also a member
of the Turkish Sclence Centars
Foundation.

Upcoming Ambassador Program

Identify and recruit travel influencers fram around

Reach devoted targat audiences by offering limited
discaounts on specilic cryplocurrencies

Active Discord, Telegram and Socal Media
channels with recruited moderators that use our -

1o reach vast tech

(S

Fostering Community

Channels on stack & telegram for community
members to ask & share recommendations and tips

far travelers

Showcase sustainable travel opportunities

Spotiight members and shars user generaled cantent
on secial channals & newsialters

Traveler Partnership Program

To be launchad!

Unigue opportunity far ravelers to eam

Investor Perks

Get 10% off flights, stays and cars booked on Raboalr

for lits

INVEST NOW

INVESTORS GET 10% OFF ALL BOOKINGS FOR LIFE

"Bubpses 10 opedRnng

TEAM

Evren ERYUREK
Roboair

Advisory Board Member
Google

CT0 Office Director

Evran Eryurek, PhD is the laadar of
Diata Analytics and Data
Management portfolio of Google
Cloud covering Data Movemant,
ETL, Dala Processing Streaming
Analytics, Datallow, Beam,
Messaging (Pub/Sub & Confiuent
Kafka), as the Director of Product
Management. He joined Google
Gigud as the Technical Director in
the CTO Office of Google Clouwd as
the 15t external mamber 10 lake
leadership role as a Technical
Director within the CTO Office of
Google Cloud.

Prior to joining Google, he was the
SVP & Software Chigl Technology
Officar for GE Healthcare. He was
delivening healthcare clinical,
business, and operational solutions
‘with medical equipment, Information
technologies, lite sciences and
service technologies, His specialties
are in soliware-based growth and
data technalogies.

A graduate of the University of
Tennassea, Evran holds a master's
and doctorate in Muclear
Engingerning. Evren holds over 60 US
patents and is author of the bock
titled “Data Govermance: The
Definitive Guide.”

Ahmet YALCIN

Roboair

Advisory Board Member

Draper Venture Network
Member of Drapar Vaniura MNelwork

Ahmel Yalcin ks a Computer Sclentist
and PR candidate wha currenty
currently is a mamber of Drapar
Vanture Network with 101010
Ventures - an early-slage venture
syndication. Deaper Venlure is &
leader in early-stage venture capital
with & $4.58 portfolio.

Far the first half of his carser for
about two decades, Ahmet advised
saveral Fortuna 2500 multinational
campanias in variols strategic
technology related projects in over
25 countries, globally. In the sacond
term of his professional life, since
2007, he has been working with or
invasting in tech-startups, in Europe
and ihe LS. Ahmet specializes in
Web3 & Blockehain [Decentralized
Distributed Camputing),
Tokenization, Mergers & Accusations
and Deep Tech, Venlure Capital,
Telecommunications and Solar
Energy.

Ahmet participales in various
initiatives that speak 1o his Inleraste
and curiosities; Stanford Blockshain
Club, Wu Tsai Neurosciences
Institute, Humar-canterad Arificial
Inteligence (Stanford HAI Instituta)
and Berlin Bosphorus Initiative

William Benson
Roboair

Advisary Board Member
Bristol Myers Squibb

Contract Compliance Oflicar

‘Willlan |s the contract compliance
officer aversesing an entarprise
senvice providar at Bristol Myers
Squibb. He provides optimizations
and enforces compliance of technical
delivery for & multi-billion dollar
contract with a global IT outsourced
service provider far the multinational
phamaceulical company.

William is a chief technical architect
and visonary for Fortune 50
companies in the phar itical
and telecommunications industries.
Known for relentlessly driving
innovation in soltware solutions and
efficiency in business processes.
Documeantad strangths in building
robust relationships with diverse
ranges of stakeholders in dynamic,
fast-pacad seftings. Specializing in
building, leading, and mentaring
high-performing global matrix-
managed teams across multiple
outsourced service providers.

A masier graduate from California
Institute of Technoloay, William had
the unique cpportunity to be a pan of
the Mars rover design project. He
worked with Jet Propuisian Labs
(JPL) as part of a team designing
wheel concepts for the NASA rovers
that would become Spirit and
Opportunity that landed on Mars in
2004,
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Frequently Asked Questions

1. Why invest in startups?

2. How much can | invest?

3. How do | calculate my net worth?

4. What are the tax implications of an equity crowdfunding investment?

5. Who can Invest in a Regulation CF Offering?

6. What do | need to know about sarly-stage investing? Are these investments risky?
7. When will | get my investment back?

B. Can | sell my shares?

9. What happens if a company does not reach their funding target?

10. How can | learn more about a company's offering?

11. What if | change my mind about investing?

12, How do | keep up with how the company is doing?

13. What relationship does the company have with DealMaker Securities?

14. What are the conditions for the "Investors Get 10% Off All Bookings For Life™ Invesior perk?

Join The Discussion

invest.robeair.com Comment Policy

We welcame ralevant and respectful comments. OFf toplc commenta may ba remaoved

0 Comments
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EXHIBIT C TO FORM C

SUBSCRIPTION AGREEMENT

THIS INVESTMENT INVOLVES A HIGH DEGREE OF RISK. THIS INVESTMENT IS SUITABLE
ONLY FOR PERSONS WHO CAN BEAR THE ECONOMIC RISK FOR AN INDEFINITE
PERIOD OF TIME AND WHO CAN AFFORD TO LOSE THEIR ENTIRE INVESTMENT.
FURTHERMORE, INVESTORS MUST UNDERSTAND THAT SUCH INVESTMENT IS
ILLIQUID AND IS EXPECTED TO CONTINUE TO BE ILLIQUID FOR AN INDEFINITE PERIOD
OF TIME. NO PUBLIC MARKET EXISTS FOR THE SECURITIES, AND NO PUBLIC MARKET
IS EXPECTED TO DEVELOP FOLLOWING THIS OFFERING.

THE SECURITIES OFFERED HEREBY HAVE NOT BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE
SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED (THE “SECURITIES ACT”), OR ANY STATE
SECURITIES OR BLUE SKY LAWS AND ARE BEING OFFERED AND SOLD IN RELIANCE
ON EXEMPTIONS FROM THE REGISTRATION REQUIREMENTS OF THE SECURITIES ACT
AND STATE SECURITIES OR BLUE SKY LAWS. ALTHOUGH AN OFFERING STATEMENT
HAS BEEN FILED WITH THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION (THE “SEC”),
THAT OFFERING STATEMENT DOES NOT INCLUDE THE SAME INFORMATION THAT
WOULD BE INCLUDED IN A REGISTRATION STATEMENT UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT
AND IT IS NOT REVIEWED IN ANY WAY BY THE SEC. THE SECURITIES HAVE NOT BEEN
APPROVED OR DISAPPROVED BY THE SEC, ANY STATE SECURITIES COMMISSION OR
OTHER REGULATORY AUTHORITY, NOR HAVE ANY OF THE FOREGOING AUTHORITIES
PASSED UPON THE MERITS OF THIS OFFERING OR THE ADEQUACY OR ACCURACY OF
THE SUBSCRIPTION AGREEMENT OR ANY OTHER MATERIALS OR INFORMATION MADE
AVAILABLE TO SUBSCRIBER IN CONNECTION WITH THIS OFFERING OVER THE WEB-
BASED PLATFORM MAINTAINED BY DEALMAKER SECURITIES LLC (THE
‘INTERMEDIARY"). ANY REPRESENTATION TO THE CONTRARY IS UNLAWFUL.

INVESTORS ARE SUBJ ECT TO LIMITATIONS ON THE AMOUNT THEY MAY INVEST. THE
COMPANY IS RELYING ON THE REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES SET FORTH BY
EACH SUBSCRIBER IN THIS SUBSCRIPTION AGREEMENT AND THE OTHER
INFORMATION PROVIDED BY SUBSCRIBER IN CONNECTION WITH THIS OFFERING TO
DETERMINE THE APPLICABILITY TO THIS OFFERING OF EXEMPTIONS FROM THE
REGISTRATION REQUIREMENTS OF THE SECURITIES ACT.

PROSPECTIVE INVESTORS MAY NOT TREAT THE CONTENTS OF THE SUBSCRIPTION
AGREEMENT, THE OFFERING STATEMENT ON FORM C OR ANY OF THE OTHER
MATERIALS AVAILABLE ON THE INTERMEDIARY’S WEBSITE (COLLECTIVELY, THE
“OFFERING MATERIALS”) OR ANY COMMUNICATIONS FROM THE COMPANY OR ANY
OF ITS OFFICERS, EMPLOYEES OR AGENTS AS INVESTMENT, LEGAL OR TAX ADVICE.
IN MAKING AN INVESTMENT DECISION, INVESTORS MUST RELY ON THEIR OWN
EXAMINATION OF THE COMPANY AND THE TERMS OF THIS OFFERING, INCLUDING THE
MERITS AND THE RISKS INVOLVED. EACH PROSPECTIVE INVESTOR SHOULD CONSULT
THE INVESTOR'S OWN COUNSEL, ACCOUNTANT AND OTHER PROFESSIONAL
ADVISOR AS TO INVESTMENT, LEGAL, TAX AND OTHER RELATED MATTERS
CONCERNING THE INVESTOR'S PROPOSED INVESTMENT.
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THE OFFERING MATERIALS MAY CONTAIN FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS AND
INFORMATION RELATING TO, AMONG OTHER THINGS, THE COMPANY, ITS BUSINESS
PLAN AND STRATEGY, AND ITS INDUSTRY. THESE FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS
ARE BASED ON THE BELIEFS OF, ASSUMPTIONS MADE BY, AND INFORMATION
CURRENTLY AVAILABLE TO THE COMPANY'S MANAGEMENT. WHEN USED IN THE
OFFERING MATERIALS, THE WORDS “ESTIMATE,” “PROJECT,” “BELIEVE,” “ANTICIPATE,”
‘INTEND,” “EXPECT" AND SIMILAR EXPRESSIONS ARE INTENDED TO IDENTIFY
FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS, WHICH CONSTITUTE FORWARD LOOKING
STATEMENTS. THESE STATEMENTS REFLECT MANAGEMENT'S CURRENT VIEWS WITH
RESPECT TO FUTURE EVENTS AND ARE SUBJ ECT TO RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES THAT
COULD CAUSE THE COMPANY'S ACTUAL RESULTS TO DIFFER MATERIALLY FROM
THOSE CONTAINED IN THE FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS. INVESTORS ARE
CAUTIONED NOT TO PLACE UNDUE RELIANCE ON THESE FORWARD-LOOKING
STATEMENTS, WHICH SPEAK ONLY AS OF THE DATE ON WHICH THEY ARE MADE. THE
COMPANY DOES NOT UNDERTAKE ANY OBLIGATION TO REVISE OR UPDATE THESE
FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS TO REFLECT EVENTS OR CIRCUMSTANCES AFTER
SUCH DATE OR TO REFLECT THE OCCURRENCE OF UNANTICIPATED EVENTS.

THE INFORMATION PRESENTED INTHE OFFERING MATERIALS WAS PREPARED BY THE
COMPANY SOLELY FOR THE USE BY PROSPECTIVE INVESTORS IN CONNECTION WITH
THIS OFFERING. NO REPRESENTATIONS OR WARRANTIES ARE MADE AS TO THE
ACCURACY OR COMPLETENESS OF THE INFORMATION CONTAINED IN ANY OFFERING
MATERIALS, AND NOTHING CONTAINED IN THE OFFERING MATERIALS IS OR SHOULD
BE RELIED UPON AS A PROMISE OR REPRESENTATION AS TO THE FUTURE
PERFORMANCE OF THE COMPANY.

THE COMPANY RESERVES THE RIGHT IN ITS SOLE DISCRETION AND FOR ANY REASON
WHATSOEVER TO MODIFY, AMEND AND/OR WITHDRAW ALL OR A PORTION OF THE
OFFERING AND/OR ACCEPT OR RE) ECT IN WHOLE OR IN PART ANY PROSPECTIVE
INVESTMENT IN THE SECURITIES OR TO ALLOT TO ANY PROSPECTIVE INVESTOR
LESS THAN THE AMOUNT OF SECURITIES SUCH INVESTOR DESIRES TO PURCHASE.
EXCEPT AS OTHERWISE INDICATED, THE OFFERING MATERIALS SPEAK AS OF THEIR
DATE. NEITHER THE DELIVERY NOR THE PURCHASE OF THE SECURITIES SHALL,
UNDER ANY CIRCUMSTANCES, CREATE ANY IMPLICATION THAT THERE HAS BEEN NO
CHANGE IN THE AFFAIRS OF THE COMPANY SINCE THAT DATE.

TO:
Roboair, Inc.
530 Lytton Ave 2nd floor
Palo Alto, CA 94301
Ladies and Gentlemen:

1) Subscription.

a) The undersigned (“Subscriber) hereby subscribes for and agrees to purchase such
number of shares of Series B Non-Voting Common Stock, par value $0.000025 per share
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b)

c)

d)

e)

(the “Securities’ or “ Series B Non-Voting Common Stock' or “Shares”), of Roboair,
Inc., a Delaware corporation (the “Company’), set forth on the signature page at a per
share price of $1.20 and for a total purchase price set forth on the signature page, upon
the terms and conditions set forth herein. The rights of the Securities are as set forth in
the Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the Company and any
description of the Securities that appears in the Offering Materials is qualified in its entirety
by such document. Capitalized terms not otherwise defined have the meaning set forth in
the Offering Statement on Form C of the Company filed with the SEC (the “ Offering
Statement’).

The undersigned recognizes that there is a three and one half percent (3.5%), up to a
maximum amount of $350.08, Investor Transaction Fee that is added to the total cash
needed to make the investment for the Securities.

By executing this Subscription Agreement, Subscriber acknowledges that Subscriber has
received this Subscription Agreement, a copy of the Offering Statement and any other
information required by the Subscriber to make an investment decision.

This Subscription may be accepted or rejected in whole or in part, at any time prior to a
Closing Date (as hereinafter defined), by the Company at its sole discretion. In addition,
the Company, at its sole discretion, may allocate to Subscriber only a portion of the
number of Securities Subscriber has subscribed for. The Company will notify Subscriber
whether this subscription is accepted (whether in whole or in part) or rejected. If
Subscriber's subscription is rejected, Subscriber's payment (or portion thereof if partially
rejected) will be returned to Subscriber without interest and all of Subscriber’s obligations
hereunder shall terminate. The undersigned acknowledges that the Company has the
right in its sole and absolute discretion to abandon this Offering at any time prior to the
completion of the Offering. This Subscription Agreement shall thereafter have no force or
effect and the Company shall retum any previously paid subscription price of the
Securities, without interest thereon, to the undersigned.

Subscriber acknowledges that it may cancel its subscription up to 48 hours prior to the
Offering Deadline, or such earlier time as the Company designates pursuant to Regulation
CF, using the cancellation mechanism provided by the Intermediary. The Intermediary has
the ability to reject any investment commitment and may cancel or rescind the Company’s
offer to sell the Securities at any time for any reason. Once within 48 hours of the Offering
Deadline Subscriber will not be able to cancel for any reason, even if they make a
subscription during this period.

The aggregate value of Securites sold shall not exceed $4,999,903.14 (the
“Oversubscription Offering’). The Company may accept subscriptions until the Offering
Deadline identified in the Offering Statement filed with the Commission (as amended from
time to time) (the “ Termination Date’). Providing that subscriptions for $20,000.40 worth
of Securities (excluding the value of any Securities issued to the Intermediary) are
received (the “Target Offering’), the Company may elect at any time to close all or any
portion of this offering, on various dates at or prior to the Termination Date (each a
“Closing Date’).



DocuSign Envelope ID: DB1429D6-A90B-41D3-A43B-FB2469831689

g) In the event of rejection of this subscription in its entirety, or in the event the sale of the
Securities (or any portion thereof) is not consummated for any reason, this Subscription
Agreement shall have no force or effect

2) Perk for Investing. After the Closing, Subscriber will be provided a 10% lifetime discount to
bookings made through the Company. This lifetime discount is subject to the following
conditions: 1. The discount can be used 3 times per month. 2. Subscriber’s can only use the
discount on themselves. 3. No other discount or promo can be combined with this discount

3) Purchase Procedure.

a) Payment The purchase price for the Securities shall be paid simulaneously with the
execution and delivery to the Company of the signature page of this Subscription
Agreement, which signature and delivery may take place through digital online means.
Subscriber shall deliver a signed copy of this Subscription Agreement, along with payment
for the aggregate purchase price of the Securities in accordance with the online payment
process established by the Intermediary.

b) Escrow amangements. Payment for the Securities shall be received by the escrow agent
appointed by the securities intermediary in this offering (the “Escrow Agent’) from the
undersigned by transfer of immediately available funds or other means approved by the
Company prior to the applicable Closing, in the amount as set forth below and otherwise in
accordance with Intermediary’s payment processing instructions. Upon such Closing, the
Escrow Agent shall release such funds to the Company. The undersigned shall receive
notice and evidence of the digital entry of the number of the Securities owned by
undersigned reflected on the books and records of the Company, which books and records
shall bear a notation that the Securities were sold in reliance upon Regulation CF.

4) Representations and Warranties of the Company.

The Company represents and warrants to Subscriber that the following representations and
warranties are true and complete in all material respects as of the date of each Closing Date,
except as otherwise indicated. For purposes of this Agreement, an individual shall be deemed to
have “knowledge” of a particular fact or other matter if such individual is actually aware of such
fact. The Company will be deemed to have “knowledge” of a particular fact or other matter if one
of the Company’s current officers has, or at any time had, actual knowledge of such fact or other
matter.

a) Organization and Standing. The Company is a corporation duly formed, validly existing and
in good standing under the laws of the State of Delaware. The Company has all requisite
power and authority to own and operate its properties and assets, to execute and deliver this
Subscription Agreement, and any other agreements or instruments required hereunder. The
Company is duly qualified and is authorized to do business and is in good standing as a
foreign corporation in all jurisdictions in which the nature of its activiies and of its
properties (both owned and leased) makes such qualification necessary, except for those
jurisdictions in which failure to do so would not have a material adverse effect on the
Company or its business.
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b)

C)

d)

Eligibility of the Company to Make an Offering under Section 4(a)(6). The Company is
eligible to make an offering under Section 4(a)(6) of the Securities Act and the rules
promulgated thereunder by the SEC.

Issuance of the Securities. The issuance, sale and delivery of the Securities in accordance
with this Subscription Agreement has been duly authorized by all necessary corporate action
on the part of the Company. The Securities, when so issued, sold and delivered against
payment therefor in accordance with the provisions of this Subscription Agreement, will be
duly and validly issued, fully paid and non-assessable.

Authority for Agreement. The execution and delivery by the Company of this Subscription
Agreement and the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby (including the
issuance, sale and delivery of the Securities) are within the Company’s powers and have
been duly authorized by all necessary corporate actions on the part of the Company. Upon
full execution hereof, this Subscription Agreement shall constitute a valid and binding
agreement of the Company, enforceable against the Company in accordance with its
terms, except (i) as limited by applicable bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization,
moratorium, and other laws of general application affecting enforcement of creditors’ rights
generally, (i) as limited by laws relating to the availability of specific performance,
injunctive relief, or other equitable remedies and (iii) with respect to provisions relating to
indemnification and contribution, as limited by considerations of public policy and by
federal or state securities laws.

No filings. Assuming the accuracy of the Subscriber’s representations and warranties set
forth in Section 4 hereof, no order, license, consent, authorization or approval of, or
exemption by, or action by or in respect of, or notice to, or filing or registration with, any
governmental body, agency or official is required by or with respect to the Company in
connection with the execution, delivery and performance by the Company of this
Subscription Agreement except (i) for such filings as may be required under Section
4(a)(6) of the Securities Act or the rules promulgated thereunder or under any applicable
state securities laws, (ii) for such other filings and approvals as have been made or
obtained, or (iii) where the failure to obtain any such order, license, consent, authorization,
approval or exemption or give any such notice or make any filing or registration would not
have a material adverse effect on the ability of the Company to perform its obligations
hereunder.

Financial statements. Complete copies of the Company’s consolidated audited financial

statements consisting of balance sheets, statements of operations, statements of changes
in stockholders’ deficit and statements of cash flows as December 31, 2022 and 2021 (the
“ Financial Statements’) have been made available to the Subscriber and appear as an
exhibit to the Offering Statement. The Financial Statements are based on the books and
records of the Company and fairly present the financial condition of the Company as of the
respective dates they were prepared. The certified public accountant who has audited or
reviewed the Financial Statements, is an independent accounting firm within the rules and
regulations adopted by the SEC. The Financial Statements comply with the requirements of
Rule 201 of Regulation Crowdfunding, as promulgated by the SEC.
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5)

g)

Litigation. Except as set forth in the Offering Statement, there is no pending action, suit,
proceeding, arbitration, mediation, complaint, claim, charge or investigation before any
court, arbitrator, mediator or governmental body, or to the Company’s knowledge,
currently threatened in writing (a) against the Company or (b) against any consultant,
officer, manager, director or key employee of the Company arising out of his or her
consulting, employment or board relationship with the Company or that could otherwise
materially impact the Company.

Representations and Warranties of Subscriber. By executing this Subscription Agreement,

Subscriber (and, if Subscriber is purchasing the Securities subscribed for hereby in a fiduciary
capacity, the person or persons for whom Subscriber is purchasing) represents and warrants,
which representations and warranties are true and complete in all material respects as of the
date of the Subscriber’s respective Closing Date(s):

a)

b)

c)

d)

Requisite Power and Authority. Such Subscriber has all necessary power and authority
under all applicable provisions of law to execute and deliver this Subscription Agreement,
and other agreements required hereunder and to carry out their provisions. All action on
Subscriber's part required for the lawful execution and delivery of this Subscription
Agreement and other agreements required hereunder have been or will be effectively
taken prior to the Closing. Upon their execution and delivery, this Subscription Agreement
and other agreements required hereunder will be valid and binding obligations of
Subscriber, enforceable in accordance with their terms, except (a) as limited by applicable
bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium or other laws of general application
affecting enforcement of creditors’ rights and (b) as limited by general principles of equity
that restrict the availability of equitable remedies.

Investment Representations. Subscriber understands that the Securities have not been
registered under the Securities Act. Subscriber also understands that the Securities are
being offered and sold pursuant to an exemption from registration contained in the Act
based in part upon Subscribers representations contained in this Subscription
Agreement

lliquidity and Continued Economic Risk. Subscriber acknowledges and agrees that there

is no ready public market for the Securities and that there is no guarantee that a market
for their resale will ever exist. Subscriber must bear the economic risk of this investment
indefinitely and the Company has no obligation to list the Securities on any market or take
any steps (including registration under the Securities Act or the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934, as amended) with respect to facilitating trading or resale of the Securities.
Subscriber acknowledges that Subscriber is able to bear the economic risk of losing
Subscriber's entire investment in the Securities. Subscriber also understands that an
investment in the Company involves significant risks and has taken full cognizance of and
understands all of the risk factors relating to the purchase of Securities.

Resales. Subscriber agrees that during the one-year period beginning on the date on

which it acquired Securities pursuant to this Subscription Agreement, it shall not transfer
such Securities except:

i) To the Company;
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e)

ii) To an “accredited investor” within the meaning of Rule 501 of Regulation D under the

iii)

Securities Act;

As part of an offering registered under the Securities Act with the SEC; or

iv) To a member of the Subscriber’s family or the equivalent, to a trust controlled by the

Subscriber, to a trust created for the benefit of a member of the family of the Subscriber
or equivalent, or in connection with the death or divorce of the Subscriber or other
similar circumstance.

Investment Limits. Subscriber represents that either:

i)

iii)

Either of Subscriber's net worth or annual income is less than $124,000, and that the
amount itis investing pursuant to this Subscription Agreement, together with all other
amounts invested in offerings under Section 4(a)(6) of the Securities Act within the
previous 12 months, is either less than (A) 5% of the greater of its annual income or
net worth, or (B) $2,500; or

Both of Subscriber's net worth and annual income are more than $124,000, and that
the amount it is investing pursuant to this Subscription Agreement, together with all
other amounts invested in offerings under Section 4(a)(6) of the Securities Act within
the previous 12 months, is less than 10% of the greater of its annual income or net
worth, and does not exceed $124,000; or

Subscriber is an “accredited investor” within the meaning of Rule 501 of Regulation D
under the Securities Act, and no investment limits shall apply.

Repurchase Rights.

i)

Subscriber hereby represents that none of the "bad actor" disqualifying events
described in Rule 503 of Regulation Crowdfunding promulgated under the Securities
Act (a "Disqualification Event') is applicable to Subscriber or any of its Rule 503
Related Parties. For purposes of this Agreement, "Rule 503 Related Party" shall mean
with respect to any person, any other person that is a beneficial owner of such
Subscriber's securities for purposes of Rule 503 of Regulation Crowdfunding.
Subscriber agrees that, if Subscriber owns twenty percent (20%) or more of the
Company's outstanding shares of capital stock or otherwise becomes subject to Rule
503 of Regulation Crowdfunding with respect to the Company at any time, Subscriber
will complete, and cause any of its directors, officers, managers, pariners or owners
who is a beneficial owner of twenty percent (20%) or more of Subscriber's outstanding
shares of capital stock to complete, a "Disqualification Event Questionnaire'
containing representations as to potential Disqualification Events, and such
questionnaire shall constitute a representation and warranty by Subscriber under this
Subscription Agreement. Subscriber will immediately notify the Company in writing if
it becomes subject to a Disqualification Event at any date after Subscriber completes
a Disqualification Event Questionnaire. If Subscriber becomes subject o a
Disqualification Event at any date after the date that Subscriber completes a
Disqualification Event Questionnaire, Subscriber agrees and covenants to use
Subscriber's best efforts to coordinate with the Company (i) to provide documentation

7
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a)

h)

as reasonably requested by the Company related t any such Disqualification Event
and (ii) to remedy such Disqualification Event (including, in the sole discretion of the
Company, through the repurchase of all or any portion of the Securities from the
Subscriber, out of funds legally available therefor, at the then effective Repurchase
Price, as defined below) such that the Disqualification Event will not affect in any way
the Company's or its affiliates’ ongoing and/or future reliance on the exemptions
available under Regulation Crowdfunding promulgated under the Securities Act

ii) Inaddition to the rights to repurchase shares in the event Subscriber becomes subject
to a Disqualification Event, in the event that the Company determines that it is likely,
due to meeting certain asset tests set forth in Section 12(g) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the "Exchange Act'), that within twelve (12)
months the securities of the Company will be held of record by a number of persons
that would require the Company or any predecessor thereto (each a "CF Issuer’) to
register a class of its equity securities under the Exchange Act as required by Section
12(g) or 15(d) thereof, the CF Issuer shall have the option to repurchase any or all of
the Securities from each Subscriber to the extent necessary to avoid the requirement
to register a class of such CF Issuer's securities under the Exchange Act Such
repurchase shall be made at a per share purchase price equal to the fair market value
(determined in good faith by the Board of Directors) of Securities as of the repurchase
date (the "Repurchase Price").

Subscriber information; Personal Data. Within five days after receipt of a request from the
Company, the Subscriber hereby agrees to provide such information with respect to its
status as a securityholder and to execute and deliver such documents as may reasonably
be necessary to comply with any and all laws and regulations to which the Company is or
may become subject Subscriber further agrees that in the event it transfers any
Securities, it will require the Transferee of such Securities to agree to provide such
information to the Company as a condition of such transfer. Subscriber agrees to
provide the Company all personal data or information (including copies of
Subscriber's passport or driver license or, If available, Subscriber’s FinCEN
identifier, in the event such Subscriber's beneficial ownership must be disclosed
pursuant to the Corporate Transparency Act of 2019 (or any other applicable law).

Company Information. Subscriber has read the Offering Materials. Subscriber understands
that the Company is subject to all the risks that apply to eary-stage companies, whether or
not those risks are explicitly set out in the Offering Materials. Subscriber has had an
opportunity to discuss the Company's business, management and financial affairs with
managers, officers and management of the Company and has had the opportunity to review
the Company’'s operations and facilities. Subscriber has also had the opportunity to ask
questions of and receive answers from the Company and its management regarding the
terms and conditions of this investment. Subscriber acknowledges that except as set forth
herein, no representations or warranties have been made to Subscriber, or to Subscriber’s
advisors or representative, by the Company or others with respect to the business or
prospects of the Company or its financial condition.
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6)

7)

i) Valuation. The Subscriber acknowledges that the price of the Securities was set by the
Company on the basis of the Company’s intemal valuation and no warranties are made
as to value. The Subscriber further acknowledges that future offerings of Securities may
be made at lower valuations, with the result that the Subscriber’'s investment will bear a
lower valuation.

j)  Domicile. Subscriber maintains Subscriber’'s domicile (and is not a transient or temporary
resident) at the address shown on the signature page.

k) Foreign Investors. If Subscriber is not a United States person (as defined by Section
7701(a)(30) of the Intemal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended), Subscriber hereby
represents that it has satisfied itself as to the full observance of the laws of its jurisdiction
in connection with any invitation to subscribe for the Securities or any use of this
Subscription Agreement, including (i) the legal requirements within its jurisdiction for the
purchase of the Securties, (ii) any foreign exchange restrictions applicable to such
purchase, (iii) any govemmental or other consents that may need to be obtained, and (iv)
the income tax and other tax consequences, if any, that may be relevant to the purchase,
holding, redemption, sale, or transfer of the Securities. Subscriber's subscription and
payment for and continued beneficial ownership of the Securities will not violate any
applicable securities or other laws of the Subscriber’s jurisdiction.

Indemnity. The representations, warranties and covenants made by the Subscriber herein shall
survive the closing of this Agreement The Subscriber agrees to indemnify and hold hanmless
the Company and its officers, directors and affiliates, and each other person, if any, who controls
the Company, as the case may be, within the meaning of Section 15 of the Securities Act, against
any and all loss, liability, claim, damage and expense whatsoever (including, but not limited to,
any and all reasonable attorneys’ fees, including attorneys’ fees on appeal) and expenses
reasonably incurred in investigating, preparing or defending against any false representation or
warranty or breach of failure by the Subscriber to comply with any covenant or agreement
made by the Subscriber herein or in any other document fumished by the Subscriber to any
of the foregoing in connection with this transaction.

Transfer Restrictions.

a) “Market Stand-Off” Agreement. The Subscriber hereby agrees that it will not, without the
prior written consent of the managing underwriter, during the period commencing on the
date of the final prospectus relating to the Company’s first underwritten public offering (the
“IPO") of its Common Stock under the Securities Act, and ending on the date specified by
the Company and the managing underwriter(s) (such period not to exceed one hundred
eighty (180) days, or such other period as may be requested by the Company or an
underwriter to accommodate regulatory restrictions on (i) the publication or other
distribution of research reports, and (ii) analyst recommendations and opinions): (A) lend;
offer; pledge; sell; contract to sell; sell any option or contract to purchase; purchase any
option or contract to sell; grant any option, right, or warrant to purchase; or otherwise
transfer or dispose of, directly or indirectly, any shares of Common Stock or any securities
convertible into or exercisable or exchangeable (directly or indirectly) for Common Stock
(whether such shares or any such securities are then owned by the Subscriber or are
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b)

thereafter acquired); or (B) enter into any swap or other arrangement that transfers to
another, in whole or in part, any of the economic consequences of ownership of such
securities; whether any such transaction described in clause (A) or (B) above is to be
seftled by delivery of Common Stock or other securities, in cash, or otherwise. The
foregoing provisions of this Section 7(a) will: (x) apply only to the IPO and will not apply to
the sale of any shares to an underwriter pursuant to an underwriting agreement; (y) not
apply to the transfer of any shares to any trust for the direct or indirect benefit of the
Subscriber or the immediate family of the Subscriber, provided that the trustee of the trust
agrees to be bound in writing by the restrictions set forth herein, and provided further that
any such transfer will not involve a disposition for value; and (z) be applicable to the
Subscriber only if all officers and directors of the Company are subject to the same
restrictions and the Company uses commercially reasonable efforts to obtain a similar
agreement from all stockholders individually owning more than 5% of the outstanding
Common Stock. Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, the underwriters in
connection with the IPO are intended third-party beneficiaries of this Section 7(a) and will
have the right, power and authority to enforce the provisions hereof as though they were
a party hereto. The Subscriber further agrees to execute such agreements as may be
reasonably requested by the underwriters in connection with the IPO that are consistent
with this Section 7(a) or that are necessary to give further effect thereto.

In order to enforce the foregoing covenant, the Company may impose stop transfer
instructions with respect to the Subscriber’s registrable securities of the Company (and
the Company shares or securities of every other person subject to the foregoing
restriction) until the end of such period. The Subscriber agrees that a legend reading
substantially as follows may be placed on all ceriificates representing all of such
Subscriber's registrable securities of the Company (and the Company shares or securities
of every other person subject to the restriction contained in this Section 7(a)):

THE SECURITIES REPRESENTED BY THIS CERTIFICATE ARE SUBJECT TO A
LOCK-UP PERIOD BEGINNING ON THE EFFECTIVE DATE OF THE REGISTRATION
STATEMENT OF ROBOAIR, INC. (“ROBOAIR"), FILED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT
OF 1933, AS AMENDED, AS SET FORTH IN AN AGREEMENT BETWEEN ROBOAIR
AND THE ORIGINAL HOLDER OF THESE SECURITIES, A COPY OF WHICH MAY BE
OBTAINED AT ROBOAIR'S PRINCIPAL OFFICE. SUCH LOCK-UP PERIOD IS BINDING
ON TRANSFEREES OF THESE SECURITIES.

Further Limitations on Disposition. Without in any way limiting the representations and
warranties set forth in this Agreement, the Subscriber agrees not to make any disposition
of all or any portion of the Company's Series B Non-Voting Common Stock or any
securities which may be converted into the Company's Series B Non-Voting Common
Stock unless and until the transferee has agreed in writing for the benefit of the Company
to make the representations and warranties and the undertakings set out in this
Agreement and:

(i) there is then in effect a registration statement under the Securities Act covering such
proposed disposition, and such disposition is made in connection with such registration
statement; or

10
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c)

d)

(ii) such Subscriber has (A) notified the Company of the proposed disposition; (B)
fumished the Company with a detailed statement of the circumstances surrounding the
proposed disposition; and (C) if requested by the Company, fumished the Company
with an opinion of counsel reasonably satisfactory to the Company that such disposition
will not require registration under the Securities Act

The Subscriber agrees that it will not make any disposition of any of the Company’s
securities to the Company’s competitors, as determined in good faith by the Company.

Automatic Conversion _of Underlying Shares. Subscriber understands, further, that
pursuant to the terms of the Restated Charter the Series B Non-Voting Common Stock
will automatically convert into voting shares of common stock of the Company (on a 1:1
basis) upon (1) the approval by the Board and a vote of the holders of a majority of the
shares voting common stock, or (2) development of a Trading Market (as such term is
defined in the certificate of incorporation of the Company) for the voting shares of common
stock of the Company. In addition, in the event the Board determines in good faith that it
is advisable for the Company to utilize a special-purpose vehicle or other entity designed
to aggregate the interests of holders of outstanding securities issued pursuant to
Regulation CF (a “CF SPV") in the future, then all outstanding shares of Series B Non-
Voting Common Stock shall automatically be converted into CF SPV equity interests, ata
conversion rate of one share of Series B Non-Voting Common Stock for one unit or
corresponding membership interest in the CF SPV. In the event you do not provide
information or execute such documents as may be requested by the Company sufficient
to affect such conversion in a timely manner, the Company may repurchase the Shares
at a price to be determined in good faith by the Board of Directors.

Drag Along Rights. In the event that (i) the Board and (ii) the holders of a majority of the
then outstanding shares of capital stock of the Company entitled to vote thereon (the
"Qualified Majority") elect to effect, in one transaction or a series of related transactions,
a sale of the Company to an independent third party or group of independent third parties
(whether structured as a merger, consolidation sale or transfer of interests or shares or
sale of assets) pursuant to which such party or parties acquire (i) a majority of the
outstanding shares of voting capital stock of the Company, as applicable, or (ii) all or
substantially all of the Company's assets (an "Approved Sale"), the Company shall have
the right (the "Drag-Along Right"'), but not the obligation, to require Subscriber to transfer
all of the Securities (and all rights or interests therein) to the purchaser in such Approved
Sale of the Company on the same terms and conditions as the Qualified Majority. If the
Drag-Along Rightis exercised by the Company, Subscriber shall take such actions as may
be reasonably requested by the Company to consummate the Approved Sale, including
but not limited to waiving any dissenter's appraisal and other similar rights in connection
with the Approved Sale and making any representations, covenants, and indemnitees to
the purchaser as are made by the Qualified Majority.

Additional Legends. Subscriber understands that in addition to the transfer restrictions
applicable under Section 227.501 of Regulation Crowdfunding, any sale, transfer, pledge
or other disposition of any of the Securities by Subscriber (i) will require the prior written
consent of the Company and compliance with all other transfer restrictions applicable to
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the Securities (including without limitation the drag-along provisions set forth above and
such transfer restrictions, rights of first refusal benefiting the Company set forth in the
Company's Organizational Documents), and (ii) will be further restricted by a legend
placed on any certificate(s) or other instrument representing the Securities containing
substantially the following language:

i) '"THESE SECURITIES HAVE BEEN ISSUED PURSUANT TO SECTION 4(A)(6) OF
THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED (THE "SECURITIES ACT"), AND
NEITHER THESE SECURITIES NOR ANY SECURITIES ISSUABLE UPON
CONVERSION HAVE BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OR THE
SECURITIES LAWS OF ANY STATE. THESE SECURITIES MAY NOT BE
OFFERED, SOLD OR OTHERWISE TRANSFERRED, PLEDGED OR
HYPOTHECATED EXCEPT AS PERMITTED BY RULE 501 OF REGULATION
CROWDFUNDING UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT AND APPLICABLE STATE
SECURITIES LAWS OR PURSUANT TO AN EFFECTIVE REGISTRATION
STATEMENT OR AN EXEMPTION THEREFROM."

ii) "THE SECURITIES REPRESENTED HEREBY ARE SUB) ECT TO CERTAIN DRAG-
ALONG PROVISIONS, AS PROVIDED IN AN AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE
HOLDER AND THE CORPORATION."

i) "THESE SECURITIES ARE SUBJECT TO AUTOMATIC CONVERSION, AS
PROVIDED IN THE CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION OF THE COMPANY ."

iv) "THESE SECURITIES ARE SUBJ ECT TO REPURCHASE BY THE COMPANY, AS
PROVIDED IN A SUBSCRIPTION AGREEMENT ENTERED INTO BETWEEN THE
HOLDER AND THE COMPANY ."

as well as any additional legends deemed reasonably necessary by the Company for purposes
of compliance by the Company with claimed exemptions under the Securities Act or applicable
State Laws or foreign laws, including, but not limited to, restricting transfers of Securities to
residents of a particular state for a defined period.

8) Goveming Law; | urisdiction. This Subscription Agreement shall be govemed and construed
in accordance with the laws of the State of Delaware.

EACH OF THE SUBSCRIBER AND THE COMPANY CONSENTS TO THE J URISDICTION OF
ANY STATE OR FEDERAL COURT OF COMPETENT J URISDICTION LOCATED WITHIN THE
STATE OF DELAWARE AND NO OTHER PLACE AND IRREVOCABLY AGREES THAT ALL
ACTIONS OR PROCEEDINGS RELATING TO THIS SUBSCRIPTION AGREEMENT MAY BE
LITIGATED IN SUCH COURTS. SUBSCRIBER AND THE COMPANY EACH ACCEPTS FOR
ITSELF AND IN CONNECTION WITH ITS RESPECTIVE PROPERTIES, GENERALLY AND
UNCONDITIONALLY, THE EXCLUSIVE JURISDICTION OF THE AFORESAID COURTS AND
WAIVES ANY DEFENSE OF FORUM NON CONVENIENS, AND IRREVOCABLY AGREES TO
BE BOUND BY ANY JUDGMENT RENDERED THEREBY IN CONNECTION WITH THIS
SUBSCRIPTION AGREEMENT. EACH OF SUBSCRIBER AND THE COMPANY FURTHER
IRREVOCABLY CONSENTS TO THE SERVICE OF PROCESS OUT OF ANY OF THE
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AFOREMENTIONED COURTS IN THE MANNER AND IN THE ADDRESS SPECIFIED IN
SECTION 9 AND THE SIGNATURE PAGE OF THIS SUBSCRIPTION AGREEMENT.

EACH OF THE PARTIES HERETO HEREBY IRREVOCABLY WAIVES ALL RIGHT TO TRIAL
BY JURY IN ANY ACTION, PROCEEDING OR COUNTERCLAIM (WHETHER BASED IN
CONTRACT, TORT OR OTHERWISE) ARISING OUT OF OR RELATING TO THIS
SUBSCRIPTION AGREEMENT OR THE ACTIONS OF EITHER PARTY INTHE NEGOTIATION,
ADMINISTRATION, PERFORMANCE AND ENFORCEMENT THEREOF, EACH OF THE
PARTIES HERETO ALSO WAIVES ANY BOND OR SURETY OR SECURITY UPON SUCH
BOND WHICH MIGHT, BUT FOR THIS WAIVER, BE REQUIRED OF SUCH PARTY. EACH OF
THE PARTIES HERETO FURTHER WARRANTS AND REPRESENTS THAT IT KNOWINGLY
AND VOLUNTARILY WAIVES ITS JURY TRIAL RIGHTS. THIS WAIVER IS IRREVOCABLE,
MEANING THAT IT MAY NOT BE MODIFIED EITHER ORALLY OR IN WRITING, AND THIS
WAIVER SHALL APPLY TO ANY SUBSEQUENT AMENDMENTS, RENEWALS,
SUPPLEMENTS OR MODIFICATIONS TO THIS SUBSCRIPTION AGREEMENT. IN THE
EVENT OF LITIGATION, THIS SUBSCRIPTION AGREEMENT MAY BE FILED AS A WRITTEN
CONSENT TO A TRIAL BY THE COURT.

9) Notices. Notice, requests, demands and other communications relating to this Subscription
Agreement and the transactions contemplated herein shall be in writing and shall be deemed
have been duly given if and when (a) delivered personally, on the date of such delivery; or (b)
mailed by registered or certified mail, postage prepaid, retum receipt requested, in the third day
after the posting thereof; or (c) emailed, telecopied or cabled, on the date of such delivery to the
address of the respective parties as follows:

If to the Company, to:
RoboAir, Inc.

530 Lytton Ave 2nd floor
Palo Alto, CA 94301
invest@roboair.com

If to a Subscriber, to Subscriber’'s address as shown on the signature page hereto or to such
other address as may be specified by written notice from time to time by the party entitied to
receive such notice. Any notices, requests, demands or other communications by telecopy or
cable shall be confirmed by letter given in accordance with (a) or (b) above.

10) Electronic_Delivery. Subscriber hereby consents to the delivery of any and all notices by
electronic transmission for all purposes and to the fullest extent permitted by law. Subscriber
acknowledges and agrees that any approval or consent of a security holder required
hereunder, any agreement in effect with respect to the Securities, or the Restated Charter or
Bylaws may be provided by a signature page delivered or provided electronically, whether by
e-signature, facsimile, DocuSign, electronic mail in portable delivery format or other similar
means. If by electronic mail, such notices shall be sent to the electronic mail address set forth
below the Subscriber's name on the signature page or to such other electronic mail address
as shall be designated by the Subscriber in a written notice sent to the Company at the
address set forth above.
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11) Miscellaneous.

a)

b)

c)

d)

€)

g)

h)

j)

k)

All pronouns and any variations thereof shall be deemed to refer to the masculine,
feminine, neuter, singular or plural, as the identity of the person or persons or entity or
entities may require.

This Subscription Agreement is not transferable or assignable by Subscriber.

The representations, warranties and agreements contained herein shall be deemed to be
made by and be binding upon Subscriber and its heirs, executors, administrators and
successors and shall inure to the benefit of the Company and its respective successors
and assigns.

None of the provisions of this Subscription Agreement may be waived, changed or
terminated orally or otherwise, except as specifically set forth herein or except by a writing
signed by the Company and Subscriber.

In the eventany part of this Subscription Agreement is found to be void or unenforceable,
the remaining provisions are intended to be separable and binding with the same effect
as if the void or unenforceable part were never the subject of agreement.

The invalidity, illegality or unenforceability of one or more of the provisions of this
Subscription Agreement in any jurisdiction shall not affect the validity, legality or
enforceability of the remainder of this Subscription Agreement in such jurisdiction or the
validity, legality or enforceability of this Subscription Agreement, including any such
provision, in any other jurisdiction, it being intended that all rights and obligations of the
parties hereunder shall be enforceable to the fullest extent permitted by law.

This Subscription Agreement supersedes all prior discussions and agreements between
the parties with respect to the subject matter hereof and contains the sole and entire
agreement between the parties hereto with respect to the subject matter hereof.

The terms and provisions of this Subscription Agreement are intended solely for the
benefit of each party hereto and their respective successors and assigns, and itis not the
intention of the parties to confer, and no provision hereof shall confer, third-party
beneficiary rights upon any other person.

The terms and provisions of this Subscription Agreement shall be binding upon Subscriber
and its transferees, heirs, successors and assigns (collectively, “Transferees”); provided
that for any such transfer to be deemed effective, the Transferee shall have executed and
delivered to the Company in advance an instrument in a form acceptable to the Company
in its sole discretion, pursuant to which the proposed Transferee shall acknowledge,
agree, and be bound by the representations and warranties of Subscriber, and the terms
of this Subscription Agreement

The headings used in this Subscription Agreement have been inserted for convenience of
reference only and do not define or limit the provisions hereof.

This Subscription Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of
which will be deemed an original, but all of which together will constitute one and the same
instrument.

14
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)

If any recapitalization or other transaction affecting the ownership interests of the
Company or the stock of the Company (including any Approved Sale) is effected, then any
new, substituted or additional securities or other property which is distributed with respect
to the Securities shall be immediately subject to this Subscription Agreement, to the same
extent that the Securities, immediately prior thereto, shall have been covered by this
Subscription Agreement. If the Board of Directors of the Company determines in good
faith that issuance or deliveryof capital stock other securities (the "Future Securities'") to
the Subscriber in connection with any recapitalization or change in control of the Company
would violate applicable law, rule or regulation (including without limitation applicable
State Law or the Securities Act), then the Subscriber's right to receive the Future
Securities (or to make a choice about the form of consideration to be received in such
transaction) may be limited and Subscriber may be required to accept a cash payment
equal to the fair market value of such Future Securities, as determined in good faith by
the Board of Directors.

No failure or delay by any party in exercising any right, power or privilege under this
Subscription Agreement shall operate as a waiver thereof nor shall any single or partial
exercise thereof preclude any other or further exercise thereof or the exercise of any other
right, power or privilege. The rights and remedies herein provided shall be cumulative and
not exclusive of any rights or remedies provided by law.

[SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS]
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Roboair Inc.

SUBSCRIPTION AGREEMENT SIGNATURE PAGE

The undersigned, desiring to purchase Non-Voting Common Stock of Roboair Inc. by executing this signature page, hereby
executes, adopts and agrees to all terms, conditions and representations of the Subscription Agreement.

The Securities being subscribed for will be owned by, and should be recorded on the Corporation’'s books as follows:

Full legal name of Subscriber (including middle name(s), for
individuals ):

(Name of Subscriber)

By:

(Authorized Signature)

(Official Capacity or Title, if the Subscriber is not an
individual)

(Name of individual whose signature appears above if
different than the name of the Subscriber printed above.)

(Subscriber's Residential Address, including Province/State
and Postal/Zip Code)

Taxpayer Identification Number

(Telephone Number)

(Offline Investor)
(E-Mail Address)

Number of securities: Non-Voting Commeon Stock
Aggregate Subscription Price: $0.00 USD

TYPE OF OWNERSHIP:

If the Subscriber is individual: |T fne Subscriber is not an
individual:

O Individual

[0 Joint Tenant
[0 Tenants in Common

[ Community Property

If interests are to be jointly held:
Name of the Joint Subscriber:
Social Security Number of the Joint Subscriber:

Check this box is the securities will be held in a custodial
account: [

Type of account:
EIN of account:

Address of account provider:
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ACCEPTANCE

The Corporation hereby accepts the subscription as set forth above on the terms and conditions contained in this
Subscription Agreement.

Dated as of
Roboair Inc.
By:
Authorized Signing Officer
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U.S.INVESTOR QUESTIONNAIRE

EITHER (i) The undersigned is an accredited investor (as that term is defined in Regulation D under the Securities Act
because the undersigned meets the criteria set forth in the following paragraph(s) of the U.S Investor Questionnaire attached
hereto): I

OR (ii) The aggregate subscription price of 0.00 USD (together with any previous investments in the Securifies pursuant to
this offering) does not exceed the Investor's limit of 0.00 in this offering, not the Investor's total limit for investment in
offerings under rule Section 4{a)(6) of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, being Regulation CF in the last 12 months.

Aggregate subscription price invested in this offering: 0.00 USD

The Investor either has [1 or has not [ invested in offerings under Section 4(a)(6) of the Securities Act 0f1933, as
amended, being Regulation CF in the last 12 months prior to this offering. Ifyes, the total amount the Investor has
invested in offerings under Section 4(a)(6) of the Securifies Act of 1933, as amended, being Regulation CF in the
last 12 months prior to this offering is: USD

The Investor's investment limit for this offering is: 0.00USD

The Investor's investment limit for all offerings under Section 4{(a)(6) of the Securities Act 0of 1933, as amended,
being Regulation CF in the last 12 months, including this offering is: 0.00USD

The Investor's net worth (if not an accredited investor): USD
The Investor's income (if not an accredited investor): USD

If selected (i) above, the Investor hereby represents and warranis that that the Investor is an Accredited Investor, as defined
by Rule 501 of Regulation D under the Securities Act of 1933, and Investor meets at least one (1) of the following criteria
(initial all that apply) or that Investor is an unaccredited invesior and meets none of the following criteria (initial as
applicable):

CJA bank, as defined in Section 3(a)(2) of the U.S. Securities Act;

a savings and loan association or other institution as defined in Section 3(a)(5)(A) ofthe US.
Securities Act, whether acting in its individual or fiduciary capacity;

a broker or dealer registered pursuant to Section 15 of the United States Securities Exchange
Act of 1934; An insurance company as defined in Section 2(a)(13) of the U.S. Securiies Act; An
investment company registered under the United States Investment Company Act of 1940; or A
business development company as defined in Section 2(a)(48) of that Act; a Small Business
Investment Company licensed by the U.S. Small Business Adminisfration under Section 301 (c)
or (d) of the United States Small Business Investment Act of 1958;A plan established and
maintained by a state, its political subdivisions or any agency or instrumentality of a state or its
political subdivisions, for the benefit ofits employees, if such plan has total assefs in excess of
US$5,000,000; or an employee benefit plan within the meaning of the United States Employee
Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended, in which the investment decision is made
by a plan fiduciary, as defined in Section 3(21) of such Act, which is either a bank, savings and
loan associafion, insurance company or registered investment adviser, or an employee benefit
plan with total assets in excess of U.S. $5,000,000 or, if a self directed plan, with investment
decisions made solely by persons that are Accredited Investors;

CJA private business development company as defined in Section 202(a)(22) of the Investment
Advisers Act of 1940;

0 The Investor is either (i) a corporation, (i) an organizafion described in Secfion 501(c)(3) of the
Intemal Revenue Code, (iii) a trust, or (iv) a partnership, in each case not formed for the specific
purpose of acquiring the securities offered, and in each case with total assets in excess of
US$5,000,000;

Lla director, execufive officer or general partner of the issuer of the securities being offered or sold,
or any director, executive officer, or general partner of a general pariner of that issuer;

O The Investor is a natural person (individual) whose own net worth, taken together with the net
worth of the Investor's spouse or spousal equivalent, exceeds US$1,000,000, excluding equity in
the Investor's principal residence unless the net effect of his or her morigage results in negative
equity, the Investor should include any negative effects in calculating his or her net worth;

[ The Investor is a natural person (individual) who had an individual income in excess of
US$200,000 (or joint income with the Investor spouse or spousal equivalent in excess of
US$300.000) in each of the two previous years and who reasonably expects a gross income of
the same this year;
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DATED:

INVESTOR:

1A trust, with total assets in excess of US$5,000,000, not formed for the specific purpose of
acquiring the securities offered, whose purchase is directed by a sophisficated person as
described in Rule 506(b )2 )(ii) of the U.S. Securities Act;

[ The Investor is an enfity as to which all the equity owners are Accredited Investors. If this
paragraph is initialed, the Investor represents and warrants that the Investor has verified all such
equity owners’ status as an Accredited Investor.

(a natural person who holds one of the following licenses in good standing: General Securities
Representative license (Series 7), the Private Securities Offerings Representative license (Series
82), or the Investment Adviser Representative license (Series 65);

C1An investment adviser registered pursuant to Section 203 of the Investment Advisers Act of 1940
or registered pursuant to the laws of a state; or

C1An investment adviser relying on the exemption from registering with tthe SEC under Section
203(l) or (m) of the Investment Advisers Act of 1940; or

LJA rural business investment company as defined in Section 384A of the Consolidated Farm and
Rural Development Act;

C1An entity, of a type not listed herein, not formed for the specific purpose of acquiring the
securities offered, owning investments in excess of $5,000,000;

(1A “family office,” as defined in Rule 202(a)(11)(G)-1 under the Investment Advisers Act of 1940
(17 CFR 275 202(a)(11)(G)-1):

(i) With assets under management in excess of $5,000.000,

(ii) Thatis not formed for the specific purpose of acquiring the securities offered, and

(iii) Whose prospective invesiment is directed by a person who has such knowledge and
experience in financial and business matters that such family office is capable of evaluating the
merits and risks of the prospective invesiment;

C1A “family client,” as defined in rule 202(a)(11)(G)-1 under the Investment Advisers Act of 1940
(17 CFR 275.202(a)(11)(G)-1)), of a family office meeting the requirements in category 23 above
and whose prospective investment in the issuer is directed by such family office as referenced
above;

CJA natural person who is a “knowledgeable employee,” as defined in rule 3c-5(a)(4) under the
Investment Company Act of 1940 (17 CFR 270.3c-5(a}(4)), of the issuer of the securities being
offered or sold where the issuer would be an investment company, as defined in Section 3 of
such Act, but for the exclusion provided by either Section 3(c)(1) or Section 3(c)(7) of such Act;
or

[ The Investor is not an Accredited Investor and does not meet any of the above criteria.

(Print Full Name of Entity or Individual)

By:
(Signature)
Name:
(If signing on behalf of entity)
Title:

(If signing on behalf of entity)
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CANADIAN ACCREDITED INVESTOR CERTIFICATE
TO: RoboairInc. (the "Corporation”)

The Investor hereby represents, warrants and certifies to the Corporation that the undersigned is an "Accredited Investor” as
defined in Section 1.1 of National Instrument 45-106. The Investor has indicated below the criteria which the Investor
satisfies in order to qualify as an "Accredited Investor’.

The Investor understands that the Corporation and its counsel are relying upon this information in determining to sell
securifies to the undersigned in a manner exempt from the prospectus and registration requirements of applicable securities
laws.

The categories listed herein contain certain specifically defined terms. If you are unsure as to the meanings of those terms,
or are unsure as to the applicability of any category below, please contact your legal advisor before completing this
certificate.

In connection with the purchase by the undersigned Subscriber of the Purchased Non-Vating Common Stock, the Subscriber
hereby represents, warrants, covenants and cerififies to the Corporation (and acknowledges that the Corporation and its
counsel are relying thereon) that:

a. the Subscriber is, and at the Closing Time, will be, an “accredited investor” within the meaning of NI 45-106 or Section
73.3 of the Securities Act (Ontario), as applicable, on the basis that the undersigned fits within one of the categories of
an "accredited investor” reproduced below beside which the undersigned has indicated the undersigned belongs to
such category;

b. the Subscriber was not created or is not used, solely to purchase or hold securities as an accredited investor as
described in paragraph (m) below; and

Cc. upon execution of this Schedule B by the Subscriber, including, if applicable, Appendix 1 to this Schedule B, this
Schedule B shall be incorporated into and form a part of the Subscription Agreement.

(PLEASE CHECK THE BOX OF THE APPLICABLE CATEGORY OF ACCREDITED INVESTOR)

O (a) a Canadian financial institution, or a Schedule Il bank;

O (b) the Business Development Bank of Canada incorporated under the Business Development Bank
of Canada Act (Canada);

O (c) a subsidiary of any Person referred to in paragraphs (a) or (b), if the Person owns all of the voting
securities of the subsidiary, except the voting securities required by law to be owned by directors
of that subsidiary;

O (d) a Person registered under the securities legislation of a jurisdiction of Canada as an adviser or

dealer, other than a Person registered solely as a limited market dealer under one or both of the
Securities Act (Ontario) or the Securities Act (Newfoundland and Labrador);

O (e) an individual registered under the securities legislation of a jurisdiction of Canada as a
representative of a Person referred to in paragraph (d);

O (e.1) an individual formerly registered under the securities legislation of a jurisdiction of Canada, other
than an individual formerly registered solely as a representative of a limited market dealer under
one or both of the Securities Act (Ontario) or the Securities Act (Newfoundland and Labrador);

O () the Government of Canada or a jurisdiction of Canada, or any crown corporation, agency or
wholly owned entity of the Government of Canada or a jurisdiction of Canada;

O (g) a municipality, public board or commission in Canada and a metropolitan community, school
board, the Comité de gestion de la taxe scolaire de ['lle de Montréal or an intermunicipal
management board in Québec;

O (h) any national, federal, state, provincial, territorial or municipal government of or in any foreign
jurisdiction, or any agency of that govemment;

O (i) a pension fund that is regulated by either the Office of the Superintendent of Financial Institutions
(Canada) or a pension commission or similar regulatory authority of a jurisdiction of Canada;
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O

i}

4.1

(k)

U]

(m)

(n)

(o)

(P}

(q)

(r)

(s)

(t)

(u)

(v)

(w)

an individual who, either alone or with a spouse, beneficially owns financial assets having an
aggregate realizable value that before taxes, but net of any related liabilities, exceeds
CAD$1,000,000;

an individual who beneficially owns financial assets having an aggregate realizable value that,
before taxes but net of any related liabilities, exceeds CAD$5,000,000;

an individual whose net income before taxes exceeded CAD$200,000 in each of the two most
recent calendar years or whose net income before taxes combined with that of a spouse
exceeded CAD$300,000 in each of the two most recent calendar years and who, in either case,
reasonably expects to exceed that net income level in the current calendar year;

an individual who, either alone or with a spouse, has net assets of at least CAD$5,000.000;

a Person, other than an individual or investment fund, that has net assets of at least
CAD$5.000.000 as shown on its most recently prepared financial statements and that has not
been created or used solely to purchase or hold securities as an accredited investor;

an investment fund that distributes or has distributed its securities only to (i) a Person that is or
was an accredited investor at the time of the distribution, (ii) a Person that acquires or acquired
securities in the circumstances referred to in sections 2.10 (Minimum amount investment) and
2.19 (Additional investment in investment funds) of NI 45-106, or (iii) a Person described in
paragraph (i) or (ii) that acquires or acquired securities under section 2.18 (Investment fund
reinvestment) of NI 45-106;

an invesiment fund that distributes or has distributed securities under a prospectus in a
jurisdiction of Canada for which the regulator or, in Québec, the securities regulatory authority,
has issued a receipt;

a frust company or trust corporation registered or authorized to carry on business under the Trust
and Loan Companies Act (Canada) or under comparable legislation in a jurisdiction of Canada or
a foreign jurisdiction, acling on behalf of a fully managed account managed by the trust company
or trust corporation, as the case may be;

a Person acting on behalf of a fully managed account managed by that Person, if that Person (i)
is registered or authorized to carry on business as an adviser or the equivalent under the
securities legislation of a jurisdiction of Canada or a foreign jurisdiction, and (ii} in Ontano, is
purchasing a security thatis not a security of an investment fund;

a registered charity under the Income Tax Act (Canada) that, in regard to the frade, has cbtained
advice from an eligibility adviser or an adviser registered under the securities legislation of the
jurisdiction of the registered charity to give advice on the securities being traded;

an entity organized in a foreign jurisdiction that is analogous to any of the entities refemred to in
paragraphs (a) to (d) or paragraph (i) in form and function;

a Person in respect of which all of the owners of interests, direct, indirect or beneficial, except the
voling securities required by law to be owned by directors, are Persons that are accredited
investors;

an investment fund that is advised by a Person registered as an adviser or a Person that is
exempt from registration as an adviser;

a Person that is recognized or designated by the securities regulatory authority or, except in
Ontario and Québec, the regulator as (i) an accredited investor, or (ii) an exempt purchaser in
Alberta or Ontario; or

a trust established by an accredited investor for the benefit of the accredited investor's family
members of which a majority of the trustees are accredited investors and all of the beneficiaries
are the accredited investor's spouse, a former spouse of the accredited investor or a parent,
grandparent, brother, sister, child or grandchild of that accredited investor, of that accredited
investor's spouse or of that accredited investor's former spouse.
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The statements made in this Form are true and accurate as of the date hereof.

DATED:

INVESTOR: (Print Full Name of Entity or Individual)

By:

(Signature)

Name:

(If signing on behalf of entity)
Title:

(If signing on behalf of entity)

Definiti for A fited | Certificat

As used in the Accredited Investor Certificate, the following terms have the meanings set out below:

a.

“Canadian financial institution” means (i) an association governed by the Cooperative Credit Associations Act
(Canada) or a central cooperative credit society for which an order has been made under section 473(1) of that Act, or
(i) a bank, loan corporation, trust company, trust corporation, insurance company, treasury branch, credit union, caisse
populaire, financial services cooperaflive, or league that, in each case, is authorized by an enaciment of Canada or a
jurisdiction of Canada to carry on business in Canada or a jurisdiction of Canada;
“entity” means a company, syndicate, partnership, trust or unincorporated organization;
“financial assets” means cash, securities, or any a confract of insurance, a deposit or an evidence of a deposit that is
not a security for the purposes of securities legislation;
“fully managed account” means an account of a client for which a Person makes the investment decisions if that
Person has full discretion to trade in securities for the account without requiring the client's express consent to a
fransaction;
‘investment fund” means a mutual fund or a nonredeemable invesiment fund, and, for greater certainty in Ontario,
includes an employee venture capital corporation that does not have a restricted constitution, and is registered under
Part 2 of the Employee Invesiment Act (British Columbia), RS B.C. 1996 ¢c. 112, and whose business objective is
making muliiple investments and a venture capital corporation registered under Part 1 of the Small Business Veniure
Capital Act (British Columbia), R. S B.C. 1996 c. 429 whose business objective is making multiple investments;
‘mutual fund” means an issuer whose primary purpose is {o invest money provided by its security holders and whose
securities entitle the holder to receive on demand, or within a specified period after demand, an amount computed by
reference to the value of a proportionate interest in the whole or in part of the net assets, including a separate fund or
trust account, of the issuer;
“‘nonsedeemable investment fund” means an issuer,

A. whose primary purpose is to invest money provided by its securityholders,

B. that does not invest,

i. for the purpose of exercising or seeking to exercise control of an issuer, other than an issuer that is a mutual
fund or a non-redeemable investment fund, or
ii. for the purpose of being actively involved in the management of any issuer in which it invests, other than an
issuer that is a mutual fund or a non-redeemable investment fund, and

C. thatis not a mutual fund;
“related liabilities” means liabilities incurred or assumed for the purpose of financing the acquisition or ownership of
financial assets and liabilities that are secured by financial assets;

. “Schedule lll bank™ means an authorized foreign bank named in Schedule [l of the Bank Act (Canada);
. “spouse” means an individual who (i) is married to another individual and is not living separate and apart within the

meaning of the Divorce Act (Canada), rom the other individual, (ii} is living with another individual in a marriage-like
relationship, including a marriage-ike relationship between individuals of the same gender, or (iii} in Alberta, is an
individual referred to in paragraph (i} or (ii), or is an adult interdependent partner within the meaning of the Adult
Interdependent Relationships Act (Alberta); and

“subsidiary” means an issuer that is controlled directly or indireclly by another issuer and includes a subsidiary of that
subsidiary.

In NI 45-106 a Person or company is an affiliate of another Person or company if one of them is a subsidiary of the other, or
if each of them is controlled by the same Person.
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In NI 45-106 a Person (first Person) is considered to control another Person (second Person) if (a) the first Person, directly
or indireclly, beneficially owns or exercises contral or direction over securities of the second Person carrying votes which, if
exercised, would entitle the first Person to elect a majority of the directors of the second Person, unless that first Person
holds the vofing securities only to secure an obligation, (b) the second Person is a partnership, other than a limited
partnership, and the first Person holds more than 50% of the interests of the partnership, or (c) the second Person is a
limited partnership and the general partner of the limited partnership is the first Person.
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RISK ACKNOWLEDGEMENT FORM (FORM 45-106F9)

Form for Individual Accredited Investors

WARNING! This investment is risky. Do not invest unless you can afford to lose all the money you pay for this
investment.

Section 1 - TO BE COMPLETED BY THE ISSUER OR SELLING SECURITY HOLDER

1. About your investment

Type of Securities: Non-Voling Common Stock Issuer: Roboair Inc. (the “Issuer”)

Purchased from The Issuer

Sections 2 to 4 — TO BE COMPLETED BY THE PURCHASER

2. Risk acknowledgement

This investment is risky. Initial that you understand that: Your
Initials

Risk of loss — You could lose your entire investment of §

Liquidity risk — You may not be able to sell your investment quickly — or at all.

Lack of information — You may receive little or no information about your investment.

Lack of advice — You will not receive advice from the salesperson about whether this investment is suitable for
you unless the salesperson is registered. The salesperson is the person who meets with, or provides information
o, you about making this investment. To check whether the salesperson is registered, go to

www .aretheyreqistered.ca.

3. Accredited investor status

You must meet at least one of the following criteria to be able to make this investment. Initial the statement that
applies toyou. (You may initial more than one statement.) The person identified in section 6 is responsible for
ensuring that you meet the definition of accredited investor. That person, or the salesperson idenfified in section

5. can help you if you have questions about whether you meet these criteria. —

Initials

+ Your net income before taxes was more than CAD$200,000 in each of the 2 most recent
calendar years, and you expect it to be more than CAD$200,000 in the current calendar year.
(You can find your net income before taxes on your personal income tax return.)

+ Your net income before taxes combined with your spouse’s was more than $300,000 in each of
the 2 most recent calendar years, and you expect your combined net income before taxes to be
more than CAD$300,000 in the current calendar year.

« Either alone or with your spouse, you own more than CAD$1 million in cash and securities, after
subtracting any debt related to the cash and securities.

+ Either alone or with your spouse, you have net assets worth more than CAD$5 million. (Your net
assets are your total assets (including real estate) minus your total debt.)

4. Your name and signature

By signing this form, you confirm that you have read this form and you understand the risks of making this investment as
identified in this form.

First and Last Name (please print):

Signature:

Date:

Section 5— TO BE COMPLETED BY THE SALESPERSON

5. Salesperson information

First and Last Name of Salesperson (please print):
Telephone |Email:

Name of Firm (if registered):
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Section 6 — TO BE COMPLETED BY THE ISSUER OR SELLING SECURITY HOLDER

6. For more information about this investment

For more information about this investment/ the Issuer:

Company Name: Roboair Inc.

Address: 530 Lytton Ave 2nd floor, Palo Alto, CA 94301
Contact: Investor Relalions

Email: invest@roboair.com

For more information about prospectus exemptions, contact your local securities regulator. You can find contact
information at www.securities-administrators.ca.
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TO:

INTERNATIONAL INVESTOR CERTIFICATE

FOR SUBSCRIBERS RESIDENT OUTSIDE OF CANADA AND THE UNITED STATES

Roboair Inc. (the "Corporation”)

The undersigned (the “Subscriber” ) represents covenants and certifies to the Corporation that:

vii.

viii.

the Subscriber (and if the Subscriber is acting as agent for a disclosed principal, such disclosed principal) is not
resident in Canada or the United States or subject to applicable securities laws of Canada or the United States;

i. the issuance of the securities in the capital of the Corporation under this agreement (the “"Securities” ) by the

Corporation to the Subscriber (or its disclosed principal, if any) may be effected by the Corporation without the
necessity of the filing of any document with or obtaining any approval from or effecting any regisfration with any
govemnmental entity or similar regulatory authority having jurisdiction over the Subscriber (or its disclosed principal, if

any);

the Subscriber is knowledgeable of or has been independently advised as to, the applicable securities laws of the
jurisdiction which would apply to this subscription, if there are any;

the issuance of the Securities to the Subscriber (and if the Subscriber is acting as agent for a disclosed principal, such
disclosed principal) complies with the requirements of all applicable laws in the jurisdiction of its residence;

the applicable securities laws do not require the Corporation to register the Securities, file a prospectus or similar
document, or make any filings or disclosures or seek any approvals of any kind whatsoever from any regulatory
authority of any kind whatsoever in the intemational jurisdiction;

. the purchase of the Securities by the Subscriber, and (if applicable) each disclosed beneficial subscriber, does not

require the Corporaton to become subject to regulation in the Subscriber's or disclosed beneificial
subscriber's jurisdiction, nor does it require the Corporation to attorn to the jurisdiction of any govemmental authorty or
regulator in such jurisdiction or require any translation of documents by the Corporation;

the Subscriber will not sell, transfer or dispose of the Securities except in accordance with all applicable laws, including
applicable securities laws of Canada and the United States, and the Subscriber acknowledges that the Corporation
shall have no obligation to register any such purported sale, fransfer or disposition which violates applicable Canadian

or United States securities laws; and

the Subscriber will provide such evidence of compliance with all such matters as the Corporation or its counsel may
request.

The Subscriber acknowledges that the Corporation is relying on this certificate to determine the Subscriber’'s suitability as a
purchaser of securities of the Corporation. The Subscriber agrees that the representations, covenants and certifications
contained to this certificate shall survive any issuance of Securities and warranis of the Corporation to the Subscriber.

The statements made in this Form are true and accurate as of the date hereof.

DATED:

INVESTOR: (Print Full Name of Entity or Individual)

By:

(Signature)

Name:

(If signing on behalf of entity)
Title:

(If signing on behalf of entity}



DaocuSign Envelope ID: DB1429D6-A90B-41D3-A43B-FB2469831689

DEALMAKER

AML Certificate
By executing this document, the client certifies the following:

If an Entity:
1.1 am the of the Entity, and as such have knowledge of the matters certified to herein;

2. the Entity has not taken any steps to terminate its existence, to amalgamate, to continue into any other jurisdiction or to
change its existence in any way and no proceedings have been commenced or threatened, or actions taken, or resolufions
passed that could result in the Entity ceasing to exist;

3. the Entity is not insolvent and no acts or proceedings have been taken by or against the Entity or are pending in
connection with the Enfity, and the Entity is not in the course of, and has not received any notice or other communications, in
each case, in respect of any amalgamation, dissolution, liquidation, insolvency, bankrupicy or reorganization involving the
Entity, or for the appointment of a receiver, administrator, administrative receiver, rustee or similar officer with respect to all
or any of its assets or revenues or of any proceedings to cancel its cerlificate of incorporation or similar constating document
or to otherwise terminate its existence or of any situation which, unless remedied, would result in such cancellation or
termination;

4. the Entity has not failed to file such returns, pay such taxes, or take such steps as may constitute grounds for the
cancellation or forfeiture ofits certificate of incorporation or similar constating document;

5. ifrequired, the documents uploaded to the DealMaker portal are frue certified copies of the deed of trust, articles of
incorporation or organization, bylaws and other constating documents of the Entity including copies of corporate resolutions
or by-laws relating to the power to bind the Entity;

6. The Client is the following type of Entity:

7. The names and personal addresses as applicable for the entity in Appendix 1 are accurate.
All subscribers:

DealMaker Account Number: (Offline Investar)

If | elect to submit my invesiment funds by an electronic payment option offered by DealMaker, | hereby agree to be bound
by DealMaker's Electronic Payment Terms and Conditions (the "Electronic Payment Terms”). | acknowledge that the
Electronic Payment Terms are subject to change from time to time without nofice.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary, an electronic payment made hereunder will constitute unconditional acceptance of
the Electronic Payment Terms, and by use of the credit card or ACH/EFT payment option hereunder, |: (1) authorize the
automatic processing of a charge to my credit card account or debit my bank account for any and all balances due and
payable under this agreement; (2) acknowledge that there may be fees payable for processing my payment; (3)
acknowledge and agree that | will not iniiate a chargeback or reversal of funds on account of any issues that arise pursuant
to this investment and | may be liable for any and all damages that could ensue as a result of any such chargebacks or
reversals initiated by myself.

DATED:

INVESTOR: (Print Full Name of Investor)

By:

(Signature)
Name of Signing Officer (if Entity):
Title of Signing Officer (if Entity):
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Appendix 1 - Subscriber Information

Name Address Date of Birth (if an Individual) Taxpayer ldentification Number

For a Corporation or entity other than a Trust (Insert names and addresses below or attach alisf)

1. One Current control person of the Organization:

Date of Birth Taxpayer Identification Number

2. Unless the entity is an Estate or Sole Proprietorship, list the Beneficial owners of, or those exercising direct or indirect
control or direction over, more than 25% of the voting rights attached to the outstanding voting securities or the
Organization:

Name Address Date of Birth Taxpayer |dentification Number

For a Trust (Insert names and addresses or attach a list)

1. Current trustees of the Organization:

Name Address Date of Birth Taxpayer |dentification Number
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EXHIBIT DTO FORMC

AMENDED AND RESTATED BYLAWS

OF

ROBOAIR INC.

(ADELAWARE CORPORATION)

EFFECTIVE AS OF FEBURARY 17, 2023
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ARTICLEI
OFFICES

Section 1. Registered Office. The registered office of the corporation in the State of
Delaware is 850 New Burton Road, Suite 201, City of Dover, County of Kent, 19904 or in such other
location as the Board of Directors of the corporation (the “Board of Directors™) may from time to time
determine or the business of the corporation may require.

Section 2. Other Offices. The corporation will also have and maintain an office or
principal place of business at such place as may be fixed by the Board of Directors, and may also have
offices at such other places, both within and without the State of Delaware, as the Board of Directors may
from time to time determine or the business of the corporation may require.

ARTICLE IT

CORPORATE SEAL

Section 3. Corporate Seal. The Board of Directors may adopt a corporate seal. Said seal
may be used by causing it or a facsimile thereof to be impressed or affixed or reproduced or otherwise.

ARTICLE IIT

STOCKHOLDERS® MEETINGS

Section 4. Place of Meetings. Meetings of the stockholders of the corporation may be held
at such place, either within or without the State of Delaware, as may be determined from time to time by
the Board of Directors. The Board of Directors may, in its sole discretion, determine that the meeting will
not be held at any place, but may instead be held solely by means of remote communication as provided
under the Delaware General Corporation Law (the “DGCL”).

Section 5. Annual Meeting.

(a) The annual meeting of the stockholders of the corporation, for the purpose of
election of directors and for such other business as may lawfully come before it, will be held on such date
and at such time as may be designated from time to time by the Board of Directors. Nominations of
persons for election to the Board of Directors of the corporation and the proposal of business to be
considered by the stockholders may be made at an annual meeting of stockholders: (i) pursuant to the
corporation’s notice of meeting of stockholders; (ii} by or at the direction of the Board of Directors; or
(iii) by any stockholder of the corporation who was a stockholder of record at the time of giving of notice
provided for in the following paragraph, who is entitled to vote at the meeting and who complied with the
notice procedures set forth in this Section.

() At an annual meeting of the stockholders, only such business will be conducted
as has been properly brought before the meeting. For nominations or other business to be properly
brought before an annual meeting by a stockholder pursuant to clause (iii) of paragraph (a) of this Section,
(i) the stockholder must have given timely notice thereof in writing to the Secretary of the corporation, (ii)
such other business must be a proper matter for stockholder action under the DGCL and applicable law,
has provided the corporation with a Solicitation Notice (as defined in this paragraph), such stockholder or
beneficial owner must, in the case of a proposal, have delivered a proxy statement and form of proxy to
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holders of at least the percentage of the corporation’s voting shares required under applicable law to carry
any such proposal, or, in the case of a nomination or nominations, have delivered a proxy statement and
form of proxy to holders of a percentage of the corporation’s voting shares reasonably believed by such
stockholder or beneficial owner to be sufficient to elect the nominee or nominees proposed to be
nominated by such stockholder, and must, in either case, have included in such materials the Solicitation
Notice, and (iv) if no Solicitation Notice relating thereto has been timely provided pursuant to this
Section, the stockholder or beneficial owner proposing such business or nomination must not have
solicited a number of proxies sufficient to have required the delivery of such a Solicitation Notice under
this Section. To be timely, a stockholder’s notice will be delivered to the Secretary at the principal
executive offices of the corporation not later than the close of business on the 90™ day nor earlier than the
close of business on the 120® day prior to the first anniversary of the preceding year’s annual meeting;
provided, however, that in the event that the date of the annual meeting is advanced more than 30 days
prior to or delayed by more than 30 days after the anniversary of the preceding year’s annual meeting,
notice by the stockholder to be timely must be so delivered not earlier than the close of business on the
120" day prior to such annual meeting and not later than the close of business on the later of the 90® day
prior to such annual meeting or the 10% day following the day on which public announcement of the date
of such meeting is first made. In no event will the public announcement of an adjournment of an annual
meeting commence a new time period for the giving of a stockholder’s notice as described above. Such
stockholder’s notice will set forth: (A) as to each person whom the stockholder proposed to nominate for
election or reelection as a director all information relating to such person that is required to be disclosed
in solicitations of proxies for election of directors in an election contest, or is otherwise required, in each
case pursuant to Regulation 14A under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “1934
Aect”), and Rule 14a-4(d) thersunder (including such person’s written consent to being named in the proxy
statement as a nominee and to serving as a director if elected); (B) as to any other business that the
stockholder proposes to bring before the meeting, a brief description of the business desired to be brought
before the meeting, the reasons for conducting such business at the meeting and any material interest in
such business of such stockholder and the beneficial owner, if any, on whose behalf the proposal is made;
and (C) as to the stockholder giving the notice and the beneficial owner, if any, on whose behalf the
nomination or proposal is made (i) the name and address of such stockholder, as they appear on the
corporation’s books, and of such beneficial owner, (ii) the class and number of shares of the corporation
that are owned beneficially and of record by such stockholder and such beneficial owner, and (iii)
whether either such stockholder or beneficial owner intends to deliver a proxy statement and form of
proxy to holders of, in the case of the proposal, at least the percentage of the corporation’s voting shares
required under applicable law to carry the proposal or, in the case of a nomination or nominations, a
sufficient number of holders of the corporation’s voting shares to elect such nominee or nominees (an
affirmative statement of such intent, a “Selicitation Notice™).

(c) Notwithstanding anything in the second sentence of paragraph (b) of this Section
to the contrary, in the event that the number of directors to be elected to the Board of Directors of the
corporation is increased and there is no public announcement naming all of the nominees for director or
specifying the size of the increased Board of Directors made by the corporation at least 100 days prior to
the first anniversary of the preceding year’s annual meeting. a stockholder’s notice required by this
Section will also be considered timely, but only with respect to nominees for any new positions created
by such increase, if it is delivered to the Secretary at the principal executive offices of the corporation not
later than the close of business on the 10® day following the day on which such public announcement is
first made by the corporation.

(d) Only such persons who are nominated in accordance with the procedures set
forth in this Section (or elected or appointed pursuant to Article IV of these Bylaws) will be eligible to
serve as directors and only such business will be conducted at a meeting of stockholders as has been
brought before the meeting in accordance with the procedures set forth in this Section. Except as

-2
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otherwise provided by law, the chair of the meeting will have the power and duty to determine whether a
nomination or any business proposed to be brought before the meeting was made, or proposed, as the case
may be, in accordance with the procedures set forth in these Bylaws and, if any proposed nomination or
business is not in compliance with these Bylaws, to declare that such defective proposal or nomination
will not be presented for stockholder action at the meeting and will be disregarded.

(e) Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions of this Section, in order to include
information with respect to a stockholder proposal in the proxy statement and form of proxy for a
stockholders® meeting, stockholders must provide notice as required by the regulations promulgated under
the 1934 Act. Nothing in these Bylaws is deemed to affect any rights of stockholders to request inclusion
of proposals in the corporation proxy statement pursuant to Rule 14a-8 under the 1934 Act.

(D) For purposes of this Section, “public announcement™ means disclosure in a press
release reported by the Dow Jones News Service, Associated Press or comparable national news service
or in a document publicly filed by the corporation with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the
“SEC™) pursuant to Section 13, 14 or 15(d) of the 1934 Act.

Section 6. Special Meetings.

(a) Special meetings of the stockholders of the corporation may be called, for any
purpose or purposes, by (i) the Chair of the Board of Directors, (ii) the Chief Executive Officer, (iii) the
Board of Directors pursuant to a resolution adopted by directors representing a quorum of the directors
then serving on the Board of Directors or (iv) by the holders of shares entitled to cast not less than 50% of
the votes at the meeting, and will be held at such place, on such date, and at such time as the Board of
Directors will fix. At any time or times that the corporation is subject to Section 2115(b) of the California
General Corporation Law (the “CGCL"™), stockholders holding 5% or more of the outstanding shares will
have the right to call a special meeting of stockholders as set forth in Section 18(b) of these Bylaws.

() If a special meeting is properly called by any person or persons other than the
Board of Directors, the request must be in writing, specifying the general nature of the business proposed
to be transacted, and must be delivered personally or sent by certified or registered mail., return receipt
requested, or by telegraphic or other facsimile transmission to the Chair of the Board of Directors, the
Chief Executive Officer, or the Secretary of the corporation. No business may be transacted at such
special meeting otherwise than specified in such notice. The Board of Directors will determine the time
and place of such special meeting, which will be held not less than 35 nor more than 120 days after the
date of the receipt of the request. Upon determination of the time and place of the meeting, the officer
receiving the request will cause notice to be given to the stockholders entitled to vote, in accordance with
the provisions of Section 7 of these Bylaws. Nothing contained in this paragraph (b) is to be construed as
limiting, fixing, or affecting the time when a meeting of stockholders called by action of the Board of
Directors may be held.

Section 7. Notice of Meetings. Except as otherwise provided by law, notice, given in
accordance with Section 232 the DGCL, of each meeting of stockholders will be given not less than 10
nor more than 60 days before the date of the meeting to each stockholder entitled to vote at such meeting,
such notice to specify the place, if any, date and hour, in the case of special meetings, the purpose or
purposes of the meeting, and the means of remote communications, if any, by which stockholders and
proxyholders may be deemed to be present in person and vote at any such meeting. If mailed, notice is
given when deposited in the United States mail, postage prepaid, directed to the stockholder at such
stockholder’s address as it appears on the records of the corporation. Notice of the time, place, if any, and
purpose of any meeting of stockholders may be waived in writing, signed by the person entitled to notice
thereof or by electronic transmission by such person, either before or after such meeting, and will be
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waived by any stockholder by such stockholder’s attendance thereat in person, by remote communication,
if applicable, or by proxy, except when the stockholder attends a meeting for the express purpose of
objecting, at the beginning of the meeting, to the transaction of any business because the meeting is not
lawfully called or convened. Any stockholder so waiving notice of such meeting will be bound by the
proceedings of any such meeting in all respects as if due notice thereof had been given.

Section 8. Quorum. At all meetings of stockholders, except as otherwise provided by
statute, the Certificate of Incorporation or these Bylaws, the presence, in person, by remote
communication, if applicable, or by proxy duly authorized, of the holders of a majority of the outstanding
shares of stock entitled to vote will constitute a quorum for the transaction of business. In the absence of
a quorum, any meeting of stockholders may be adjourned, from time to time, either by the chair of the
meeting or by vote of the holders of a majority of the shares represented thereat, but no other business
will be transacted at such meeting. The stockholders present at a duly called or convened meeting, at
which a quorum is present, may continue to transact business until adjournment, notwithstanding the
withdrawal of enough stockholders to leave less than a quorum. Except as otherwise provided by statute,
the Certificate of Incorporation or these Bylaws, in all matters other than the election of directors, the
affirmative vote of a majority of shares present in person, by remote communication, if applicable, or
represented by proxy duly authorized at the meeting and entitled to vote generally on the subject matter
will be the act of the stockholders. Except as otherwise provided by statute, the Certificate of
Incorporation or these Bylaws, directors will be elected by a plurality of the votes of the shares present in
person, by remote communication, if applicable, or represented by proxy duly authorized at the meeting
and entitled to vote generally on the election of directors. Where a separate vote by a class or classes or
series is required, except as otherwise provided by statute, the Certificate of Incorporation or these
Bylaws, a majority of the outstanding shares of such class or classes or series, present in person, by
remote communication, if applicable, or represented by proxy duly authorized, will constitute a quorum
entitled to take action with respect to that vote on that matter. Except as otherwise provided by statute,
the Certificate of Incorporation or these Bylaws, the affirmative vote of the majority (plurality, in the case
of the election of directors) of shares of such class or classes or series present in person, by remote
communication, if applicable, or represented by proxy at the meeting will be the act of such class or
classes or series.

Section 9. Adjournment and Notice of Adjourned Meetings. Any meeting of
stockholders, whether annual or special, may be adjourned from time to time either by the chair of the
meeting or by the vote of a majority of the shares present in person, by remote communication, if
applicable, or represented by proxy. When a meeting is adjourned to another time or place (including an
adjournment taken to address a technical failure to convene or continue a meeting using remote
communication), if any, notice need not be given of the adjourned meeting if the time and place, if any,
thereof are (a) announced at the meeting at which the adjournment is taken, (b) displayed, during the time
scheduled for the meeting, on the same electronic network used to enable stockholders and proxy holders
to participate in the meeting by means of remote communication or (c) set forth in the notice of meeting
of stockholders. At the adjourned meeting, the corporation may transact any business that might have
been transacted at the original meeting pursuant to the Certificate of Incorporation, these Bylaws or
applicable law. If the adjournment is for more than 30 days or if after the adjournment a new record date
is fixed for the adjourned meeting, a notice of the adjourned meeting will be given to each stockholder of
record entitled to vote at the meeting.

Section 10. Voting Rights. For the purpose of determining those stockholders entitled to
vote at any meeting of the stockholders, except as otherwise provided by law, only persons in whose
names shares stand on the stock records of the corporation on the record date, as provided in Section 12 of
these Bylaws, will be entitled to vote at any meeting of stockholders. Every person entitled to vote or
execute consents will have the right to do so either in person, by remote communication, if applicable, or



DaocuSign Envelope ID: DB1429D6-A90B-41D3-A43B-FB2469831689

by an agent or agents authorized by a proxy granted in accordance with Delaware law. An agent so
appointed need not be a stockholder. No proxy will be voted after three years from its date of creation
unless the proxy provides for a longer period.

Section 11. Joint Owners of Stock. If shares or other securities having voting power stand
of record in the names of two or more persons, whether fiduciaries, members of a partnership, joint
tenants. tenants in common, tenants by the entirety, or otherwise, or if two or more persons have the same
fiduciary relationship respecting the same shares, unless the Secretary is given written notice to the
contrary and is furnished with a copy of the instrument or order appointing them or creating the
relationship where it is so provided, their acts with respect to voting (including giving consent pursuant to
Section 13) will have the following effect: (a)if only one votes, such person’s act binds all; (b) if more
than one votes and the vote is not evenly split, the act of the majority so voting binds all; (c) if more than
one votes, but the vote is evenly split on any particular matter, each faction may vote the securities in
question proportionally, or may apply to the Delaware Court of Chancery for relief as provided in the
DGCL, Section 217(b). If the instrument filed with the Secretary shows that any such tenancy is held in
unequal interests, a majority or even-split for the purpose of subsection (c¢) will be a majority or even-split
in interest.

Section 12. List of Stockholders. The Secretary will prepare, no later than the tenth day
before each meeting of stockholders, a complete list of the stockholders entitled to vote at said meeting,
arranged in alphabetical order, showing the address of each stockholder and the number of shares
registered in the name of each stockholder. Such list will be open to the examination of any stockholder
for any purpose germane to the meeting for a period of ten days ending on the day before the meeting
date, on a reasonably accessible electronic network, provided that the information required to gain access
to such list is provided with the notice of the meeting, or during ordinary business hours, at the principal
place of business of the corporation. In the event that the corporation determines to make the list
available on an electronic network, the corporation may take reasonable steps to ensure that such
information is available only to stockholders of the corporation.

Section 13. Action Without Meeting.

(a) Unless otherwise provided in the Certificate of Incorporation, any action required
by statute to be taken at any annual or special meeting of the stockholders, or any action that may be
taken at any annual or special meeting of the stockholders, may be taken without a meeting, without prior
notice and without a vote, if a consent or consents setting forth the action so taken, will be signed by the
holders of outstanding stock having not less than the minimum number of votes that would be necessary
to authorize or take such action at a meeting at which all shares entitled to vote thereon were present and
voted.

(b) A consent must be set forth in writing or in an electronic transmission. No
consent will be effective to take the corporate action referred to therein unless consents signed by a
sufficient number of stockholders to take action are delivered to the corporation in the manner required by
the DGCL within 60 days of the first date on which a consent is so delivered to the corporation. All
references to a consent in this Section mean a consent permitted by Section 228 of the DGCL.

(c) Prompt notice of the taking of the corporate action without a meeting by less than
unanimous consent will be given to those stockholders who have not consented and who, if the action had
been taken at a meeting, would have been entitled to notice of the meeting if the record date for such
meeting had been the date that consents signed by a sufficient number of stockholders to take action were
delivered to the corporation as provided in Section 228 of the DGCL. If the action to which the
stockholders consented is such as would have required the filing of a certificate under any section of the
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DGCL if such action had been voted on by stockholders at a meeting thereof, then the certificate filed
under such section must state, in lieu of any statement required by such section concerning any vote of
stockholders, that consent has been given in accordance with Section 228 of the DGCL.

(d) A consent permitted by this Section shall be delivered: (i) to the principal place
of business of the corporation; (ii) to an officer or agent of the corporation having custody of the book in
which proceedings of meetings of stockholders are recorded; (iii) to the registered office of the
corporation in the State of Delaware by hand or by certified or registered mail, return receipt requested;
(iv) subject to the next sentence, in accordance with Section 116 of the DGCL to an information
processing system, if any, designated by the corporation for receiving such consents; or (v) when
delivered in such other manner that complies with the DGCL. In the case of delivery pursuant to the
foregoing clause (iv), such consent must set forth or be delivered with information that enables the
corporation to determine the date of delivery of such consent and the identity of the person giving such
consent, and, if such consent is given by a person authorized to act for a stockholder or member as proxy,
such consent must comply with the applicable provisions of Section 212(c){2) & (3) of the DGCL. Any
copy, facsimile or other reliable reproduction of a consent in writing may be substituted or used in lieu of
the original writing for any and all purposes for which the original writing could be used, provided that
such copy, facsimile or other reproduction shall be a complete reproduction of the entire original writing,
A consent may be documented and signed in accordance with Section 116 of the DGCL, and when so
documented or signed shall be deemed to be in writing for purposes of the DGCL; provided that if such
consent is delivered pursuant to clause (i), (ii) or (iii) of subsection (d)(1) of Section 228 of the DGCL,
such consent must be reproduced and delivered in paper form.

Section 14. Organization.

(a) At every meeting of stockholders, the Chair of the Board of Directors, or, if a
Chair has not been appointed or is absent, the Chief Executive Officer, or, if the Chief Executive Officer
is absent, a chair of the meeting chosen by a majority in interest of the stockholders entitled to vote,
present in person or by proxy, will act as chair. The Secretary, or, in the Secretary’s absence, an Assistant
Secretary directed to do so by the Chief Executive Officer, will act as secretary of the meeting.

(b) The Board of Directors is entitled to make such rules or regulations for the
conduct of meetings of stockholders as it deems necessary, appropriate or convenient. Subject to such
rules and regulations of the Board of Directors, if any, the chair of the meeting has the right and authority
to prescribe such rules, regulations and procedures and to do all such acts as, in the judgment of such
chair, are necessary, appropriate or convenient for the proper conduct of the meeting, including, without
limitation, establishing an agenda or order of business for the meeting, rules and procedures for
maintaining order at the meeting and the safety of those present, limitations on participation in such
meeting to stockholders of record of the corporation and their duly authorized and constituted proxies and
such other persons as the chair permits, restrictions on entry to the meeting after the time fixed for the
commencement thereof, limitations on the time allotted to questions or comments by participants and
regulation of the opening and closing of the polls for balloting on matters that are to be voted on by ballot.
The date and time of the opening and closing of the polls for each matter upon which the stockholders
will vote at the meeting will be announced at the meeting. Unless and to the extent determined by the
Board of Directors or the chair of the meeting, meetings of stockholders will not be required to be held in
accordance with rules of parliamentary procedure.
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ARTICLE IV
DIRECTORS

Section 15. Number and Term of Office. The authorized number of directors of the
corporation will be fixed by the Board of Directors from time to time. Directors need not be stockholders
unless so required by the Certificate of Incorporation. If for any cause, the directors have not been elected
at an annual meeting, they may be elected as soon thereafter as convenient.

Section 16. Powers. The business and affairs of the corporation will be managed by or under
the direction of the Board of Directors, except as otherwise provided by statute or by the Certificate of
Incorporation.

Section 17. Term of Directors.

(a) Subject to the rights of the holders of any series of Preferred Stock to elect
additional directors under specified circumstances, directors will be elected at each annual meeting of
stockholders to serve until such director’s successor is duly elected and qualified or until such director’s
death, resignation or removal. No decrease in the number of directors constituting the Board of Directors
will shorten the term of any incumbent director.

(b) No person entitled to vote at an election for directors may cumulate votes to
which such person is entitled., unless, at the time of such election, the corporation is subject to
Section 2115(b) of the CGCL. During such time or times that the corporation is subject to
Section 2115(b) of the CGCL, every stockholder entitled to vote at an election for directors may cumulate
such stockholder’s votes and give one candidate a number of votes equal to the number of directors to be
elected multiplied by the number of votes to which such stockholder’s shares are otherwise entitled, or
distribute the stockholder’s votes on the same principle among as many candidates as such stockholder
thinks fit. No stockholder, however, will be entitled to so cumulate such stockholder’s votes unless (i) the
names of such candidate or candidates have been placed in nomination prior to the voting and (ii) the
stockholder has given notice at the meeting, prior to the voting, of such stockholder’s intention to
cumulate such stockholder’s votes. If any stockholder has given proper notice to cumulate votes, all
stockholders may cumulate their votes for any candidates who have been properly placed in nomination.
Under cumulative voting, the candidates receiving the highest number of votes, up to the number of
directors to be elected, are elected.

Section 18. Vacancies.

(a) Unless otherwise provided in the Certificate of Incorporation, and subject to the
rights of the holders of any series of Preferred Stock, any vacancies on the Board of Directors resulting
from death, resignation, disqualification, removal or other causes and any newly created directorships
resulting from any increase in the number of directors will, unless the Board of Directors determines by
resolution that any such vacancies or newly created directorships will be filled by stockholders, be filled
only by the affirmative vote of a majority of the directors then in office, even though less than a quorum
of the Board of Directors, or by a sole remaining director; provided, however, that whenever the holders
of any class or classes of stock or series thereof are entitled to elect one or more directors by the
provisions of the Certificate of Incorporation, vacancies and newly created directorships of such class or
classes or series will, unless the Board of Directors determines by resolution that any such vacancies or
newly created directorships must be filled by stockholders, be filled by a majority of the directors elected
by such class or classes or series thereof then in office. or by a sole remaining director so elected. Any
director elected in accordance with the preceding sentence will hold office for the remainder of the full
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term of the director for which the vacancy was created or occurred and until such director’s successor has
been elected and qualified. A vacancy in the Board of Directors will be deemed to exist under this Bylaw
in the case of the death, removal or resignation of any director.

(b) At any time or times that the corporation is subject to Section 2115(b) of the
CGCL, if, after the filling of any vacancy, the directors then in office who have been elected by
stockholders constitute less than a majority of the directors then in office, then

(i) any holder or holders of an aggregate of 5% or more of the total
number of shares at the time outstanding having the right to vote for those directors may call a special
meeting of stockholders; or

(ii) the Superior Court of the proper county will, upon application of
such stockholder or stockholders, summarily order a special meeting of the stockholders, to be held to
elect the entire board, all in accordance with Section 305(c) of the CGCL, the term of office of any
director will terminate upon that election of a successor.

Section 19. Resignation. Any director may resign at any time by delivering such director’s
notice in writing or by electronic transmission to the Secretary, such resignation to specify whether it will
be effective at a particular time, upon receipt by the Secretary or at the pleasure of the Board of Directors.
If no such specification is made, it will be deemed effective at the pleasure of the Board of Directors.
When one or more directors resigns from the Board of Directors, effective at a future date, a majority of
the directors then in office, including those who have so resigned, will have power to fill such vacancy or
vacancies, the vote thereon to take effect when such resignation or resignations become effective, and
each director so chosen will hold office for the unexpired portion of the term of the director whose place
is vacated and until such director’s successor has been duly elected and qualified.

Section 20. Removal.

(a) Subject to any limitations imposed by applicable law and unless otherwise
provided in the Certificate of Incorporation, the Board of Directors or any director may be removed from
office at any time, with or without cause, by the affirmative vote of the holders of a majority of the voting
power of all then-outstanding shares of capital stock of the corporation entitled to vote generally at an
election of directors.

() During such time or times that the corporation is subject to Section 2115(b) of
the CGCL, the Board of Directors or any individual director may be removed from office at any time
without cause by the affirmative vote of the holders of a majority of the outstanding shares entitled to vote
on such removal; provided, however, that unless the entire Board of Directors is removed, no individual
director may be removed when the votes cast against such director’s removal, or not consenting in writing
to such removal, would be sufficient to elect that director if voted cumulatively at an election in which the
same total number of votes were cast (or, if such action is taken by written consent, all shares entitled to
vote were voted) and the entire number of directors authorized at the time of such director’s most recent
election were then being elected.

Section 21. Meetings

(a) Regular Meetings. Unless otherwise restricted by the Certificate of
Incorporation, regular meetings of the Board of Directors may be held at any time or date and at any place
within or without the State of Delaware that has been designated by the Board of Directors and publicized
among all directors, either orally or in writing, including a voice-messaging system or other system
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designated to record and communicate messages, facsimile, or by electronic mail or other electronic
means. No further notice will be required for a regular meeting of the Board of Directors.

() Special Meetings. Unless otherwise restricted by the Certificate of
Incorporation, special meetings of the Board of Directors may be held at any time and place within or
without the State of Delaware whenever called by the Chair of the Board of Directors, the Chief
Executive Officer (if a director), the President (if a director) or any director.

(c) Meetings by Electronic Communications Equipment. Any member of the
Board of Directors, or of any committee thereof, may participate in a meeting by means of conference
telephone or other communications equipment by means of which all persons participating in the meeting
can hear each other, and participation in a meeting by such means constitutes presence in person at such
meeting,

(d) Notice of Special Meetings. Notice of the time and place of all special meetings
of the Board of Directors will be orally or in writing, by telephone, including a voice messaging system or
other system or technology designed to record and communicate messages, facsimile, telegraph or telex,
or by electronic mail or other electronic means, during normal business hours, at least 24 hours before the
date and time of the meeting. If notice is sent by US mail, it will be sent by first class mail. postage
prepaid at least three days before the date of the meeting. Notice of any meeting may be waived in
writing or by electronic transmission at any time before or after the meeting and will be waived by any
director by attendance thereat, except when the director attends the meeting for the express purpose of
objecting, at the beginning of the meeting, to the transaction of any business because the meeting is not
lawfully called or convened.

(e) Waiver of Notice. The transaction of all business at any meeting of the Board of
Directors, or any committee thereof, however called or noticed, or wherever held, will be as valid as
though had at a meeting duly held after regular call and notice, if a quorum be present and if, either before
or after the meeting, each of the directors not present who did not receive notice signs a written waiver of
notice or waives notice by electronic transmission. All such waivers will be filed with the corporate
records or made a part of the minutes of the meeting.

Section 22. Quorum and Voting.

(a) Unless the Certificate of Incorporation requires a greater number, a quorum of
the Board of Directors will consist of a majority of the total number of directors then serving: provided,
however, that such number will never be less than 1/3 of the total number of directors authorized except
that when one director is authorized, then one director will constitute a quorum. At any meeting, whether
a quorum be present or otherwise, a majority of the directors present may adjourn from time to time until
the time fixed for the next regular meeting of the Board of Directors, without notice other than by
announcement at the meeting. If the Certificate of Incorporation provides that one or more directors will
have more or less than one vote per director on any matter, every reference in this Section to a majority or
other proportion of the directors will refer to a majority or other proportion of the votes of the directors.

() At each meeting of the Board of Directors at which a quorum is present, all
questions and business will be determined by the affirmative vote of a majority of the directors present,
unless a different vote be required by law, the Certificate of Incorporation or these Bylaws.

Section 23. Action Without Meeting. Unless otherwise restricted by the Certificate of
Incorporation or these Bylaws, any action required or permitted to be taken at any meeting of the Board
of Directors or of any committee thereof may be taken without a meeting, if all members of the Board of
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Directors or committee, as the case may be, consent in writing or by electronic transmission, and such
writing or writings or transmission or transmissions are filed with the minutes of proceedings of the
Board of Directors or committee. A consent may be documented, signed and delivered in any manner
permitted by Section 116 of the DGCL. Such filing will be in paper form if the minutes are maintained in
paper form and will be in electronic form if the minutes are maintained in electronic form.

Section 24. Fees and Compensation. Directors will be entitled to such compensation for
their services as may be approved by the Board of Directors, including, if so approved, by resolution of
the Board of Directors, a fixed sum and expenses of attendance, if any, for attendance at each regular or
special meeting of the Board of Directors and at any meeting of a committee of the Board of Directors.
Nothing herein contained is to be construed to preclude any director from serving the corporation in any
other capacity as an officer, agent, employee, or otherwise and receiving compensation therefor.

Section 25. Committees.

(a) Executive Committee. The Board of Directors may appoint an Executive
Committee to consist of one or more members of the Board of Directors. The Executive Committee, to
the extent permitted by law and provided in the resolution of the Board of Directors, will have and may
exercise all the powers and authority of the Board of Directors in the management of the business and
affairs of the corporation. and may authorize the seal of the corporation to be affixed to all papers that
may require it; but no such committee will have the power or authority in reference to (i) approving or
adopting, or recommending to the stockholders, any action or matter expressly required by the DGCL to
be submitted to stockholders for approval, or (ii) adopting, amending or repealing any bylaw of the
corporation.

() Other Committees. The Board of Directors may, from time to time, appoint
such other committees as may be permitted by law. Such other committees appointed by the Board of
Directors will consist of one or more members of the Board of Directors and will have such powers and
perform such duties as may be prescribed by the resolution or resolutions creating such committees, but in
no event will any such committee have the powers denied to the Executive Committee in these Bylaws.

(c) Term. The Board of Directors, subject to any requirements of any outstanding
series of Preferred Stock and the provisions of paragraphs (a) or (b) of this Section may at any time
increase or decrease the number of members of a committee or terminate the existence of a committee.
The membership of a committee member will terminate on the date of such member’s death or voluntary
resignation from the committee or from the Board of Directors. The Board of Directors may at any time
for any reason remove any individual committee member and the Board of Directors may fill any
committee vacancy created by death, resignation, removal or increase in the number of members of the
committee, The Board of Directors may designate one or more directors as alternate members of any
committee, who may replace any absent or disqualified member at any meeting of the committee, and, in
addition, in the absence or disqualification of any member of a committee, the member or members
thereof present at any meeting and not disqualified from voting, whether or not such member or members
constitute a quorum, may unanimously appoint another member of the Board of Directors to act at the
meeting in the place of any such absent or disqualified member.

(d) Meetings. Unless the Board of Directors otherwise provide, regular meetings of
the Executive Committee or any other committee appointed pursuant to this Section will be held at such
times and places as are determined by the Board of Directors, or by any such committee, and when notice
thereof has been given to each member of such committee, no further notice of such regular meetings
need be given thereafter. Special meetings of any such committee may be held at any place that has been
determined from time to time by such committee, and may be called by any director who is a member of
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such committee, upon notice to the members of such committee of the time and place of such special
meeting given in the manner provided for the giving of notice to members of the Board of Directors of the
time and place of special meetings of the Board of Directors. Notice of any special meeting of any
committee may be waived in writing at any time before or after the meeting and will be waived by any
director by attendance thereat, except when the director attends such special meeting for the express
purpose of objecting, at the beginning of the meeting, to the transaction of any business because the
meeting is not lawfully called or convened. Unless otherwise provided by the Board of Directors in the
resolutions authorizing the creation of the committee, a majority of the authorized number of members of
any such committee will constitute a quorum for the transaction of business, and the act of a majority of
those present at any meeting at which a quorum is present will be the act of such committee,

Section 26. Duties of Chair of the Board of Directors. The Chair of the Board of Directors
(or “Chairman of the Board™), when present, will preside at all meetings of the stockholders and the
Board of Directors. The Chair of the Board of Directors will perform other duties commonly incident to
the office and will also perform such other duties and have such other powers as the Board of Directors
designates from time to time. If there is no Chief Executive Officer and no President, then the Chair of
the Board of Directors will also serve as the Chief Executive Officer of the corporation and will have the
powers and duties prescribed in Section 29(b).

Section 27. Organization. At every meeting of the directors, the Chair of the Board of
Directors, or, if a Chair has not been appointed or is absent, the Chief Executive Officer (if a director), or
if the Chief Executive Officer is not a director or is absent, the President (if a director), or if the President
is not a director or is absent, the most senior Vice President (if a director) or, in the absence of any such
person, a chair of the meeting chosen by a majority of the directors present, will preside over the meeting.
The Secretary, or in the Secretary’s absence, any Assistant Secretary directed to do so by the Chief
Executive Officer or President, will act as secretary of the meeting.

ARTICLE YV
OFFICERS

Section 28. Officers Designated. The officers of the corporation will include, if and when
designated by the Board of Directors, the Chief Executive Officer, the President, one or more Vice
Presidents, the Secretary, the Chief Financial Officer, the Treasurer and the Controller, all of whom will
be elected or appointed from time to time by the Board of Directors. The Board of Directors may also
appoint one or more Assistant Secretaries, Assistant Treasurers, Assistant Controllers and such other
officers and agents with such powers and duties as it deems necessary. The Board of Directors may
assign such additional titles to one or more of the officers as it deems appropriate. Any one person may
hold any number of offices of the corporation at any one time unless specifically prohibited therefrom by
law. The salaries and other compensation of the officers of the corporation will be fixed by or in the
manner designated by the Board of Directors.

Section 29. Tenure and Duties of Officers.

(a) General. All officers will hold office at the pleasure of the Board of Directors
and until their successors have been duly elected or appointed and qualified, unless sooner removed. Any
officer elected or appointed by the Board of Directors may be removed at any time by the Board of
Directors. If the office of any officer becomes vacant for any reason, the vacancy may be filled by the
Board of Directors, or by the Chief Executive Officer or other officer if so authorized by the Board of
Directors.
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(b) Duties of Chief Executive Officer. The Chief Executive Officer will preside at
all meetings of the stockholders and (if a director) at all meetings of the Board of Directors, unless the
Chair of the Board of Directors has been appointed and is present. The Chief Executive Officer will be
the chief executive officer of the corporation and will, subject to the control of the Board of Directors,
have general supervision, direction and control of the business and officers of the corporation. The Chief
Executive Officer will perform other duties commonly incident to the office and will also perform such
other duties and have such other powers as the Board of Directors designates from time to time.

(c) Duties of President. In the absence or disability of the Chief Executive Officer
or if the office of Chief Executive Officer is vacant, the President will preside at all meetings of the
stockholders and (if a director) at all meetings of the Board of Directors, unless the Chair of the Board of
Directors has been appointed and is present. If the office of Chief Executive Officer is vacant, the
President will be the chief executive officer of the corporation (including for purposes of any reference to
Chief Executive Officer in these Bylaws) and will, subject to the control of the Board of Directors, have
general supervision, direction and control of the business and officers of the corporation. The President
will perform other duties commonly incident to the office and will also perform such other duties and
have such other powers as the Board of Directors designates from time to time.

(d) Duties of Vice Presidents. The Vice Presidents may assume and perform the
duties of the President in the absence or disability of the President or whenever the office of President is
vacant. The Vice Presidents will perform other duties commonly incident to their office and will also
perform such other duties and have such other powers as the Board of Directors or the President
designates from time to time.

(e) Duties of Secretary. The Secretary will attend all meetings of the stockholders
and of the Board of Directors and will record all acts and proceedings thereof in the minute book of the
corporation. The Secretary will give notice in conformity with these Bylaws of all meetings of the
stockholders and of all meetings of the Board of Directors and any committee thereof requiring notice.
The Secretary will perform all other duties provided for in these Bylaws and other duties commonly
incident to the office and will also perform such other duties and have such other powers as the Board of
Directors will designate from time to time. The Chief Executive Officer may direct any Assistant
Secretary to assume and perform the duties of the Secretary in the absence or disability of the Secretary,
and each Assistant Secretary will perform other duties commonly incident to the office and will also
perform such other duties and have such other powers as the Board of Directors or the Chief Executive
Officer designates from time to time.

(D) Duties of Chief Financial Officer. The Chief Financial Officer will keep or
cause to be kept the books of account of the corporation in a thorough and proper manner and will render
statements of the financial affairs of the corporation in such form and as often as required by the Board of
Directors or the Chief Executive Officer. The Chief Financial Officer, subject to the order of the Board of
Directors, will have the custody of all funds and securities of the corporation. The Chief Financial
Officer will perform other duties commonly incident to such office and will also perform such other
duties and have such other powers as the Board of Directors or the Chief Executive Officer designate
from time to time. The Chief Executive Officer may direct the Treasurer or any Assistant Treasurer, or
the Controller or any Assistant Controller to assume and perform the duties of the Chief Financial Officer
in the absence or disability of the Chief Financial Officer, and each Treasurer and Assistant Treasurer and
each Controller and Assistant Controller will perform other duties commeonly incident to the office and
will also perform such other duties and have such other powers as the Board of Directors or the Chief
Executive Officer designates from time to time.
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Section 30. Delegation of Authority. The Board of Directors may from time to time
delegate the powers or duties of any officer to any other officer or agent, notwithstanding any provision
hereof.

Section 31. Resignations. Any officer may resign at any time by giving notice in writing or

by electronic transmission notice to the Board of Directors or to the Chief Executive Officer or to the
President or to the Secretary. Any such resignation will be effective when received by the person or
persons to whom such notice is given, unless a later time is specified therein, in which event the
resignation will become effective at such later time. Unless otherwise specified in such notice, the
acceptance of any such resignation will not be necessary to make it effective. Any resignation will be
without prejudice to the rights, if any, of the corporation under any contract with the resigning officer.

Section 32. Removal. Any officer may be removed from office at any time, either with or
without cause, by the affirmative vote of a majority of the directors in office at the time, or by the
unanimous written or electronic consent of the directors in office at the time, or by any committee or
superior officers upon whom such power of removal may have been conferred by the Board of Directors.

ARTICLE VI

EXECUTION OF CORPORATE INSTRUMENTS AND VOTING
OF SECURITIES OWNED BY THE CORPORATION

Section 33. Execution of Corporate Instruments. The Board of Directors may, in ifs
discretion, determine the method and designate the signatory officer or officers, or other person or
persons, to execute on behalf of the corporation any corporate instrument or document, or to sign on
behalf of the corporation the corporate name, or to enter into contracts on behalf of the corporation,
except as otherwise provided by law or these Bylaws, and such execution or signature will be binding
upon the corporation. All checks and drafts drawn on banks or other depositaries of funds to the credit of
the corporation or on special accounts of the corporation will be signed by such person or persons as the
Board of Directors authorizes so to do. Unless authorized or ratified by the Board of Directors or within
the agency power of an officer, no officer, agent or employee will have any power or authority to bind the
corporation by any contract or engagement or to pledge its credit or to render it liable for any purpose or
for any amount.

Section 34. Voting of Securities Owned by the Corporation. All stock and other securities
of other corporations owned or held by the corporation for itself, or for other parties in any capacity, will
be voted, and all proxies with respect thereto will be executed, by the person authorized so to do by
resolution of the Board of Directors, or, in the absence of such authorization, by the Chair of the Board of
Directors, the Chief Executive Officer, the President, or any Vice President.

ARTICLE VI
SHARES OF STOCK

Section 35. Form and Execution of Certificates. The shares of the corporation will be
represented by certificates, or will be uncertificated. Certificates for the shares of stock, if any, of the
corporation will be in such form as is consistent with the Certificate of Incorporation and applicable law.
Every holder of shares of stock in the corporation represented by certificate will be entitled to have a
certificate signed by or in the name of the corporation by any two authorized officers of the corporation,
including but not limited to the Chief Executive Officer, the President. the Chief Financial Officer, any
Vice President, the Treasurer or Assistant Treasurer or the Secretary or Assistant Secretary, certifying the
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number of shares owned by such holder in the corporation. Any or all of the signatures on the certificate
may be facsimiles. In case any officer, transfer agent, or registrar who has signed or whose facsimile
signature has been placed upon a certificate has ceased to be such officer, transfer agent, or registrar
before such certificate is issued, it may be issued with the same effect as if such person were such officer,
transfer agent, or registrar at the date of issue.

Section 36. Lost Certificates. A new certificate or certificates will be issued in place of any
certificate or certificates theretofore issued by the corporation alleged to have been lost, stolen, or
destroyed, upon the making of an affidavit of that fact by the person claiming the certificate of stock to be
lost, stolen, or destroyed. The corporation may require, as a condition precedent to the issuance of a new
certificate or certificates, the owner of such lost, stolen, or destroyed certificate or certificates, or the
owner’s legal representative, to agree to indemnify the corporation in such manner as it requires or to give
the corporation a surety bond in such form and amount as it may direct as indemnity against any claim
that may be made against the corporation with respect to the certificate alleged to have been lost, stolen,
or destroyed.

Section 37. Restrictions on Transfer.

(a) The corporation will have power to enter into and perform any agreement with
any number of stockholders of any one or more classes of stock of the corporation to restrict the sale,
transfer, assignment, pledge, or other disposal of or encumbering of any of the shares of stock of the
corporation or any right or interest therein, whether voluntarily or by operation of law, or by gift or
otherwise (each, a “Transfer”) of shares of stock of the corporation of any one or more classes owned by
such stockholders in any manner not prohibited by the DGCL.

() Transfers of record of shares of stock of the corporation will be made only upon
its books by the holders thereof. in person or by attorney duly authorized, and, in the case of stock
represented by certificate, upon the surrender of a properly endorsed certificate or certificates for a like
number of shares.

(c) At the option of the corporation, the stockholder will be obligated to pay to the
corporation a reasonable transfer fee related to the costs and time of the corporation and its legal and other
advisors related to any proposed Transfer.

(d) If the stockholder desires to sell or otherwise Transfer any of the stockholder’s
shares of stock, then the stockholder will first give written notice thereof to the corporation. The notice
will name the proposed transferee and state the number of shares to be transferred, the proposed
consideration, and all other terms and conditions of the proposed Transfer.

Section 38. Fixing Record Dates.

(a) In order that the corporation may determine the stockholders entitled to notice of
or to vote at any meeting of stockholders or any adjournment thereof, the Board of Directors may fix, in
advance, a record date, which record date will not precede the date upon which the resolution fixing the
record date is adopted by the Board of Directors, and which record date will, subject to applicable law,
not be more than 60 nor less than 10 days before the date of such meeting. If no record date is fixed by
the Board of Directors, the record date for determining stockholders entitled to notice of or to vote at a
meeting of stockholders will be at the close of business on the day immediately preceding the day on
which notice is given, or if notice is waived, at the close of business on the day immediately preceding the
day on which the meeting is held. A determination of stockholders of record entitled to notice of or to
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vote at a meeting of stockholders will apply to any adjournment of the meeting; provided, however, that
the Board of Directors may fix a new record date for the adjourned meeting.

L)) In order that the corporation may determine the stockholders entitled to consent
to corporate action without a meeting in accordance with Section 228 of the DGCL, the Board of
Directors may fix a record date, which record date will not precede the date upon which the resolution
fixing the record date is adopted by the Board of Directors, and which date will not be more than 10 days
after the date upon which the resolution fixing the record date is adopted by the Board of Directors. Any
stockholder of record seeking to have the stockholders authorize or take corporate action without a
meeting in accordance with Section 228 of the DGCL will, by written notice to the Secretary, request the
Board of Directors to fix a record date. The Board of Directors will promptly, but in all events within 10
days after the date on which such a request is received, adopt a resolution fixing the record date. If no
record date has been fixed by the Board of Directors within 10 days of the date on which such a request is
received, the record date for determining stockholders entitled to consent to corporate action without a
meeting, when no prior action by the Board of Directors is required by applicable law, will be the first
date on which a signed consent setting forth the action taken or proposed to be taken is delivered to the
corporation in accordance with the DGCL. If no record date has been fixed by the Board of Directors and
prior action by the Board of Directors is required by law, the record date for determining stockholders
entitled to consent to corporate action without a meeting will be at the close of business on the day on
which the Board of Directors adopts the resolution taking such prior action.

() In order that the corporation may determine the stockholders entitled to receive
payment of any dividend or other distribution or allotment of any rights or the stockholders entitled to
exercise any rights in respect of any change, conversion or exchange of stock, or for the purpose of any
other lawful action, the Board of Directors may fix, in advance, a record date, which record date will not
precede the date upon which the resolution fixing the record date is adopted, and which record date will
be not more than 60 days prior to such action. If no record date is fixed, the record date for determining
stockholders for any such purpose will be at the close of business on the day on which the Board of
Directors adopts the resolution relating thereto.

Section 39. Registered Stockholders. The corporation is entitled to recognize the exclusive
right of a person registered on its books as the owner of shares to receive dividends, and to vote as such
owner, and is not bound to recognize any equitable or other claim to or interest in such share or shares on
the part of any other person whether or not it has express or other notice thereof, except as otherwise
provided by the laws of Delaware.

ARTICLE VIII
OTHER SECURITIES OF THE CORPORATION

Section 40. Execution of Other Securities. All bonds, debentures and other corporate
securities of the corporation, other than stock certificates (covered in Section 35 of these Bylaws), may be
signed by the Chair of the Board of Directors, the Chief Executive Officer, the President or any Vice
President, or such other person as may be authorized by the Board of Directors, and the corporate seal
impressed thereon or a facsimile of such seal imprinted thereon and attested by the signature of the
Secretary or an Assistant Secretary. or the Chief Financial Officer or Treasurer or an Assistant Treasurer;
provided, however, that where any such bond, debenture or other corporate security is authenticated by
the manual signature, or where permissible facsimile signature, of a trustee under an indenture pursuant to
which such bond, debenture or other corporate security is issued, the signatures of the persons signing and
attesting the corporate seal on such bond. debenture or other corporate security may be the imprinted
facsimile of the signatures of such persons. Interest coupons appertaining to any such bond, debenture or
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other corporate security, authenticated by a trustee as aforesaid, will be signed by the Treasurer or an
Assistant Treasurer of the corporation or such other person as may be authorized by the Board of
Directors, or bear imprinted thereon the facsimile signature of such person. In case any officer who has
signed or attested any bond, debenture or other corporate security, or whose facsimile signature appears
thereon or on any such interest coupon, has ceased to be such officer before the bond, debenture or other
corporate security so signed or attested has been delivered, such bond, debenture or other corporate
security nevertheless may be adopted by the corporation and issued and delivered as though the person
who signed the same or whose facsimile signature has been used thereon had not ceased to be such officer
of the corporation.

ARTICLE IX
DIVIDENDS

Section 41. Declaration of Dividends. Dividends upon the capital stock of the corporation,
subject to the provisions of the Certificate of Incorporation and applicable law, if any, may be declared by
the Board of Directors pursuant to law at any regular or special meeting. Dividends may be paid in cash,
in property, or in shares of the capital stock, subject to the provisions of the Certificate of Incorporation
and applicable law.

Section 42. Dividend Reserve. Before payment of any dividend. there may be set aside out
of any funds of the corporation available for dividends such sum or sums as the Board of Directors from
time to time, in their absolute discretion, think proper as a reserve or reserves to meet contingencies, or
for equalizing dividends, or for repairing or maintaining any property of the corporation, or for such other
purpose as the Board of Directors thinks conducive to the infterests of the corporation, and the Board of
Directors may modify or abolish any such reserve in the manner in which it was created.

ARTICLE X
FISCAL YEAR

Section 43. Fiscal Year. The fiscal year of the corporation will be fixed by resolution of the
Board of Directors.

ARTICLE XI
INDENMNIFICATION

Section 44. Indemnification of Directors, Executive Officers, Other Officers, Employees
and Other Agents.

(a) Directors and Executive Officers. The corporation will indemnify its directors
and executive officers (for the purposes of this Article, “executive officers” has the meaning defined in
Rule 3b-7 promulgated under the 1934 Act) to the fullest extent not prohibited by the DGCL or any other
applicable law; provided, however, that the corporation may modify the extent of such indemnification by
individual contracts with its directors and executive officers and, provided, firther, that the corporation
will not be required to indemnify any director or executive officer in connection with any proceeding (or
part thereof) initiated by such person unless (i) such indemnification is expressly required to be made by
law, (ii) the proceeding was authorized by the Board of Directors of the corporation, (iii) such
indemnification is provided by the corporation, in its sole discretion, pursuant to the powers vested in the
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corporation under the DGCL or any other applicable law or (iv) such indemnification is required to be
made under paragraph (d) of this Section.

() Other Officers, Employees and Other Agents. The corporation will have
power to indemnify its other officers, employees and other agents as set forth in the DGCL or any other
applicable law. The Board of Directors will have the power to delegate the determination of whether
indemnification will be given to any such person except executive officers to such officers or other
persons as the Board of Directors determines.

(c) Expenses. The corporation will advance to any person who was or is a party or
is threatened to be made a party to any threatened, pending or completed action, suit or proceeding,
whether civil, criminal, administrative or investigative, by reason of the fact that such person is or was a
director or executive officer of the corporation, or is or was serving at the request of the corporation as a
director or executive officer of another corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust or other enterprise,
prior to the final disposition of the proceeding, promptly following request therefor, all expenses incurred
by any director or executive officer in connection with such proceeding, provided, however, that, if the
DGCL requires, an advancement of expenses incurred by a director or officer in such director’s or
officer's capacity as a director or officer (and not in any other capacity in which service was or is
rendered by such indemnitee, including, without limitation, service to an employee benefit plan) will be
made only upon delivery to the corporation of an undertaking, by or on behalf of such indemnitee, to
repay all amounts so advanced if it is ultimately determined by final judicial decision from which there is
no further right to appeal that such indemnitee is not entitled to be indemnified for such expenses under
this Section or otherwise.

Notwithstanding the foregoing. unless otherwise determined pursuant to paragraph (e) of this Section, no
advance will be made by the corporation to an executive officer of the corporation (except by reason of
the fact that such executive officer is or was a director of the corporation, in which event this paragraph
will not apply) in any action, suit or proceeding, whether civil, criminal, administrative or investigative, if
a determination is reasonably and promptly made (i) by a majority vote of a quorum consisting of
directors who were not parties to the proceeding, even if not a quorum, or (ii) by a committee of such
directors designated by a majority of such directors, even though less than a quorum, or (iii) if there are
no such directors, or such directors so direct, by independent legal counsel in a written opinion. that the
facts known to the decision-making party at the time such determination is made demonstrate clearly and
convincingly that such person acted in bad faith or in a manner that such person did not believe to be in or
not opposed to the best interests of the corporation.

(d) Enforcement. Without the necessity of entering into an express contract, all
rights to indemnification and advances to directors and executive officers under this Section will be
deemed to be contractual rights and be effective to the same extent and as if provided for in a contract
between the corporation and the director or executive officer. Any right to indemnification or advances
granted by this Section to a director or executive officer will be enforceable by or on behalf of the person
holding such right in any court of competent jurisdiction if (i) the claim for indemnification or advances is
denied, in whole or in part, or (ii) no disposition of such claim is made within 90 days of request therefor.
The claimant in such enforcement action, if successful in whole or in part, will be entitled to be paid also
the expense of prosecuting the claim. In connection with any claim for indemnification, the corporation
will be entitled to raise as a defense to any such action that the claimant has not met the standards of
conduct that make it permissible under the DGCL or any other applicable law for the corporation to
indemnify the claimant for the amount claimed. In connection with any claim by an executive officer of
the corporation (except in any action, suit or proceeding, whether civil, criminal, administrative or
investigative, by reason of the fact that such executive officer is or was a director of the corporation) for
advances, the corporation will be entitled to raise as a defense as to any such action clear and convincing
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evidence that such person acted in bad faith or in a manner that such person did not believe to be in or not
opposed to the best interests of the corporation, or with respect to any criminal action or proceeding that
such person acted without reasonable cause to believe that such person’s conduct was lawful. Neither the
failure of the corporation (including its Board of Directors, independent legal counsel or its stockholders)
to have made a determination prior to the commencement of such action that indemnification of the
claimant is proper in the circumstances because such person has met the applicable standard of conduct
set forth in the DGCL or any other applicable law, nor an actual determination by the corporation
(including its Board of Directors, independent legal counsel or its stockholders) that the claimant has not
met such applicable standard of conduct, will be a defense to the action or create a presumption that
claimant has not met the applicable standard of conduct.

(e) Non-Exclusivity of Rights. The rights conferred on any person by this Section
are not exclusive of any other right that such person may have or hereafter acquire under any applicable
statute, provision of the Certificate of Incorporation, Bylaws, agreement, vote of stockholders or
disinterested directors or otherwise, both as to action in such person’s official capacity and as to action in
another capacity while holding office. The corporation is specifically authorized to enter into individual
contracts with any or all of its directors, officers, employees or agents respecting indemnification and
advances, to the fullest extent not prohibited by the DGCL or any other applicable law.

() Survival of Rights. The rights conferred on any person by this Section will
continue as to a person who has ceased to be a director or executive officer and will inure to the benefit of
the heirs, executors and administrators of such a person.

(g) Insurance. To the fullest extent permitted by the DGCL, or any other applicable
law, the corporation, upon approval by the Board of Directors, may purchase insurance on behalf of any
person required or permitted to be indemnified pursuant to this Section.

(h) Amendments. Any repeal or modification of this Section is only prospective
and does not affect the rights under this Bylaw in effect at the time of the alleged occurrence of any action
or omission to act that is the cause of any proceeding against any agent of the corporation.

i) Saving Clause. If this Section or any portion hereof is invalidated on any
ground by any court of competent jurisdiction, then the corporation will nevertheless indemnify each
director and executive officer to the full extent not prohibited by any applicable portion of this Bylaw that
has not been invalidated, or by any other applicable law. If this Section is invalid due to the application
of the indemnification provisions of another jurisdiction, then the corporation will indemnify each
director and executive officer to the full extent under applicable law.

() Certain Definitions. For the purposes of this Section, the following definitions
apply:

(1) The term “proceeding™ is to be broadly construed and includes, without
limitation, the investigation, preparation, prosecution, defense, settlement, arbitration and appeal of, and
the giving of testimony in, any threatened, pending or completed action, suit or proceeding, whether civil,
criminal, administrative or investigative.

(2) The term “expenses™ is to be broadly construed and includes, without

limitation, court costs, attorneys’ fees, witness fees, fines, amounts paid in settlement or judgment and
any other costs and expenses of any nature or kind incurred in connection with any proceeding.
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(3) The term the “corporation™ includes, in addition to the resulting
corporation, any constituent corporation (including any constituent of a constituent) absorbed in a
consolidation or merger that, if its separate existence had continued, would have had power and authority
to indemnify its directors, officers, and employees or agents, so that any person who is or was a director,
officer, employee or agent of such constituent corporation, or is or was serving at the request of such
constituent corporation as a director, officer, employee or agent of another corporation, partnership, joint
venture, trust or other enterprise, stands in the same position under the provisions of this Section with
respect to the resulting or surviving corporation as such person would have with respect to such
constituent corporation if its separate existence had continued.

(4) References to a “director,” “executive officer,” “officer,” “employee,” or
“agent™ of the corporation include, without limitation, situations where such person is serving at the
request of the corporation as, respectively, a director, executive officer, officer, employee, trustee or agent
of another corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust or other enterprise.

(5) References to “other enterprises” include employee benefit plans;
references to “fines” include any excise taxes assessed on a person with respect to an employee benefit
plan; and references to *“serving at the request of the corporation™ include any service as a director,
officer, employee or agent of the corporation that imposes duties on, or involves services by, such
director, officer, employee, or agent with respect to an employee benefit plan, its participants, or
beneficiaries; and a person who acted in good faith and in a manner such person reasonably believed to be
in the interest of the participants and beneficiaries of an employee benefit plan is deemed to have acted in
a manner “not opposed to the best interests of the corporation™ as referred to in this Section.

ARTICLE XIT
NOTICES
Section 45. Notices.
(a) Notice to Stockholders. Written notice to stockholders of stockholder meetings

will be given as provided in Section 7 of these Bylaws. Without limiting the manner by which notice
may otherwise be given effectively to stockholders under any agreement or contract with such
stockholder, and except as otherwise required by law, written notice to stockholders for purposes other
than stockholder meetings may be sent by United States mail or nationally recognized overnight courier,
or by facsimile, telegraph or telex or by electronic mail or other electronic means.

() Notice to Directors. Any notice required to be given to any director may be
given by the method stated in paragraph (a) of this Section, or as provided for in Section 21 of these
Bylaws. If such notice is not delivered personally, it will be sent to such address as such director has filed
in writing with the Secretary, or, in the absence of such filing, to the last known post office address of
such director.

(c) Affidavit of Mailing. An affidavit of mailing, executed by a duly authorized and
competent employee of the corporation or its transfer agent appointed with respect to the class of stock
affected or other agent, specifying the name and address or the names and addresses of the stockholder or
stockholders, or director or directors, to whom any such notice or notices was or were given, and the time
and method of giving the same, will in the absence of fraud, be prima facie evidence of the facts therein
contained.
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(d) Methods of Notice. It is not necessary that the same method of giving notice be
employed in respect of all recipients of notice, but one permissible method may be employed in respect of
any one or more, and any other permissible method or methods may be employed in respect of any other
or others.

(e) Notice to Person with Whom Communication Is Unlawful. Whenever notice
is required to be given, under any provision of law or of the Certificate of Incorporation or Bylaws of the
corporation, to any person with whom communication is unlawful, the giving of such notice to such
person is not required and there is no duty to apply to any governmental authority or agency for a license
or permit to give such notice to such person. Any action or meeting that is taken or held without notice to
any such person with whom communication is unlawful has the same force and effect as if such notice
had been duly given. In the event that the action taken by the corporation is such as to require the filing
of a certificate under any provision of the DGCL, the certificate will state, if such is the fact and if notice
is required, that notice was given to all persons entitled to receive notice except such persons with whom
commuunication is unlawful.

(D) Notice to Stockholders Sharing an Address. Except as otherwise prohibited
under DGCL, any notice given under the provisions of DGCL, the Certificate of Incorporation or the
Bylaws will be effective if given by a single written notice to stockholders who share an address if
consented to by the stockholders at that address to whom such notice is given. Such consent is deemed to
have been given if such stockholder fails to object in writing to the corporation within 60 days of having
been given notice by the corporation of its intention to send the single notice. Any consent is revocable by
the stockholder by written notice to the corporation.

ARTICLE XIII
AMENDMENTS

Section 46. Amendments. The Board of Directors is expressly empowered to adopt, amend
or repeal Bylaws of the corporation. The stockholders also have power to adopt, amend or repeal the
Bylaws of the corporation; provided, however, that, in addition to any vote of the holders of any class or
series of stock of the corporation required by law or by the Certificate of Incorporation, such action by
stockholders requires the affirmative vote of the holders of a majority of the voting power of all of the
then-outstanding shares of the capital stock of the corporation entitled to vote generally in the election of
directors, voting together as a single class.

ARTICLE X1V
LOANS TO OFFICERS

Section 47. Loans to Officers. Except as otherwise prohibited under applicable law, the
corporation may lend money to, or guarantee any obligation of, or otherwise assist any officer or other
employee of the corporation or of its subsidiaries, including any officer or employee who is a Director of
the corporation or its subsidiaries, whenever, in the judgment of the Board of Directors, such loan,
guarantee or assistance may reasonably be expected to benefit the corporation. The loan, guarantee or
other assistance may be with or without interest and may be unsecured, or secured in such manner as the
Board of Directors approves, including, without limitation, a pledge of shares of stock of the corporation.
Nothing in these Bylaws is deemed to deny, limit or restrict the powers of guaranty or warranty of the
corporation at common law or under any statute.
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ARTICLE XV
MISCELLANEOUS
Section 48. Annual Report.

(a) Subject to the provisions of paragraph (b) of this Section, the Board of Directors
will cause an annual report to be sent to each stockholder of the corporation not later than 120 days after
the close of the corporation’s fiscal year. Such report will include a balance sheet as of the end of such
fiscal year and an income statement and statement of changes in financial position for such fiscal year,
accompanied by any report thereon of independent accountants or, if there is no such report, the
certificate of an authorized officer of the corporation that such statements were prepared without audit
from the books and records of the corporation. When there are 100 or more stockholders of record of the
corporation’s shares, as determined by Section 605 of the CGCL, additional information as required by
Section 1501(b) of the CGCL will also be contained in such report, provided that if the corporation has a
class of securities registered under Section 12 of the 1934 Act, the 1934 Act will take precedence. Such
report will be sent to stockholders at least 15 (or, if sent by third-class mail. 35) days prior to the next
annual meeting of stockholders after the end of the fiscal year to which it relates.

(b) If and so long as there are fewer than 100 holders of record of the corporation’s
shares, the requirement of sending of an annual report to the stockholders of the corporation is hereby
expressly waived.

Section 49. Forum. Unless the corporation consents in writing to the selection of an
alternative forum, the Court of Chancery of the State of Delaware is the sole and exclusive forum for (i)
any derivative action or proceeding brought on behalf of the corporation; (ii) any action asserting a claim
of breach of a fiduciary duty owed by any director, officer or other employee of the corporation to the
corporation or the corporation’s stockholders; (iii) any action asserting a claim against the corporation or
any director or officer or other employee of the corporation arising pursuant to any provision of the
DGCL, the certificate of incorporation or the Bylaws of the corporation; or (iv) any action asserting a
claim against the corporation or any director or officer or other employee of the corporation governed by
the internal affairs doctrine.
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ROBOAITIR INC.
CERTIFICATE OF SECRETARY

THEREBY CERTIFY THAT:

I am the duly elected and acting Secretary of ROBOAIR INC., a Delaware corporation (the “Company™);

and

Attached hereto is a complete and accurate copy of the Bylaws of the Company as duly adopted by the
Board of Directors by Unanimous Written Consent dated March 7, 2023 and said Bylaws are
presently in effect.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto subscribed my name on March 7, 2023,

DocuSigned by:

Fatile Aol

BOBECCDEER23430

FATIH AKOL
Secretary
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Delaware

The First State

I, JEFFREY W. BULLOCK, SECRETARY OF STATE OF THE STATE OF
DELAWARE, DO HEREBY CERTIFY THE ATTACHED IS A TRUE AND CORRECT
COPY OF THE RESTATED CERTIFICATE OF “"ROBOAIR, INC.”, FILED IN
THIS OFFICE ON THE NINTH DAY OF MARCH, A.D. 2023, AT 3:45

O CLOCK P.M.

AL

.Jll'lrlj W, Bulloch, Secrelary of Stale

6746128 8100

Authentlcatmn 202888702



2RE ZULSUDD L6851 Uate: Us-1U-£25

You may verify this certificate online at corp.delaware.gov/authver.shtml
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State of Delaware
Secretary of State
Division of Corporations

Delivered 03:45 PM 03/09/2023 FOURTH AMENDED AND RESTATED
FILED 03:45 PM (03/09/2023 . ;
SR 20230932431 - FileNumber 6746128 CENESIEREE O%%NCORPORAHON
ROBOAIR, INC,

Roboeair, Inc., a corporation organized and existing under the laws of the State of Delaware, hereby
certifies as follows;

1. The name of the corporation is Roboair, Inc. (the “Corporation™). The Corporation was
originally incorporated in the State of Delaware on February 6, 2018 pursuant to the Certificate of
Incorporation filed with the Secretary of State of the State of Delaware on that date. The Corporation
amended and restated its Certificate of Incorporation with the Secretary of State of Delaware on March 8,
2018, May 10, 2018 and August 16, 2018.

2. This Fourth Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation has been adopted by the
Corporation and its stockholders pursuant to Section 228, Section 242 and Section 245 of the General
Corporation Law of the State of Delaware

3, The Certificate of Incorporation of the Corporation is hereby amended and restated to read in its
entirety as set forth in Exhibit A attached hereto,

IN WITNESS WHEREQF, this Third Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation has been
signed this March 7, 2023.

ROBOAIR, INC.

/s/ Fatih Akol

Fatih Akol, its President and Chief
Executive Officer
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EXHIBIT A

FOURTH AMENDED AND RESTATED CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION
OF
ROBOAIR, INC.

A DELAWARE CORPORATION

I
The name of this corporation is Robeair, Inc.
1L

The registered office of the corporation in the State of Delaware shall be 850 New Burton Road,
Suite 201, City of Dover, County of Kent, 19904 and the name of the registered agent of the corporation
in the State of Delaware at such address is COGENCY GLOBAL INC.

1H.

The purpose of this corporation is to engage i any lawful act or activity for which a corporation
may be organized under the Delaware General Corporation Law (“DGCL™).

Iv.

Al This Corporation is authorized to issue only one class of stock, to be designated Common
Stock. The total number of shares of Common Stock presently authorized is Fifty Million Two Hundred
Thousand (50,200,000), each having a par value of $0.000025, consisting of:

1. Forty-Six Million (46,000,000) shares of the authorized Common Stock of the
Corporation that are hereby designated as “Series A Voting” shares (collectively, the “Series A Voting
Common Stock™); and

2. Four Million Two Hundred Thousand (4,200,000) shares of the authorized
Common Stock of the Corporation that are hereby designated as “Series B Non-Voting” shares
(collectively, the “Series B Non-Voting Commeon Stock” together with the Series A Voting Common
Stock, the “Common Stock™),

B. COMMON STOCK

1. Redesignation of Common Stock and Stock Split. Upon the filing and
effectiveness (the “Effective Time”) pursuant to the General Corporation Law of this Fourth Amended
and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the Corporation, (1) the existing outstanding shares of
Common Stock of the Corporation shall, without any action by the holder thereof, be re-designated as
Series A Voting Common Stock as defined herein and {2) every one (1) share of Series A Voting
Common Stock (at that time designated as “Common Stock™) then outstanding or held by the Corporation
as treasury stock immediately prior to the Effective Time is and shall be, antomatically and without any
action on the part of the respective holders thereof, be split into four (4) fully paid, nonassessable shares

Exhibit A
i
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of Series A Voting Common Stock, with a corresponding adjustment to the par value of such shares (the
“Forward Stock Split”). Each certificate (or notice of issuance of uncertificated shares) that represents
shares of Common Stock (“Old Certificates™), shall hereafter represent that number of shares of Series A
Voting Common Stock into which the shares of Common Stock represented by the Old Certificate shall
have been split and re-designated. The anthorized number of shares of Common Stock and the par value
of such shares as set forth above in Section A of this Article FOURTH as of the Effective Date shall not
be affected by the Forward Stock Split.

2. General.

4. Voting, Distributions, etc. The Series A Voting Common Stock and the
Series B Non-Voting Commeoen Stock shall be identical in all rights and preferences with respect to the
Corporation except the Series B Non-Voting Common Stock shall have no voting rights on matters of the
Corporation except as otherwise required under law, The holders of the Series A Voting Common Stock
are entitled to one vote for each share of Series A Voting Common Stock held at all meetings of
stockholders {and written actions in Heu of meetings); when required to vote under applicable law, the
Series B Non-Voting Common Stock are entitled to one vote for each share of Series B Non-Voting
Common Stock held. Unless required by law, there shall be no cumulative voting. Dividends may be
declared and paid on the Common Stock from funds lawfully available therefor as and when determined
by the Board and subject to any preferential dividend rights of any then outstanding preferred stock of the
Corporation. Upon the dissolution or liquidation of the Corporation, whether voluntary of involuntary,
holders of Common Stock will be entitled to receive all assets of the Corporation available for
distribution to its stockholders, subject to any preferential rights of any then outstanding preferred stock
of the Corporation.

b. Adjustment to Authorized Shares of Series A Voting Common Stock and
Common Stock. The number of authorized shares of Common Stock and/or Series A Voting Common
Stock may be increased or decreased (but not below the number of shares thereof then outstanding) by the
affirmative vote of the holders of shares of capital stock of the Corpoeration representing a majority of the
votes represented by all outstanding shares of capital stock of the Corporation entitled to vote, irrespective
of the provisions of Section 242(b)(2) of the General Corporation Law.,

c. Adjustment to Authorized Shares of Series B Non-Voting Common
Stock. The number of authorized shares of Series B Non-Voting Common Stock may be increased or

decreased (but not below the number of shares thereof then outstanding) by the affirmative vote of the
holders of shares of capital stock of the Corporation representing a majority of the votes represented by
all outstanding shares of capital stock of the Corporation entitled to vote, irrespective of the provisions of
Section 242(b)(2) of the General Corporation Law.

3. Automatic Conversion of Series B Non-Voting Common Stock.
a. Defined Terms: For purposes hereof:
® “Automatic Conversion Time” shall mean either the Corporation
Automatic Conversion Time (as defined below) or the Trading Market Automatic Conversion Time (as
defined below),

(ii) The “Conversion Equity” shall mean the shares of Series A
Voting Common Stock and/or Voting Traded Stock (as defined below) issued to the holders of Series B
Non-Voting Common Stock pursuant to this Section 3.

Exhibit A
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(ili) “Trading Market” means that (i) shares of Voting Traded Stock
(as defined below) are listed for trading {whether or not in connection with an initial public offering of
such shares), (ii) that one or more registered broker-dealers are quoting bids and asked prices on the
Voting Traded Stock, (iif) or that transfers of the Voting Traded Stock are being effected through an
Automated Trading System (ATS) regulated by the Securities and Exchange Commiission or are being
transferred through a regulated or unregulated public or private blockchain or other transfer system in
which buyers and sellers can effect transactions, provided that in the case of clauses (ii) and (iii) the
Board of Directors of the Corporation has authorized the trading system..

b. Automatic Conversion Triggers. In addition to any contractual

conversion rights set forth in any agreement between the Corporation and any holder of shares of Series B
Non-Voting Common Stock:

(i) Shares of Series B Non-Voting Common Stock shall be

converted on a one-for-one (I-for-1) share basis, as adjusted for stock dividends, stock divisions or
combinations, into shares of Series A Voting Common Stock as and when declared by the Board of
Directors and approved by the holders of at least a majority of the then issued and outstanding shares of
Series A Voting Common Stock (the “Corporation Automatic Conversion Time”);

(ii) upon the development of any Trading Market for the shares of
Series A Voting Common Stock or other class into which the Series A Voting Common Stock is
reorganized (collectively, “Voting Traded Stock™), then all outstanding shares of Series B Non-Voting
Common Stock shall automatically be converted into shares of Voting Traded Stock, at a conversion rate
of one (1) share of Series B Non-Voting Common Stock for one (1) share of the Voting Traded Stock
(subject to appropriate adjustment in the event of any stock dividend, stock split, combination or other
similar recapitalization with respect to the Voting Traded Stock)(the time of such event, the “Trading
Market Automatic Conversion Time'"); provided, however, that the Corporation may require each holder
of Series B Non-Voting Common Stock to enter into a customary market standoff agreement in a form
acceptable to the Corporation before any shares of Voting Traded Stock may be issued to such holder.

c. Mechanics of Conversion. In the event of mandatory conversion
pursuant o subparagraph 3(b), all affected holders of record of shares of Series B Non-Voting Common
Stock shall be sent written notice of such conversion and the place designated for conversion of all such
shares of Series B Non-Voting Stock pursuant thereto. Such notice need not be sent in advance. Upon
receipt of such notice, each holder of shares of Series B Non-Voting Common Stock in certificated form
(if any) shall surrender his, her or its certificate or certificates for all such shares (or, if such holder alleges
that such certificate has been lost, stolen or destroyed, a lost certificate affidavit and agreement
reasonably acceptable to the Corporation to indemnify the Corporation against any claim that may be
made against the Corporation on account of the alleged loss, theft or destruction of such certificate) to the
Corporation at the place designated in such notice. If so required by the Corporation, any certificates
surrendered for conversion shall be endorsed or accompanied by written Instrument or instruments of
transfer, in form satisfactory to the Corporation, duly executed by the registered holder or by his, her or
its attorney duly authorized in writing. All rights with respect to the Series B Non-Voting Common Stock
converted pursuant hereto, including the rights, if any, to receive notices and, to the extent provided by
applicable law, vote (other than as a holder of Conversion Equity) with respect to such shares, will
terminate at the Automatic Conversion Time (notwithstanding the failure of the holder or holders thereof
to surrender any certificates at or prior to such time), except only for the rights of the holders thereof,
upon surrender of any certificate or certificates of such holders (or lost certificate affidavit and
agreement) therefore, to receive the items provided for in the following sentence. As soon as practicable
following the Automatic Conversion Time, the Corporation shall issue and deliver to such holder, or to
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his, her or its nominees, either by a certificate or certificates for, or book entry of, the number of full
shares or interest of Conversion Equity issuable on such conversion in accordance with the provisions
hereof. Any shares of Series B Non-Voting Common Stock converted shall be retired and cancelled and
may not be reissued as shares of such series, and the Corporation may thereafter take such appropriate
action (without the need for sharcholder action) as may be necessary to reduce the authorized number of
shares of Series B Non-Voting Common Stock accordingly.

4, General Provisions Apolicable to Automatic Conversion.

a. Any shares of Series B Non-Voting Common Stock that are redeemed,
converted or otherwise acquired by the Corporation or any of its subsidiaries shall be automatically and
immediately cancelled and retired and shall not be reissued, sold or transferred, Neither the Corporation
nor any of its subsidiaries may exercise any voting or other rights granted to the holders of Series B Non-
Voting Common Stock following redemption, conversion or acquisition.

b. Any notice required or permitted by the provisions of this Article Fourth
to be given to a holder of shares of Series B Non-Voting Common Stock shall be mailed, postage prepaid,
to the post office address last shown on the records of the Corporation, or given by electronic
comununication in compliance with the provisions of the General Corporation Law, and shall be deemed
sent upon such mailing or electronic transmission.

V.

A, The management of the business and the conduct of the affairs of the corporation shall be
vested in its Board of Directors. The number of directors which shall constitute the whole Board of
Directors shall be fixed by the Board of Directors in the manner provided in the Bylaws.

B. Directors shall be elected at each annual meeting of stockholders to hold office until the
next annual meeting, Each director shall hold office either until the expiration of the term for which
elected or appointed and until a successor has been elected and gualified, or until such director’s death,
resignation or removal. No decrease in the number of directors constituting the Board of Directors shall
shorten the term of any incumbent director.

No person entitled to vote at an election for directors may cumulate votes to which such
person is entitled unless required by applicable law at the time of such election. During such time or times
that applicable law requires cumulative voting, every stockholder entitled to vote at an election for
directors may cumulate such stockholder’s votes and give one candidate a number of votes equal to the
number of directors to be elected multiplied by the number of votes to which such stockholder’s shares
are otherwise entitled, or distribute the stockholder’s votes on the same principle among as many
candidates as such stockholder desires. No stockholder, however, shall be entitled to so cumulate such
stockholder’s votes unless (A) the names of such candidate or candidates have been placed in nomination
prior to the voting and (B) the stockholder has given notice at the meeting, prior to the voting, of such
stockholder’s intention to cumulate such stockholder’s votes. If any stockholder has given proper notice
to cumulate votes, all stockhelders may cumulate their votes for any candidates who have been properly
placed in nomination. Under cumulative voting, the candidates receiving the highest number of votes, up
to the number of directors to be elected, are elected.

D. Subject to any limitations imposed by applicable law, the Board of Directors or any
director may be removed from office at any time, with or without cause, by the atfirmative vote of the
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holders of a majority of the voting power of all then-outstanding shares of capital stock of the corporation
entitled to vote generally at an election of directors.

E. The Board of Directors is expressly empowered to adopt, amend or repeal the Bylaws of
the corporation. The stockholders shall also have power to adopt, amend or repeal the Bylaws of the
corporation; provided, however, that, in addition to any vote of the holders of any class or series of stock
of the corporation required by law or by this Certificate of Incorporation, such action by stockholders
shall require the affirmative vote of the holders of at least a majority of the voting power of all of the
then-outstanding shares of the capital stock of the corporation entitled to vote generally in the election of
directors, voting together as a single class.

F. Unless and except to the extent that the bylaws of the corporation shall so require, the
election of directors of the corporation need not be by written ballot.

V1.

Al The liability of the directors and officers for monetary damages for breach of fiduciary
duty as a director or officer shall be eliminated to the fullest extent under applicable law. If applicable law
is amended after the effectiveness of this Article V1 to authorize corporate action further eliminating or
limiting the personal liability of directors or officers, then the liability of a director or officer to the
corporation will be eliminated or limited to the fullest extent permitted by applicable law as so amended.
Solely for purposes of this Part A of this Article VI, “officer” shall have the meaning provided in Section
102(b}(7) of the DGCL as amended from time to time.

B. To the fullest extent permitted by applicable law, the corporation is authorized to provide
indemnification of (and advancement of expenses to) directors, officers and agents of the corporation (and
any other persons to which applicable law permits the corporation to provide indemnification) through
Bylaw provisions, agreements with such agents or other persons, vote of stockholders or disinterested
directors or otherwise in excess of the indemnification and advancement otherwise permitted by such
applicable law.

C. Any repeal or modification of this Article VI shall only be prospective and shall not
affect the rights or protections or increase the liability of any officer or director under this Article VI in
effect at the time of the alleged occurence of any act or omission to act giving rise to liability or
indemnification,

VIiL
The corporation reserves the right to amend, alter, change or repeal any provision contained in

this Certificate of Incorporation, in the manner now or hereafler prescribed by statute, and all rights
conferred upon the stockholders herein are granted subject to this reservation.

Exhibit A
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EXHIBIT E TO FORMC

Orhan Goksal (Advisory Board) Video Transcript

My name is Orhan Gdksal. I'm an advisor in RoboAir.

| see a lot of opportunity in this industry. RoboAir is going to really perform very well because of
their customer centric philosophy.

Conventional physical industry norms have been applied to the online technologies. In my
opinion, they are not technologically-served companies at all.

There must be a new philosophy bringing technological solutions to the travel industry.

RoboAir is addressing the customer centric approach to the travel industry and that will be a
game changer. And besides the proprietary technology, they are using scalability, they are
using clouds and creating a travel-centric distribution system is really different than the others.

At the moment, all those companies are providing single products, isolated products, not
integrated with each other. And it's not travel-centric at all.

There is a big growth opportunity here because people are traveling more and more. In 2023,
Boeing is receiving record-breaking orders, so this is showing that the industry is growing very
fast.

| do believe in RoboAir because the pattern of successful companies that | invested is very
similar to the RoboAir models and pattern.

They are disruptive, they think out of the box, they think different and they want to bring
different philosophy to the industry and they want to focus on the customer and customer
satisfaction rather than just selling the services and products.

Be an early investor and get 10% off future travels for life.
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Fatih Akol (Founder) Video Transcript

Hi, I'm Fatih the founder and chairman of RoboAir.

Robo is a smart assistant to a traveler, which makes the traveler the worldwide local, if you will.
Actually, it already provides bookings for flights, stays and car rentals globally.

Although the company is pretty young and the application is pretty young, Robo is already
literally providing the cheapest airline ticket that exists in the world. The same thing goes for
stays, same thing goes for car rentals. Literally, the effective price of any member's booking
price is the cheapest in the world right now. How do we do that? Through our algorithms,
through the resilient and pretty powerful commercial backbone that we have so far created.

The travel industry has been acting in the same way since 1940s in terms of commercial
backbone and in terms of technology. Today's technology that all the players play in the travel
industry is like one-way traffic, literally, dummy pipelines, basically a mirroring technology
showing the stocks that exist in the market. Suppliers and travelers are not interacting.

So what we are saying and what we are about to do, as a matter of fact, most of the features
have already been finalized, haven't been launched, but we are on our way to actually launch
them during the second phase of our company.

We are building this platform called TDS, where the traveler is actually, a traveler-centric
platform where suppliers and travelers are interacting both ways without any middleman.

TDS is to replace the outdated GDS-centric infrastructure and introduce a traveler-centric
approach. You know, single transaction financial costs like credit costs on a couple trillion
dollar travel market is changing between three to six percent.

Who pays for it? Traveler pays for it. And when you look at every single cost of a transaction
in terms of airline ticketing, hotels and car rentals, we are looking into up to like hundred-
person markups on hotels and car rentals.

Who gets that? Middleman. So what we are basically saying, by building the TDS, Travel
Distribution Services Platform, we are putting the traveler in between so that travelers, no
matter where he or she is around the world, is being able to reach out to the product that he's
seeking for at the cheapest price.

Same thing goes for the supplier. Without needing any middleman in the middle, suppliers will
be able to actually reach out to any traveler that they actually like to provide their products to.
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We also know the industry very well at Roboair. We know the problems that needs to be
addressed. We know that there is an efficiency problem. As a matter of fact, we have been
there as the principals and managers of airlines or any other travel companies, you know, so
we know what to address. And we believe we can actually deliver that. And we really know the
market inside out.

We here at Robo. We have been actually in the travel industry in terms of aviation management
or in terms of other aspects of travel. So we exactly know what the industry needs to be
addressed and what are the problems, what are the benefits that we can actually solve or add
to the industry. | believe we will be able to deliver.

Be an early investor and get 10% off future travels for life.
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Dr.Evren Eryurek (Advisory Board) Video Transcript

Hello, I'm Dr. Evren Eryurek. | am currently Director of Product Management in Google.
I'm one of the technology advisors of RoboAir and I'm one of the investors and one of the
believers.

I've been in the mission critical industry for decades. I've been in the process control industry,
I've been in transportation, I've been in healthcare and now I'm in high-tech company. And |
know what it takes to build a scalable product.

This industry is ready to grow and it's growing and the next 10 years that | see is going to be
very important and existing capabilities won't meet the need.

This is why RoboAir comes into play in my mind to really help the industry. RoboAir will have
an effect on the industry by introducing some efficiencies right away.

They're going to cut a lot of the layers in between the purchasers and the sellers. So I'll be able
to actually find the cheapest, lowest priced available, no matter where it is, without getfing any
kind of a geo-location-based fees and so forth on top of it.

And they're going to be able to enable the sellers, the travel agents, the airliners, whoever itis,
have access directly to the consumers themselves, which actually helps them be much more
efficient.

So efficiencies are really important. Travel industry will be impacted by RoboAir's technologies.
They're going to bring efficiencies. They're going to improve how one purchases, how one
transacts directly with the providers and sellers. They will have the first traveler-centric chain-
based super app concept.

We will find much more sustainable approach to travel industry, and RoboAir will provide these
at the lowest possible cost to the users themselves.

| believe travelers should choose RoboAir just like me. I'm a user. For their ability to get the
lowest, cheapest tickets for their travels from point A to point B, that's guaranteed by them.

Its simplicity is amazing. Everybody uses, very simple app, very good user experience. And
not to mention is an umbrella app. You can actually do a lot more. If you take into the
membership part of it, you get cash-based refunds from the app itself so that you can use that
cash, your dollars, towards your purchase of next trip or a hotel.

Travel industry is growing. The next 10 years will continue to grow at massive scales. And
what RoboAir brings from sustainability, from being really green company, it will matter to this
industry.

And they're going to be able to actually see their growth rapidly in this industry. And | know
that they are going to get 10% discount if they enter early.

Remember, early investors will get 10% off all bookings for life.
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Dilara Akol (Consultant) Video Transcript

Hi, I'm Dilara and | focus on sustainability here at Roboair.

The travel industry that helps connect people all around the world has the responsibility to limit
its effects on the environment.

Roboair is playing a proactive role in the embrace of green practices. Sustainability is not an
afterthought here at Roboair. It's really at the core of our business.

Roboair is a green business. We're a net neutral company and we actually offset our carbon
footprint with Carbon Fund. Roboair built its technology on Google Cloud, which is a green
web hosting service, which again goes back to our core values of being a green business.

In order to have a sustainable travel industry, you have to empower your fravelers.

We hope to empower our travelers through having a green badge system.
Through our green badge system, you're able to both identify and filter based on the most
sustainable route, the sustainable hotels, or green car rentals.

We think that the reason why our travelers choose us is because of our sustainable approach,
but if travelers also need a little more incentivizing and joining this carbon footprint program,
we are committing to gifting 50% of travelers' donations back to their traveler wallet. And you
can always use this money in your Robo wallet for your future trips.

Be an early investor and get 10% off future travels for life.
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Berk Akol (Consultant) Video Transcript

Hi, I'm Burke and | focus on blockchain at Roboair.

There has yet to be a travel company that has integrated blockchain technologies. Blockchain
offers unmatched efficiency, scalability, and security to all transactions conducted on the chain.

Roboair aims to pioneer the travel industry by implementing a solution where users can use
their browser-based wallets to purchase travel products without having to off-ramp their
crypto. You'll be able to purchase a plane ticket from A to B using your Ethereum-based wallet
and you can pay with any cryptocurrency of your choosing.

Roboair’'s mission is to create a decentralized traveler-centric platform where travelers and
travel product sellers can meet with reduced intermediaries creating efficiency and
decentralization.

We have a lot of new exciting features coming to Roboair. The travel industry is run by
inefficient companies that have really no reason to innovate. Current travel distribution
networks are long dummy pipelines based on GDS and consolidators.

Roboair aims to implement TDS, a revolutionary traveler distribution system that integrates
blockchain technology and direct connections to travel suppliers to produce maximum
efficiency, cut out banking fees, removing intermediaries, and generating a better product for
the traveler.

Roboair maintains a traveler-centric approach. What we mean by this is we run no ads, we
have no hidden fees, and we like to make everything available for the traveler.

We are about to relaunch RoboMarket, a traveler-centric marketplace where travelers can buy
travel bundles, discount codes.

Roboair members get double the benefits, get cashback from Roboair on any booking, and
also get double benefits from your airline, car rental, or stay.

Invest in Roboair and get 10% off all bookings for life
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Ahmet Yalcin (Advisory Board) Video Transcript

I am Ahmet Yalcin, an advisory board member at RoboAir. After spending most of my career in
management consulting and business transformation and serving worldwide Fortune 500
corporations, later | moved to the venture capital industry and have been investing in early-
stage technology startups.

As an investor, we are convinced if a startup has true potential to scale its business.

RoboAir has been implementing one of the most customer-oriented solutions, which means it
offers the cheapest flights, hotels and cars, and this wherever you want globally.

And in my eyes, RoboAir creates value with innovative use cases. This will lead to further
traction of customer base and bootstrap the business. So basically it will scale.

In the last two decades, many technology startups created a tech ecosystem. However, it was
either for just process automatization or replacing the human middleman by digital or by
demand type of applications. Therefore, the tech implemented in this era rather benefited the
middleman and less the guest or host.

This is going to be changed. The travel economy of the future is owned by people using it, not
companies. Web3 ethos is the perfect match for this vision.

To understand Web3, we need to detach ourselves from the image we currently associate with
the internet of today. This is because Web3 is based on the core concepts of decentralization,
openness, cryptographic security and full data ownership, all facilitated through blockchain
technology.

RoboAir aims to create open, more connected, decentralized applications where users can
manage, exchange and trade their own data and enjoy all monetary benefits they were missing
today.

Now, the ambition is fo eliminate the middleman entirely and giving the unleashed advantage
in this equation to the consumer.

RoboAir has been established at the intersection of two cutting-edge technologies. Applying
machine learning helped, for example, to optimize the routes, bookings and the prices for
selling the cheapest airline tickets. And blockchain is making Roboair an early adapter to
Web3.

So here are a few ways Web3 can impact the travel industry. First a travel ecosystem without
intermediaries powered by smart contracts enables peer-to-peer business.

Web3 leads to better economics. Because it reduced the overall cost, it lower fees for
travelers and increased the profitability for the carrier, which may decide to reinvest a portion
of it for better customer services.

My view on Web3, you will not only be able to own your own data, but you will also own the
airline, the hotel or rental car company with the help of tokenized fractional ownership
business models.
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Why should travelers choose RoboAir and why should investors invest in RoboAir? Simply,
best value and high return for spent or invested money.l guess the answer is interchangeable
both for travelers and investors.

Blockchain helps with the monitoring and reporting of emission reduction trading. For
example, the effective tracking of carbon credits complete journey and its connected offset
projects are possible with Web3, giving both businesses and consumers a detailed audit
record.

Be an early investor and get 10% off future travels for life.
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Main Video Transcript

Basically, RoboAir is a technology company focusing on travel industry smart products.

Travelers should choose RoboAir because we have the best deals. Robo is an app that
actually provides the best prices that exist in the world today. | can literally say that because
that's the reality.

Robo is a smart assistant to a traveler, which makes the traveler the worldwide local, if you will.
You can go on your app, download Robo or RoboAir and get the best deals.

You can either find the cheapest hotels, the cheapest flights or the best car rental deals. What
gives the edge to RoboAir is their agility and their use of very highly scalable technologies
that’s out there.

They simplify how one would purchase a ticket and they always thought about the user, me
the consumer as first.

Robo has a tremendous amount of knowledge not only in the travel industry but also
technology. This is the right time, the right place, technologies emerging that could help this
industry.

So, Web3 is a big focus for Robo. The travel economy of the future is owned by people using
it, not companies. And Web3 ethos is the perfect match for this vision.

To understand Web3, we need to detach ourselves from the image we currently associate with
the internet of today. For example, through non-fungible, also called NFT and smart contracts,
digital assets are truly and legally attributed to users and made tradable.

Robo is not simply focused on the use of Web3 and blockchain technology because it's the
new thing. Robo is focused on the new technology because it could help achieve the mission.

But they're not going to focus on that just for the sake of it. They're going to make the targeted
use of those technologies and techniques to make their product the best.

Conventional travel companies are not providing enough service for the customers today
because they are not customer-centric. The travelers' needs are constantly evolving, so
RoboAir is really a solution to industry shartcomings.

RoboAir aims to create open, more connected, decentralized applications where users can
manage, exchange and trade their own data and enjoy all monetary benefits they were missing
today. The ambition is to eliminate the middleman entirely and giving the unleashed advantage
in this equation to the consumer. They are on a mission to really revolutionize the travel
industry. They're bringing machine learning, they're bringing NLP, they're bringing decentralized
approach and RoboAir will provide these at the lowest possible cost to the users themselves.

| think Robo presents a great investment opportunity and they understand the areas that can
be eliminated, the areas that can be commoditized and also the places that we can provide
real value.
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The commercial background has always been the same since 1940. We'd like to decentralize
this market, actually put the traveler in the middle, come up with a platform called TDS where
suppliers and travelers actually interact freely and directly between each other without any
middleman.

Investors should invest in RoboAir because this is an established company, it's not a
paperwork. They are ready to scale in a rapidly growing massive market. They will achieve
sustainability and they will help the travel industry.

We think that the reason why our travelers choose us is because of our sustainable approach.
But if travelers also need a little more incentivizing in joining this carbon footprint program, we
are committing to gifting 50% of travelers' donations back to their traveler wallet.

RoboAir is also building the world's first on-chain travel marketplace where fravelers that want
to pay with cryptocurrencies do not have fo off-ramp their crypto to buy an airline ticket.

RoboAir maintains a traveler-centric approach. What we mean by this is we run no ads, we
have no hidden fees, and we like to make everything available for the traveler.

| have invested myself, my time, and my own money, and I'll keep doing so. Download
RoboAir and you'll get the best prices for any destination that you like to fly to or stay at.

Be an early investor and get 10% off future travels for life.
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William Benson (Advisory Board) Video Transcript

Hi, I'm Bill and I'm an advisory board member. | think Robo presents a great investment
opportunity. It's obviously a fremendous idea, but it takes more than just an idea.

Robo has a tremendous amount of knowledge not only in the travel industry but also
technology. The worldwide global distribution and supply chain for the travel industry is an
expertise for this company.

They understand the areas that can be eliminated, the areas that can be commoditized, and
also the places that we can provide real value. Robo is creating a worldwide marketplace for
travelers to get the best service, but also for the travel suppliers to deliver that service in a
seamless, straightforward way.

So Robo is creating a community, letting the travel service providers do what they do best,
and that's offering world-class service to their customers.

This is the right time, the right place, technologies emerging that could help this industry. Robo
is not simply focused on the use of Web3 and blockchain technology because it's the new
thing.

Robo is focused on the new technology because it could help achieve the mission. And if
these new technologies can support that, we will definitely use them. And if they're not
appropriate at this time, maybe we'll put on the back burner and keep it in mind for the future.

I've had the great fortune in my life to be surrounded by some of the most intelligent people on
the planet. Going back to my days as a student at Caltech, where our instructors were literally
NASA rocket scientists, | was able to just see people who had just a passion and a joy for
doing whatever it is they were working on.

| believe it was Albert Einstein that said, creativity is just intelligence, having fun. And | saw
that in my whole life. So | gravitate to it. And then in my first job at Bell Labs, | again was
surrounded by people who loved what they were doing. And | see that at Robo because Robo
always wants to make sure that they're using whatever the industries have to offer to make
their product the best.

Early investors in Roboair get an extra 10% discount for life.



